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Financial highlights and Group strategy

REVENUE UP 16.9% TO £8 7 5 . 0 MILLION

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT UP 19.8% TO E 242 -1 MILLION

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX UP 16.3% TO £ 1 54 I9M|LL|0N

UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE UP 19.4% TO 3 6 -9P

A reconcihation to underlying measures
of performance 1s given on page 28
Statutory results are

operating profit £236 8 milhon
(2006/07 £200 0 milbion)

profit before tax £14% 6 mlhon
(2006/07 £131 1 mlhon)

earnings per share 38 2p
{2006/07 26 5p)

PENNON GROUP OPERATES
AND INVESTS IN WATER
AND SEWERAGE SERVICES
AND WASTE MANAGEMENT.
IT HAS ASSETS OF AROUND
£3.5 BILLION AND A
WORKFORCE OF OVER
3,300 PEOPLE.

Pennon Group's business 1s operated
through two man subsidianes

South West Water Limted holds the
water and sewerage appointments for
Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset
and Somerset

Vindor Linited 1s one of the
leading waste management and
renewable energy businesses 1n the
Umted Kingdom

DIVIDEND PER SHARE UP 6.8% TO 1 9 ] 8 1 P

PENNON GROUP BCARD'S
STRATEGY 15 to promote the
success of the Group for the benefit
of 1ts shareholders through its focus
on water and sewerage senices and
waste management

In pursut of its strategy the Group
aims to be a pre-eminent provider of
customer services to high standards
of quality, efficency and rehabibty
whilst having regard to a wide range
of matters including

the 1mpact of 1ts operations and
activities on the community and
the enwvironment

maintaimng hgh standards of
business conduct

the need to foster business
relationsmps with supplers,
customers and other key
persons mportant to the
success of the Group

the likely long-term
consequences of any decisions

the interests of employees

Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts 1




Directors’ report

Chairman’s statement

Business review

Ken Harvey
Charman
Pennon Greup Plc

Another excellent year for the Group - we are continuing to deliver the benefits of our
strategy of focusing on our two key businesses of South West Water and Vindor

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Group revenue increased by 16 9% to £875 0
milhon with operating profit up 19 8% to
£242 1 mlhon Profit before tax was up 16 3%
to £154 9 milbion and earmings per share were
36 9p, anincrease of 19 4% (all figures being
underlyng results as exptaned on page 28)

The Beard s recommending a final dwidend

of 13 56p which, tegether wath the intenm
dwidend of 6 25p, wall result in a total dmdend
for the year of 19 81p This represents an
ncrease of 6 8% on the total dwvidend for the
previous year The Board's stated pohcy s to
grow the Group dwidend to 2009/10 by 3%
above inflation per annum Shareholders will
again be given an opportumty to parhapate n
the Company's Dividend Re-investment Plan,
details of which will be circulated 1n August

In the year Group capital expenditure was

£228 8 mlhien (2006/07 £245 1 rlhion)

and net borrowings at 31 March 2008 were
£1,763 8 milhon, an increase of £206 5 mithon
over the year Gearing, being net borrowings to
shareholders funds plus net berrowings, was
73% (2007 71%) Interest cover was 2 8 times
(2006/07 2 9 times) South West Water's net
debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV} was
60% (2007 62%)

SOUTH WEST WATER

South West Water's revenue increased by £39 5
milbhon to £421 0 mllron and operating profit
rose 17 B% to £185 0 mllion Operating costs,
excluding deprecation, wncreased by £4 3 milhon

to £151 O mlhon This arose from inflation of

£2 3 mlbion (net of a reduction 1n power costs

of £2 5 mlbion), the addhonal costs from new
capital schemes of £1 1 mlbion, reduced property
dsposals of £2 6 million and other cost increases
of £2 5 milbon (including infrastructure
expenditure charged to operating costs), partially
offset by £4 2 mlhon of efficency savings

In the ‘Water and Sewerage Compames’ and

‘All Compames’ league tables for 2006/07
covening the wide range of measures used by
Ofwat, referred to as the Overall Performance
Assessment (OPA), South West Water achieved a
best ever ranking of fifth out of 10 amongst the
water and sewerage compames, compared with
sixth placein 2005/06 Ofwat's ‘Financal
Performance and Expenditure’ report, published
1 September 2007, reported that the company
was the only water and sewerage company to
achieve a‘stable’ sennceabihty assessmentin
all four service areas w 2006/07

South West Water 1s smplemenbng detailed
plans to target autperformance of the
operating cost efficiency targets set by Ofwat
for the penod up to 2010 Further efficency
projects are under way to enable further
improvements to operational and customer
service performance The company 1s continuing
to dehver efficencies through investment 1n
infrastructure to move the orgamsation towards
a more centrabised operational structure
employing increased levels of automation and
remote working The company also has an
ongoing programme of orgamsational
restructunng across the business

Pennon Group

focus

The further significant profitable growth
achieved In the year Is testament to the
Board s strategy of focusing on its key

business areas
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"WaterCare'1s the company's new ground-
breaking customer care programme which was
launched 1n early 2007 It aims ta help those
most 1n need pay their bills by adwising them
on how to manage better both their water use
and household budget, including claming

all the benefts to which they are entitled
Dunng this last year ‘WaterCare’ has delivered
tangible benehts to around 2,000 customers
and has been commended by the Government
as an exemplary service offered to customers

The RCV of South West Water 1s expected

to grow by 36% over the current requlatery
penod to March 2010 - the ghest forecast
percentage increase of any quoted UK water
company After adjusting for the effect of the
2006 capital return te shareholders, the
company expects 1ts growth in RCV to outstnp
significantly the antiapated growth in net
borrowings aver the penod

As part of its preparation for the next

Penodic Review 1n 2009, South West Water
tast December publbshed its Strateqic Direction
Statement sething out its vision for the next
25 years This Statement cutbines the fiest
steps the company proposes to take towards
facing the challenges of the future, ncluding
chmate change and new legislative
requirements The draft Water Resources Plan
published 1n May 2008 affirms that, despite a
forecast 12% regional population ncrease by
2035 and new challenges created by chimate
change, no new reservoirs will need to be bult
nthe region Instead the Plan descnbes
several new water conservation proposals




to manage demand eficiently and to

1mprove future water avaitabihty, including
further strengthening of the company’s existing
infrastructure

VIRIDOR

Vindor traded particularly strongly dunng the
year, buslding further on the growth achmeved
over the past six years Revenue was up

£87 4 mlhon (23 8%) to £455 1 million,

of which acguisitions accounted for £35 0
million and existing business £52 4 milbon The
totalincrease included landfill tax of

£26 2 mlhon Vindor's earmings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) for
the yearincreased by 24 1%

to £58 1 milbon Thisincrease included a

fult year's contnbution from last year's

Wyvern Waste and Skipaway acquisitions,

the posshve effect of this year’s acquisition

of Grosvenor Waste Management and 12 2%

of orgamc growth

Total {andfill disposat volumes grew strongly and
were 11% higher compared with the previous
year Landfill gas power generation output also
wcreased by a further 13% with power
generatign capacity now 84 Megawatt (MW)
compared with 75MW at the previous

year end Vindor cellects nearly 90% of the
estimated total methane generated by 1ts landfill
sites and uses the majonty of this

for energy generation This has the double
environmental benefit of reducing emssions

of methane to the atmosphere {methane 1s 21
times more harmful than CO; as a greenhouse
gas) and generating renewable energy

Whilst consented landfill void fell from 90
miilion cubic metres to 84 mikhon cubic metres
at the year end, refleching usage, planmng
consents for additionalvoid of 2 4 milbon cubic
metres were ganed after the year end

As part of its overall strategy Vindor 1s pursuing
a number of energy from waste

(EfW) opportunities The Lakeswde joint

venture with Grundon Waste Management
nvolives capital expenditure of £160 milbon

for the tonstruchon of an EPW plant at Colnbrook
near Heathrow with a capaaty

of 410,000 tonnes and up to 37MW Construction
15 advanced and a proft contnbution 1s expected
n 2009/10 Last summer Vindor also acheved
planmng permissions for a 60,00C tonne and
IMW

EfW plantin Exeter and 1t 15 pursuing cther
possible long-term ERY opportumbies 1n

Cardiff and Dunbar

As Prvate Finance Imtative (PFI) and Pubhc
Private Partnership {PPP) contracts are also
a key part of Vindor’s strategy, 1t continues
to bd setectively for further integrated
mumaeipal contracts It was reported last
year that the Vindor/Laing consoertium had
achieved preferred idder status on the
Greater Manchester PFI, the UK's largest
waste contract Finanoial close on this
contract 1s expected shortly Vindor also
continues to nd selectively for other
contracts elsewhere 1n the UK

STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS

The Board's pnonty continues to be the creation
of shareholder value through its strategic focus
on water and sewerage senvices and waste
management The further sigmficant prohtable
growth achieved in the year 1s testament to the
Board’s strategy of focusing en these key
business areas

The Board remans confident that South West
water will successfully deliver the current
regulatory contract and sigmficantly grow

1ts RCV up to 2010 Vandor's successful strategy
to create long-term sustainable profit growthas

Pennon Group

expected to continue through capitabsing

on 1ts tandfill asset base, maximsingits
renewahle energy generation from landfll gas
and energy from waste and pursuing profitable
opportumties in line with the Government’s
landfill diversion and recycling targets

In additron the Group has putin place a
long-term funding structure to enablett to
conbinue to finance 1ts achwities efficently

BOARD MATTERS

There have been no changes to the Board dunng
the year We have continued to strengthen our
corporate governance to

ensure best prachice s appbed throughout

the Group 1 terms of nsk management and
corporate responsibility 1n the interests of our
shareholders, employees and all other key
groups important to the success of the Group

EMPLOYEES

Dunng the perncd I have been Chairman there
have been many changes and devetopments in
the Group, throughout which employees have
continued to be loyal and committed and have
carned out their work with a gh standard of
professionabsm I thank them most sincerely for
thew continuing support My personal thanks
also go ta the Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors for their sigmficant
contnbutions dunng what has been another
successful and demanding year

KEN HARVEY, Chairman
Pennon Group Plc
26 June 2008
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Directors’ report

South West Water

Business review

Chns Loughlin
Chief Executive

South West Water Limited

it has been another successful year for South West Water Improvemnents have been made to
both operational and customer service whilst providing a satisfactory return for shareholders

OVERVIEW

This year South West Water has been laying the
foundations for the future Our vision ‘Pure
Water, Pure Senice and Pure Environment’ was
launched dunng 2007 and 1s being used as the
basis for our plans over the next 25 years

The wvision defines the following aspiratons for
South West Water

Pure Water ~ investment 1n maintaining our
assets to give our customers the mghest
quabty dnnking water

Pure Service ~ improving the senvices that
customers expenence

Pure Emaronment — delivering sustainabte
sewerage services for the region’s benefit

Underpinning the vision s the strategy of
stnking the nght balance between investing
teimprove our services, financeablity and,
importantly, customer affordabibty

We must meet ongeing regulatory
requirements The Government's new water
strategy for England, ‘Future Water’, was
published in February 2008 The themes of the
South West Water vision are echoed 1n the
Government’s strategy and the key challenges
of addressing future requirements for water
supply and demand, water quality n our
natural environment, the impacts of chmate
change, and tackhng custemer affordabibty,
form a sigmhcant part of our strategy

The new wision and strategy for South West
Water formed the basis of our early work 1n
preparation for the next Perodic Review
due 1n 2009

1n December 2007 we pubbished our
Strategic Directhion Statement which sets
out our aspirabons and the challenges we
face in pursuing our Pure Water, Pure
Service and Pure Environment wision

over the next 25 years

n March 2008 we rssued our draft Water
Resources Plan, which sets out our strategy
to ensure that all customers have a secure
supply of water for the next 25 years

Developing the ‘Pure’ framework has assisted
South West Water 1n focusing on delivenng a
strong performance aver the past 12 months
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We have made excellent progress with cur
focused objectves of

1mproving service to customers and
tackling affordabhty 1ssues

complehng required \nvestment sn our
assets and infrastructure for the benefit
of our customers and the environment

1improving operating efficencies

Delwery aganst our long-term aspirations
set out 1 our vision has already started

PURE WATER

To progress the Pure Water wision, there have
been a number of key achhevements dunng
the year

this has been our 11th consecutwe year
without water restnctions Persistent rain
dunng the summer menths, followed by
below average rawnfall dunng the winter
manths, have tested our supply/demand
resihence The company has putn place
a comprehensive strategy to help ensure
a continued secure supply of water for
the region Customer sabsfachion wath
the reliabihty of the supply received from
South West Water 15 atits hnghest ever
tevel of 94%

projects have been debvered to modermse

ournfrastructure, such as a major upgrade
for Littlehempston Water Treatment Works,
which serves 160,000 homes 1n Torbay and

South Deven

we achmeved our target of keeping leakage
at or below 84Ml/d We have acheved or
beaten our leakage target in every year
since targets were introduced by Ofwatn
1999,/2000

one of the most sigmficant elements

of the current investment programme
{2005-2010) 1s water mains rehabbitabon
A further 479 9km of water mains were
replaced or relined during the year as

part of the company’s ongoing “Putting
the Sparkle Back into Your Water’
programme, agreed with the Dnnking Water
Inspectorate {DWI) for completion by 2010
Four key programme mitestenes have now
been successfully acheved Work to meet
the fAifth and final mlestone 1s under way
and s due to be compteted before 2010

dnnking water quality overall comphance
for the catendar year 2007, as momitored by
the DWI, acheved 1ts highest ever level of
99 97% compared with the 99 96% level
achieved 1n 2005 and 2006

PURE SERVICE

This year a number of projects have been
delivered to progress the Pure Service vision

Accenture was awarded the customer
service and billing contract, giving us the
opportumty for a step change 1n customer
service through quabty ymprovements and
more effinent ways of working

a new contact centre system was nstalled
to improve our calt-handling services for
customers using our helpbnes The benefits
of the new system are already being seen,
with a ssgmficant improvement n capaoty
and a reduction 1n the number of repeat
contacts from customers

‘WaterCare’, a ground-breaking new
customer care programme, was launched
early w0 2007 targeted at helping those
most 1n need to pay thewr bills Customers
are adwised on how to manage better both
their water use and household budget,
including claiming all the benefits to which
they are entitled Some customers benefit
from moving on to a special payment plan
which enables them to make reqular
affordable payments, thereby reducing the
company's outstanding debt In 2007/08
‘WaterCare’ has delivered tangible benehts
to nearly 2,000 customers and has been
commended by the Government as an
exemplary senice offered to customers

the company 1mproved 1ts positien in both
the ‘Water and Sewerage Compames’ and
‘Al Compames’ league tables for 2006/07
1n Ofwat’s Overall Performance Assessment
(OPA), with a best ever ranking of fifth out
of ten amongst the water and sewerage
compames compared with our sith place
n 2005/06

we won first place 1n the sustawnability
category of the Water Industry Achievement
Awards 2008 for our work 1n assisting
business customers to save money and
conserve water




PURE ENVIRONMENT

The environment 15 a continuing focus for

South West Water, buitding on the success of our
coastal clean-up programme, ‘Clean Sweep’

Cur work to improve the natural environment

1n the South West this year included

nvestments to increase capacity at a number
of sewage treatment works and to delver
environmental benefits by treating previously
untreated sewage

continuing investment in coastal waste
water improvements Compliance with the
Mandatory EU bathing water standard was
97 9% This was a sbght reducthion on the
previous year which was believed to be due
to the wettest summer on record causing
excessive agncuttural and surface water
run-off We also contnbuted to the
achievement of 78 3% complance with the
EU’s stnctest Gudeline bathing water
standard, compared with only 47 5%
complbiance 10 years ago

the number of samtary-comphant waste
water treatment works was the hghest ever
at 99 73% n the calendar year 2007, based
on the ‘percentage population equivalent’
(see Glossary, page 42, for descnption)

premotion of innovative work 1n some af our
wider water catchments to 1mprove natural
water retention and the quality of water
reachhing our reservoirs and abstraction
ponts The projects are bewng undertaken
with land owners and users, and a wide range
of statutory and voluntary orgamsations

Underpinmng the vision s the need to dnve
additional operational efficiencies and create
opportunihes to enable further /mprovements

to operational and customer senice performance
We have continued to do tiis 1n the following ways

nvestment has been made this year in the
nfrastructure to move the orgamsation
towards a more centrabised operational
structure employing increased levels of
automation and remote workang

a sigmficant programme of orgamisational
restructunng across the business has been
ongoing throughout the year costing £4 mihion,
leading to ncreased operational efficency

to suppart the operational and service
ymprovements, a number of employee
development programmes are being
undertaken, developing staff across the
business Dunng the year 26 employees were
awarded National Vocahonat Quabfications
and 67 employees were working towards
completing them

a’'nghtsourang’ review was completed

this year ensunng we have the optimal
comination of internal and external
resource provision This led to a number

of improvements to exishing outsourcing
arrangements, 1n parbcular changes i the
way we manage our water distnbution network

South West Water

South West Water
focus

This year South West Water has been laying the
foundations for the future Our vision Pure Water,
Pure Service and Pure Environment’ was launched
during 2007 and 1s being used as the basis for our
plans from now until 2030

Above Sidmouth sea front - photegraphy by Eddie Summins
Top Taking water samples in Exmouth
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Directors’ report Business review

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2007/08 has been another successful year for South West Water, delivening further value for
shareholders through a strang set of operational, finanoal and regulatery resutts whilst improving
customer senice

Underlying operating profit (before restructuning costs of £4 0 millbon) up by £27 9 mlhion
to £185 0 milhion, despite a £7 9 milbon {4 1%) fallin measured demand (2007 saw the
wettest summer for decades)

The company’s revenue increased by £39 5 milben to £421 0 million

ncreases tanif increases approved by Ofwat (£52 3 mithon) and 8,300 new customer
connections {(£3 6 milhon)

decreases customers smitching to metered tanffs (£10 0 mihon) and 4 1% fallin
measured demand (£7 9 mithon)

Over 62% of our domestrc customers now recelve a metered supply

Operating costs, excluding deprecation, increased by £4 3 milhon to £151 0 million

efficency savings of £4 2 mithon in the year, an £11 2 milbhon cumulatve base cost
reduchon since 2005

addibonal costs from new capital schemes of £1 1 milhon
nflation of £2 3 mlhon (net of a reduchon 1n power costs of £2 5 milhon}

other costs increased by £4 9 mlbion after lower property disposals of £2 6 millionn the year

The cost of bad debts rose more slowly than the tanff increase

We are on track to deliver the demanding effictency targets set by Ofwat at the last
Determination for the 2005-2010 penod

Capital expenditure was £16% 7 milbon with over £68 milhon being spent on quabity
schemes, pnnapally water mawns rehabibitation

Above Watergate Bay, Newquay
Right Walking at Wimbleball Lake
Far nght St Michaels Mount -
photography by James Saldwar
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Looking forward, there 1s a sigmficant
programme of change under way which wll
deliver benefits to all stakeholders into the
next Penodic Review Iam confident that
through the professtonalism and dedication
of our people at all levels within our
orgamsation we will move towards acheving
our vision of ‘Pure Water, Pure Service and
Pure Environment’

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

South West Water 1s the bcensed water and
sewerage sevice provider for Devon, Cornwall
and parts of Dorset and Somerset It serves a
region of nearly 10,300 square kilometres with
1 65 milhon residents and n excess of 10
milbon annual visitors Qn average each day
1t distnbutes over 440 mithon btres of treated
water and dsposes of around 250 mithon
htres of waste water through an asset

base compnsing

15,015 kms of water distnbution mans
9,178 kms of sewers

15 impounding reservoirs

40 water treatment works

631 waste water treatment works
including 54 works with ultra-violet
treatment and three with membrane
filtration

1,696 intermittent discharges, including
1,019 combined sewer overflows




Chairman’s statement

Since privatisation 1n 1989 the company

has successfully dehvered the largest capital
programme per capita of any of the water and
sewerage companes with an imtial focus on
improving coastal waste water treatment and
disposal The reqion currently has 143 EU
designated bathing waters, almost one third
of the totaln England and Wales, and 132 of
these have been \mproved over the last 18
years ansing from the company’s manne
investment programme The emphasis has now
moved to completing a 15 year programme of
improving the quabity of dnnking water and to
providing better customer service

South West Water expects to create value
through delivenng the requlatory contract
agreed with Ofwat The contract scope s
reviewed every five years As well as
deternnming outputs, Ofwat sets pnces to
enable efficent compames to earna
reasonable rate of return on their assets

In the current regulatory penod (2005 — 2010)
Dfwat assumed that the equity cost of capital
for all compames would be 7 7% real

after tax with an overall weighted average
cost of capital of 5 1% real after tax

Ofwat's determination allows for further
nvestment by South West Water to improve
the quality of water and sewerage services

As a result the company's RCV 15 expected to
ncrease from £1 956 billion 1 March 2005 to
£2 662 billion 1 March 2010, an increase of
36% This witl enlarge the base for the
calculation of the return allowed by Ofwat
Addtional value may be created where South
West Water outperforms Ofwat’s assumptions

by, for example, delvenng senvices at

lower operating and/or capital costs and/or
financing the investment programme and
operation at lower cost

REGULATORY AND
COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

COMPETITION

The Government s undertaking a full review

of the scope for increased compettion in

water supphes Ofwat 1s currently consutting on
changes to the compettion regime and South
West Water1s responding to this Currently
South West Water has no direct competihon for
the provision of water and sewerage services to
the vast majonty of its customers

The Government has introduced a regime
whereby customers using more than 50M|

per year can contract with alternative supplers
for water supply South West Water has 44
customers in this category whose aggregate
water charges account for less than 2% of its
total revenue No single customer accounts

for more than 1% of revenue

PRICE CAP REGULATION

Ofwat regulates water and waste water
charges by determning the maximum
ncrease n charges which a company can
1mpose In any year The water reguiator
conducts a Penadic Review and sets pnce
limts every five years Pnces are set by
reference to inflabion as measured by the
Retal Pnce Index (RPI) plus an adjustment
factor known as ‘K’ winch 1s speafic for

South West Water

each company The 'K’ factors for the penod
2005 to 2010 for South West Water were set
by Ofwat 1n 1ts Determination 1n December
2004 and are

‘K’ factors for the peniod 2005 - 2010
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PRICE CAP REGULATION continued

In setting pnce bimits for South West Water for
2005 to 2010, Ofwat assumed the following

effhicency improvements

Efficency 1mprovements

8 Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts

Business review

The 2004 Determnation provided for total capital expenditure of £762 mlhien (2002/03 pnces)

over the five year pernod Good progress has been made aganst the required customer senace and

Activity

Adequacy of water resources

Leakage control

Asset condibion above ground
Asset condition below ground
Meet Dnnking Water
Inspectorate milestones

for water mains rehatnlitation

Improvements to waste
water treatment works

Improvements to intermttent
sewage overflows

PERIODIC REVIEW 2009

nfrastructure outputs by 31 March 2008, wncluding

2005 - 2010 Objective

Secunty of Supply Index to
be mantained at 1 0

Maintain at not more
than 84Ml/d

Stable

Stable

Complete five mlestone
packages of ymprovements
Complete 95 schemes by

31 March 2010

Complete 113 schemes by
31 March 2010

Status at 31 March 2008
Secunty of Supply Index
was 0 97

No water restnctrons

for 11th year

84Ml/d achmeved

Stable

Stable

Four mlestones met,
fifth progressing to plan

Completed 77

Completed 104

Sigmficant work has been undertaken through the year to prepare for the next Penodic Review
{2010 - 2015) of the water industry’s pnces South West Water published 1ts 25 year view of future
a1ms 1n December 2007 1n s Strategic Drection Statement Thisis based on the themes of ‘Pure
Water, Pure Senvice and Pure Emaronment’ The development of the draft Business Plan for
submission by August 200815 a key actwity It s supported by extensive stuches, analysis and

preparation of the many sub-components of the Penodic Review




Key dates for the next Penodic Review are

Date Actwnity

Apnl 2608 Ofwat published information requirements

Apnl- May 2008 Compames’ draft water resqurces plans pubbished for consultation
August 2008 Submit and publish draft business plans

August 2008 - January 2009 Pubhc consultabon on draft business plans

December 2008 Ofwat pubbshes draft basetine, outputs package and ‘menv’

January 2009 Ofwat 1ssues final business plan reporbing reguirements
Apnl 2009 Submat and pubbish final business plans

July 2009 Ofwat publshes draft Determnations for comment
July — August 2009 Compames publish final water resources plans
November 2009 Ofwat publishes final Determinations

January 2010 Decisions made by compames on Determinations

Apnl 2010 New pnce mts take effect for penod 2010 to 2015

LEGISLATIVE DRIVERS

The water industry 1 the UK 1s subject to substannal UK and EU regulation This places sigmificant
statutery oblbigations on South West Water with regard to, amongst other things, the quantity of
water abstracted and the quality and quantity of waste water discharged Examples of relevant EU
Directives include the Dnnking Water Directive, the Habitats Directve, the Urban Waste Water
Treatment Directive and the recently updated Bathing Water Directive

The Water Framewark Directive was incerporated into UK law n 2003 [t prowides a framework
for the pratection of and improvement 1n the quality of water resources, together with the
promotion of sustawnable water consumption To comply with the Water Framework Directive,

member states will have to achieve the challenging target of ‘good status’ for groundwater, nvers,

estuanne waters and coastat waters, 1n three six-year cycles, the first renming from 2009 to 2015
From preliminary findings published by the Environment Agency 1n March 2008, the expected
programmes of measures resulting from the Water Framework Regulathons are unlikely to be
sigmficant far South West Water’s assets at least until 2015, following the successful delivery
of 2 wide range of environmental improvements by the company since 1989

South West Water

CLIMATE CHANGE

South West Water 1s workang closely with
many orgamsations to assess the imphbcations
of chmate change for water supply and waste
water senaces Adaptation and mitigation
plans are bewng developed which willinvolve
innovative approaches and new methods of
nfluencing catchment behaviour, upstream of
Its water supply systems, 1n sewered areas and
downstream of its waste water systems to
protect the wider environment

The company's draft Water Resources Plan for
the next 25 years has been developed with the
latest informatien on rawnfall and temperature
alterations, with allewance for demand
changes assenated with chmate change
Predictive models are 1n place to handle
uncertanty Infrastructure developments
have beenidentified, the timing of which can
be adjusted if the expected rate of climate
change alters Increasing efficient and careful
use of water will play a major part 1n adapting
to the expected effects

Above Emoying cleaner beaches

Left South West Water Sernce Centre
Far left Budleigh Salterton -
photography by Dave Corcoran
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

- PURE WATER Overall performance assessment

DRINKING WATER COMPLIANCE

Duning 2007 South West Water maintained
its gh level of overall compbance with the
dnnking water quabty regulations with

99 97% of 1its requlatory tests meeting the
required standards, an mprovement on the
2006 and 2005 performances of 99 96%

Dnrking water quality overall complance

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

In Apnl 2005 Ofwat introduced a new measure
for the overall manner \n which a customer
call was handted The measure s obtained by
quarterly tracking surveys undertaken by an
independent company engaged and managed
by Ofwat Results are provided to the company
The data has been averaged for the year to
assess a performance trend For 2007/08 the
satisfaction score was 4 53, compared with

4 36 for 2006/07 The maximum score 155 0
and at December 2007 Ofwat ranked the
cempany 1n sixth position of the 10 water

and sewerage companies

ABSTRACTION, SUPPLY AND LEAKAGE
CONTROL

In 2007/08 South West Water abstracted
170,313 Ml of raw water from 1ts 81 bicensed
abstraction locations whach have a total
licensed votume of 385,466 ML The abstrachon
sources are reservoirs and nvers, accounting
for 90% of supphes, with 10% drawn from
groundwater aguifers

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
- PURE SERVICE

OVERALL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

The Overall Performance Assessment (OPA)
index 1s mantained by Ofwat as a comparabve
tool to measure compames’ performance

The QPA 15 based on performance in areas such
as customer service and complaint handbng,
bilbng, debt collection, asset sennceabibity,
environmental complhiance and quality of
dnnking water delrvered In 2006/07 South
West Water improved 1ts position to fifth
amongst the 10 water and sewerage
compames, compared with sixth in 2005/06
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Customer sabisfachon

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
- PURE ENVIRONMENT

WASTE WATER TREATMENT COMPLIANCE

The percentage population eguivalent of
sanitary-comphant waste water treatment
works wmproved to 99 73% 3in 2007 compared
with 959 58%1n 2006 This performance
contnbutes to South West Water's reqion
having the lighest percentage length of
high quality nvers in England




Percentage population equivalent samtary compliance Bating water performanice

INCIDENTS AND PROSECUTIONS

Five ‘category two' (sigmificant pollubon) inoidents were recorded by the Environment Agency in
2007/08, all of which were deemed non-comphiant with discharge consents This compares with five
nodents in 2006/07, four of which were deemed non-comphant Dunng the year the company was
caemacted on erght occasions for environmental offences and fined a total of £36,100 compared with
seven comachions and £30,0001n fines i 2006/07

There was also a Dnnking Water Inpectorate prosecution n the year 1n respect of water supplies to a
small part of Exeter The company was fined £5,000 on each of four charges

The company always self reports incidents it becomes aware of and seeks to co-operate with any
wvestigabion wath the relevant regulatory authonty After each pellubion inadent, including inodents
teading to prosecution, the company takes such steps as are necessary to ensure that the incident wall not
be repeated and also seeks to ensure that lessons learned are widely dissermnated throughout the company

BATHING WATER PERFORMANCE

Ournvestment 1n waste water performance over the last 18 years 1s an 1mportant contnbutor to the
region having a sigmficant proporhan of the finest bathing waters, beaches and nvers in the UK

In 2007 all but three of the region’s 143 bathing waters {usually 144 but one pnvate beach was closed
n 2007) achieved the EU Mandatory standard (100% w 2006) and 78 3% acheved the more stringent
EU Gundeline standard {91 7% 11 2006) The bathng water results in 2007 were affected by an
exceptionally wet summer which led to increased run-off from land

South West Water

Above {oasthne at Newquay

Left Plymbndge - photography by

Phbp Nelson

Far left Bystock Pond - photography by

Karen Land
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
- FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS

GROWTH IN REGULATORY
CAPITAL VALUE

RCV s the finanoal base used by Ofwat to
allow a rate of return and set pnces at each
penodic review The RCV at 31 March 2008
ameunted to £2 408 hilhon Tihis compares
with £2 265 bilhon at 31 March 2007, an
increase of 6 3% From 31 March 2005 to

31 March 2010 we are expecting a 36% growth
1 RCY, the highest percentage increase of
any quoted UK water company

Future RCVs up to 2009/10 are based on
Ofwat's projections These were set outn
‘Future Water and Sewerage Charges 2005-10°
publbished 1n December 2004 and have been
adjusted by South West Water's estimates of
outturn prices The growth 1n RCV adds directly
to shareholder value as the allowed return s
attnbuted to South West Water's asset base by
the water regulator

Regulatory Capital Value

OPERATING PROFIT

South West Water achieved an underlying
operating profit of £185 0 milbonn
2007/08, up £27 9 mtlion on 2006/07

For the five year penaod 2003/04 to 2007 /08,
underlying operating profit s shown in the
following graph

12 Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts

We continue to pursue imtiatives to improve
further the health and safety of our employees
through the provision of training and
promotion of health and safety These are
designed to ensure that employees have the
knowledge and expertise to undertake their
j0bs 1n a well motvated, contented and
productive manner

Operabing profit

The company had s lowest number of
repertable acadents 1n 2007 at 8 55 acaidents
per 1,000 employees compared with 11 55
acodents per 1,000 employees 1n 2006 and

12 56 per 1,000 employees n 2005

RIDDOR acodent and inodent rates

HEALTH AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE

Occupational health and safety are key
elements of South West Water’s nsk
management and internal control processes
South West Water's reportable acodent rate
remains an important KPI and the number of
reportable acaidents continues to fall as we
improve the sklls of our personnel and make
their working environment safer




Chairman’s statement

CUSTOMERS, COMMUNITY AND
EMPLOYEES

CUSTOMERS

Customers are informed through a company
newspaper “Waterlevel', leaflets, the media

and our website, www southwestwater co uk
Detailed research and consultabon has been
undertaken with customers and stakeholdersn
relabon to the Penodic Review process

During the summer our customer caravan visits
the Devon and Cornwall county shows as well as
other fairs and events throughout the region
Staff help with customer enquines and provide
nfermaton about water conservation and how
we nvest to improve our assets and senices

We meet regularly with the Consumer Counal
for Water (CCWater), which champions water
customers We regularly consult CCWater and
other stakeholders such as pensioners’ forums
and atizens’ adwvice bureaux, pnor to major
changes ar imbatves

Our *Customer Plus’ programme 1s aimed

at transferming our customer service and
making 1t amengst the best in the industry
Working with Accenture we will be investing
£4 milbon 1 ymproving customer service

We pubbsh our ‘Customer Pronise’, setting out
clearly how we wall respond when things go
wrong and what we will do to put them nght

Staff across the company debver a ‘company
talk’ to commumty groups and water
conservabon staff provide a school talks
senvice for young people

Our monthly customer satisfaction survey
shows nsing satisfaction wath South West
Water’s customer senace

COMMUNITY AND SPONSORSHIP

South West Water concentrates 1ts sponsorship
on community projects and ergamsations
withan its service area which are linked to
water, benefit the environment or pramote
youth parbopation

Highhghts wn 2007/08 included the company's
first involvement 1n green arts as lead sponsor
of TRAIL - an extibition of environmentat
sculptures on the South West Coastal Path -
and a jont project with South West Lakes
Trust to plant a new natural woodland at
Wimbleball Lake

The company also took the opportumty to
co-sponsor South West Tounsm's annual
awards and fund a new sustawnable tounsm
pnze to demonstrate how the ‘Clean Sweep’
project has helped underpin the renaissance of
the reqion’s number one industry stnce 1989

Youth parhicipation projects inctuded
sponsonng a natignal jumer championshp n
Carnwall run by the Surf Life Saving
Association of Great Bntan and Exmouth’s
first kate festival In total 64 orgamsations and
indmduals across the region were sponsored

South West Water

EMPLOYEES

The company s focused on developing well
trained and motvated employees n order to
achieve the "Pure Water, Pure Sennce and Pure
Environment’ vision and to successfully meet
the growing expectations in customer service,
operational outputs and cost efhciency

A new employee development framework
co-erdinates traiming and development for
all employees and better outlines and
explains what the company offers and what
employees are required to do 1n support

of thewr own personal development A new
graduate development programme was
created and launched 1n early 2008 involving
around 60 current graduate employees within
the company All traiming actvities are
undertaken under the ‘Investor in People
(IIP) standard, whch s closely abgned with
business requirements

South West Water continues to drive change
management programmes and take advantage
of new technology Two examples are the
creation of a new sennce centre at the
company's headquarters 1n Exeter and further
deployment of mobile computing to 1mprove
the efficient operation of 1ts workfarce

the field

In pursuing effinency projects, the company
15 engaging employees in the design and
development of business improvements

Above Land yachting on the beach
Left Wimbleball Lake
Far left Enmoying high quahty nvers
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EMPLOYEES continued

Further imhatives incdlude reviewang and
improving work achvities, employee practices
and delivenng more flexible terms and
condibons 1n key operational areas affecting
service provision to customers Negobations in
craft and ndustnal areas regarding terms

and conditions of employment are progressing
well and these are linked to 1/mproved

traimng and development and broader
progression schemes

South West Water continues to play a

major role 1n ‘Clear Water 2010, a 10-year
occupational health programme for the

water industry The company continues to
pursue imtiatives to further 1mprove the
health and safety of its employees through the
provision of training and pramotion of health
and safety to ensure that employees continue
to have the knowledge and expertise to
undertake their jobs safely

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

REGULATORS AND OTHERS

Relattonships with requlators, Government
and its agencies, customer representative
orgamsations and its customers are central to
South West Water's operatiens The company
maintains a conbnuing dialogue with Ofwat,
the Emaronment Agency and the Onnking
Water Inspectorate H contnbutes to national
policy on developing issues throughits
membership of Water UK, the industry

trade body The company works with the
Consumer Counait for Water to ensure that
customers”issues and concerns are addressed
and a full understanding of the company’s
actwities 1s maintained

PROCUREMENT AND SUPPLIERS

South West Water's procurement strategy

15 focused on partnenng and strategic
albances with around 60 key supplers who
account for the majonty of expenditure
Regular meetwngs are held to manage
performance, encourage sustainable business
actwity and to wdentify and deliver continuous
1mprovement opportunihes for reducing costs
further while improving performance and
service levels
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk

Tighter pnce controls over the
revenue of the company’s regulated
business could adversely affect
profiabibty

Falure to debver the capitat
nvestment programme could
adversely affect future profitabhbty

The company may be unable to raise
suffiaent funds to finance 1ts
functons

Failure to deliver operating cost
savings imphiot in the requlatory
review could adversely affect
profitablity

Environmental requtations and
qualsty standards could increase the
company's costs and adversely affect
profitabihity

Chimate change

Contarmnation of water supphes
could adversely affect profitabibity

Nen-recovery of customer debt could
adversely affect profitabibty

Energy cost pressures

Pension costs may increase due to
factors outside the company's
control

Water resource adequacy

Operabional failures

Reduced revenue from faihng
customer demand for water

Meter option take-up bewng greater
than forecast, resulting 1n reduced
revenues

Mitgabon

South West Water has met Ofwat's efficiency expectabons in the last
two Penodic Review penods and 1s on track to meet themn the
current penod

The company has a track record of debvening 1ts capital programme
n accordance with requlatory requirements  The current capital
programme 1s on track and progress 1s regularly momtored

and reviewed

Pennon Group and the company have robust treasury poboes
nplace These include pohicies that there are always pre-drawn or
committed faclhes to cover at least one year’s estmated cashflow
and that no more than 20% of borowing matures in any one year

In line wath its track record, the company remains confident of
delivenng the assumed operating cost savings A major restructuring
programme 15 currently being mplemented

These 1ssues are addressed through the five year requlatory
review mechamsm

The comgany has plans ready and will adapt the way 1t conducts its
business to respond effectively to the hotter, dner summers and
wetter winters whnch are anbapated

The company has estabbshed procedures and controlsin place, as
well as contingency plans and inodent management procedures
It also mawntains insurance pobicies 1n relation to these nsks,
although there can be no assurance that ail or any of the costs
assocated with these nsks would be covered or that coverage will
conbinue to be available n the future

In addibon to existing strateqies, South West Water 15 implementing
new inthatives to 1mprove and secure cash collection, including the
use of property charging orders Proviston was made 1n the last
Penodic Review for compames to make an applicatron for an Intenm
Determination 1n the event of bad debts being sigmficantly above the
amourt allowed by the water regulator

South West Water rmbgates nsing energy costs through careful
system operation, by maxwmsing renewable energy generation and
by purchasing all forms of energy 1n the most efficent way

Employer costs were reduced from 1 Apnt 2006 through the closure
of the exssting defined benefit scheme to new entrants (replaced by a
new scheme with reduced benefits) and an increase 1in employee
contnbutions From 1 Apnl 2008 the new defined benefit scheme was
also closed to new entrants and replaced by defined contnbution
arrangements Employee and employer contnbubions have also been
further increased

The company has a number of schemes 1n place to maintain water
resources {such as pumped storage for certain reservenrs) and
promotes conservaon measures

In partrcular, South West Water prepares a new Water Resources Plan
every five years and reviews itannually for a range of chmate change
and demand scenanos The Water Resources Plan ndhcates that no
new reservorrs are required before the planning honzon of 2035
However, nvestment 15 needed to develop the overall trunk main
nfrastructure, to expand treatment capaoty and to enhance certain
pumped storage fanbties

The company 1s able to momtor s sigmificant assets by automated and
remote operation and has routine controls and operating procedures
wn place that are constantly kept under review Asset management
techmques are employed to pre-empt the failure of assets

The water regulator1s proposing a form of revenue cap regulabion
from 2010, which would allow water compames to recover a shortfall
mncome for a five year regulatory penod 1n the next penod

An Intenm Determnation may be used to fully or parbally recover
revenue losses if they exceed the prescnbed matenabty threshold




South West Water

Left Cychst splash - photography by J)m Cockburn
Above Fly fishing at Kenmick Reservorr
Top Sunset surfers — photography by Oliver Denne
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Viridor

Business review

Colin Drummond
Chief Execulive
Virider Limited

Another year of strong profit growth and strategic development

OVERVIEW

Contnwing developments in the UK’s waste
management and renewable energy polices,
dnven by chmate change and environmental
awareness, create major opportumhes for Vindor
In 2007/08 Vindor debvered another year of
strong profit growth Atthe same time it
progressed vamous major strategic imtiatives
which are expected to enhance further its
business in future years This reflects its

focused strateqy of-

capitabising onits strong position in landfill
waste disposal

maximsing 1ts landfill gas renewable energy
generation

explothing opportuntbes ansing fram the
Government's landfill diversion and
recyching targets including
Private Pinance Imbatwe (PFI) and
Public Private Partnershp (PPP)
contracts
recycling operations
energy from waste plants (EfW)

More detail on the chmate change and
environmental drvers behind the Government’s
pobicies and Varidor’s strategy 1s given in the
sections on main trends and business and
strateqy, both on page 20

In 2007 /08 revenue at £455 1 milhen increased
by 23 8% over the previous year Profit before
nterest, tax and amortisation of intangibles
(PBITA) at £58 1 mlbon increased by 24 1%
over the previous year This was dnven by
particularly strong growth 1n the landfill, power
generation and recychng parts of the business
In the seven years since 2000/01 PBITA has
grown by a compound average rate of 24% per
annum, of which 11% has been orgamc and the
remainder from acquisihons This year around
12% of the growth has been orgamec with the
remainder being from acquisitions Underlying
profit before tax (PBT) at £35 5 mlhon was

20 7% up on the previous year Return on equity
at 16 5% was 2 3% up on the previous year’s

Vindor profit contnbution by segment

Finanoal year 2007/08

figure of 14 2% This consistent strong financak
performance reflects the success of Vindor's
focused strategy

VIRIDOR PROFIT CONTRIBUTION
BY SEGMENT

The pie charts below provide a breakdown of
Vindor's prefit contrnbution by segment (before
amortisation of mtangibles and central overhead
costs including pensions) In 2007/08 landfill
and power generation (the first two elements of
the strategy cutlined above) accounted for 68%
of the profit contnbuhon, compared with the
previous year's 76% Recycling and contracts
(the third element of the strategy) increased

to 24% from 16%

Financial year 2006/07

All segments grew 1n absolute terms bath before and after acguisihons
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LANDFILL AND LANDFILL
GAS UTILISATION

Landfll inputs excluding cover grew very
strongly and were 5 2 milbon tonnes or 11%
hgher 1n 2007/08 compared with the previous
year Of this total volume approximately

0 2 milbon tonnes were of 1tems not expected
to continue inte 2008/09 Average revenue per
tonne increased by 2 5% to £19 30 per tonne,
or 3 5% after adjusting for changes wn sales
mix Consented landfill void fell from 90
mmillvon cubic metres last year end to 84 milhon
cubic metres at 31 March 2008, reflecting
usage Since the year end Vindor has ganed
planning consents at two sites providing an
additronal 2 4 mlbon cubic metres of vord

Vindor's landfill gas power generation output
increased by a further 13% to 477 hgawatt
hours (GWh), building on a 15% increase last
year As flagged at the beqinning of the year,
underlying ‘brown energy’ prices were lower in
2007/08 than n the previous year This was
largely offset by an wncrease 1n the renewables
energy premmum inthe UK and the company's
average vevenues per Megawatt hour fell
shightly to £60 The company’s ‘brown energy’
contract prices n 2008/09 are at a mgher {evel
than in 2007/08 The company’s landfill gas
power generation capaoity was B4 Megawatts
(MW) compared with 75MW at the previous
year end (both figures exclude a small amount
of sub-contract capacity) Vindor now collects
nearly 90% of the eshmated total methane
generated by its landfills and uses the butk
af 1t for energy generatien This has the

dual environmental benefit of reducing
ermissions of methane to the atmosphere

(methane1s 21 bmes more harmful than (0,
as a greenhouse gas) and generating
renewable energy, at the same ttme Vindor
earns sigmficant profits from thas aspect of its
business At 31 March 2008 55% of Vinder's
power generating capaaity was ehqible for
Renewabtes Obligation Cerbficates (ROCs) and
45% for Non Fossil Fuel Gbligation (NFFO)

RECYCLING CONTRACTS AND ENERGY
FROM WASTE [Efw)

The UK 1s required under the EU Landfitl
Directive to reduce the amount of ho-
degradabte mumcipal waste going to landfill
sites as descnbed 1n the section on regulatory
and competitive environment on page 22
Mumcipal waste accounts for around one
thrd of Vindor's landfll market

The alternatives to landfll sites for final

waste disposaln the UK are currently brmted
In order to meet the requirements of the
Landfill Dhrecbve, local authonties have been
set statutory targets by the Government for the
dversion of biodegradable mumacipal waste
from landfill Accordingly, the recycling and
contracts segments are increasingly ympertant
to Vindor's business and beth perfermed
strongly n 2007/08 Total profit centnbution
grew by over 80% (27% excluding the effect of
acquisitions) and now represents 24% of total
contnbubion compared with 16% last year

vindor's industnal and commercial collection
business provides support for the landfll
business and 1s profitable in its own nght

In 2007 /08 profits grew 22% maintaimng the
segment’s overall share of Vindor profits

{8% 1n both years)

Viridor

In bne with its strategy, 1n 2007 /08 Vindor
made two sigmficant acquisitions to strengthen
1ts recychng business In December 2007
Grosvenor Waste Management was acquared
for £79 5 milhon {plus net debt assumed of

£1 7 milhion} Grosvenoris a leading UK
matenals recychng company with the UK's
largest Matenals Recycbing Faality {MRF)

at Crayford i South East London which
benefits from advanced automated recychng
technologies and an associated collechion fleet
It has a further MRF i Peterboreugh whichas
currently being expanded In addhtion
Grosvenor has an extensive recyclate sales
network 1n both the UK and overseas

The business has an excellent geographic and
business fit with Vindor's existing operations
m the South East of England Grosvenor,
renamed Vindor Resource Management, has
been operahonally wntegrated and was already
earmngs enhanang after integration costs

1n 2007/08

In March 2008 Shore Recycling was acquired for
£23 3 milbon (including debt assumed of £12 5
milhion} Sheores a leading UK waste electncal
and electrome equipment (WEEE) recycling
company headquartered in Perth, Scotland

It processes a full range of WEEE and has
modern purpose bunlt recycling equipment

It has recychng facbities 1n Perth, Manchester
and St Helens and an assecated collection fleet
providing an excellent fit with Vindor's existing
operations n the North West of England and 1n
Scotland The company has been renamed
vandor Electneat Recyching and 1s expected

to be earmngs enhanaing 1n the first full

year, 2008/09

Viridor focus

Continuing developments in the UK's
waste management and renewable
energy policies, driven by climate
change and environmental awareness,
create major opportunities for Viridor
In 2007/08 Vindor delivered another
year of strong profit growth

Left Matenals reception at Crayford MRF

Above left Matenals recyching process hine control
Below left Landfill compactor

Far left Pnorswood MRF
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Above Landfill gas monitanng
Right Crayford MRF

Top teft Glass recyching inputs
Top nght Landfill gas power plant
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RECYCLING CONTRACTS AND ENERGY
FROM WASTE [EfW) continued

Vinder s pursuing a number of further

EfW opportumties The Lakeside Joint venture
with Grundon Waste Management compnses
a 410,000 tennes and up to 37MW capacity
EfW plant at Colnbrook near Heathrow

As previously reported it mvelves capital
expenditure of £160 milbon financed by 86%
non-recourse debt with the balance split
equally between the two equity providers

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Profit before interest, tax and
amortisation of intangibles and profit
before taxation

PBITA and PBT are key overall measures of
Vindor's performance and are set outn the

Year ended 31 March

Operating profit before mtangibles amortisation
Profit before taxation

Return on equity investment
UK GAAP

CONSENTED LANDFILL VOID

As at 31 March 2008 Vindor had a consented
vond capaaty of 84 milhon cubic metres

Consented landfill void

Business review

Construction 1s well advanced and a profit
centnbubon 1s expected 1n 2009/10

Last summer Vindor achieved planmng
permssion for a 60,000 tonnes and 3MW
EfW plantin Exeter Itis also purswing other
possible long-term EfW opportunihes in
Carchff and Dunbar

PFI and PPP contracts are also a key part of
Vindor’s strategy and Vindor will continue
to bid selectively for further integrated

mumapal contracts We reported last year

table below for the seven year penod 2001

to 2008 The table also sets out the Compound
Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) for these
measures, being the rate of growth between
2001 and 2008 expressed as a single annual
average figure over the penod

Return on equity

Return on equity1s also a key measure of
Vindor’s performance and s calculated as

2001 2092 2003 2004
£m im ] £m

131 152 191 227
117 138 157 172

6 1% 7 2% 82% 88%

Yirdor

that the Vindor/Laing consertium had
achieved preferred bidder status on the
Greater Manchester PFL, the UK's largest

waste contract Finanoal close s expected
shortly Vandor s one of the last two mdding
for the Oxfordshire PPP, one of the last four for
the Cheshire PFI, short-hsted for the Medway
PPP and 15 also hidding for the Merseyside PFI

PBT expressed as a percentage of Pennon
Group's equity investment 1n Vindor
(£207 0 milhon at 31 March 2008}

2005 2006 2007 2008 CAGR
im im im fm 2001 - 07

300 359 468 581 24%
215 235 29 4 355 17%

11 0% 11 3% 14 2% 16 5% -

LANDFILL GAS ELECTRICITY GENERATION CAPACITY

Electnaty generated 1s sold to electnaty suppliers, usually under NFFO contracts or under shorter
term contracts with ROCs As at 31 March 2008, Vindor had 84MW of generating capacity, an
ncrease of 9MW over the year These figures exclude 3MW of sub-contract capacity i Suffolk

Power generation capacity

Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts

19




Directors’ report

MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS
LIKELY TG AFFECT THE FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE
AND POSITION OF THE
COMPANY S BUSINESS

The waste management and renewable
energy business 1s heavily )/mpacted by
environmental and chmate change
considerations and associated Government
pobicies Vandor's strategy reflects this and
our belief 1s that bewng green 1s good for
business, as 1s demonstrated by the
company’s financial performance

Government pohicies are desygned n the

first instance to minimise the amount of

waste generated, then to maximise reuse and
recyching, followed by treatment and energy
recovery 1n EfW fachies and other
technolegies This s underpinned by final

safe disposalin landfills The Government s
mplementing the EU Landhli Directive and
reducing the amount of waste to go to landfill
This Directive was onginally imtrated because of
the methane generated by landfills, althoughn
fact the bulk of this 15 now captured for
renewable energy generation

At the same time 1t 15 increasingly recogmsed
that waste 1s a major renewable energy source,
accounting for approsimately 30% of current
UK renewable energy or roughly 1 5% of total
UK electnaity production, pnncaipally this 1s
currently from landhll gas utibsation, which
has grown by 600% over the past 10 years
The Institubion of Cvil Engineers has recently
estimated that waste could theorencally
account for up to 17% of tetal UK electnaty
producbion Evenif this1s an over-eshmate
1t1s still clear that waste can make a major
contnbution to the UK's future energy needs

The Government’s target of dwerting
mumapal waste away from landfill up to 2020
15 leading to a decline in the tandfill market
However, with only around six or seven years’
consented capacity in the UK as a whole
(according to Environment Agency estimates)
and with new consents difficult to achieve,
Vindor's 84 milhon cubic metres 1s regarded as
a very valuable resource Whilst open-market
‘brown energy’ prices in 2007/08 were below
2006/07 peaks, they have since recovered
strongly, and the premium for renewable
energy s also strong As the UK increasingly
relies gn imports of energy and seeks to grow
its output of renewables, Vindor's power
generation business 1s expected to become
anncreasingly valuable asset The need for
counails to achieve therr landfill dwersion
targets creates attractive opportuntties for
PFI/PPP contracts such as Vindor's with West
Sussex and Somerset, for facibbes such as
the Lakestde EfW plant, and for recycling
operations such as Vindor Resource
Management and Vindor Electncal Recycling

Business review

VIRIDOR'S MAIN UK OPERATIONS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2008

BUSINESS AND STRATEGY

Vindor 15 a leading prowider of essenbal waste
treatment, recycling and disposal services in the

UK and a sigmficant generator of renewable energy

It has core competenaes n landfill disposal,

recyching and generation of electnaty from landfill gas
The company has a waste collection fleet focusing
pnmanly on the industnal and commeraat market and
also operates matenals recycling facilibes, waste transfer
stattons, treatment plants, household waste recyching
{owic amemty) sites {HWRS) and composting faalibes in
a number of regions1n the UK

Vindor’s strategy s to add value by

capitabsing on 1ts strong positien in landfill
waste disposal

maximising 1ts landfill gas renewable
energy generabon

explotting opportunities ansing from the
Government's landfitl diversion and
recycling targets including

PFI & PPP contracts
recyching operations
EfW plants

vindor's landfill market consists of mumeipal, commeroal and industnal wastes aleng with certain
other special types of waste Landfilt1s currently the major final disposal route for these wastes

vindor 15 one of the largest landfill site operators 1 the UK with a total consented landfilt capacity of
approximately 84 milion cubic metres at 31 March 2008 The campany s at present filling thisat a
rate of appro;amately s1x million cubic metres per annum which results 1n an average remaiming bfe of
14 years at current rates of fili - sigmficantly longer than the industry as a whole

Gas produced from decomposing waste on landfill sites 15 1ncreasingly used to generate electnoty
It 15 a form of renewable energy and now represents 24% of the UK’s total renewable energy
generation with EAW a further 6% The Government's strateqgy 1s to increase the percentage of
electnaty generated from renewable sources from the current figure of approaching 5% to a target
of 10% 1n 2010 and 15% n 2015, with an aspiration of 20% 10 2020 Histoncally, renewable energy
projects were supperted by the Government through the NFFO scheme Fixed pnce Retail Pnce Index
(RPI) contracts with terms of up to 15 years were awarded to the most compettve renewable prejects
n five tranches of bidding In Apnl 2002 the NFFQ regime was replaced by the Renewables Obligation
Certificates (ROCs) reqime The overall pnce for electnoty suppbied under ROCs 1s currently
substantially mgher than that achieved under the most recent NFFO scheme This has facibtated the
nereasing of Vindor's total landfill gas power generation capaaty to a current 84 MW at 31 March
2008, compared with 28MW in March 2002 Of this 45% 1s under NFFC and 55% under ROCs

To take advantage of opportumties presented by the Government's developing waste strategy,
Vindor 1s pursuing composting, EFW and a range of recycling or related treatment opportumties
(including matenals recycing facihibies, mechamcal-biological treatment, anaerobic digestion,
composting and cvic amemty or household waste recycbing sites) These may be combaned in
integrated waste management contracts

In pursuing 1ts strategy, Vindor seeks to grow its waste management business, both orgamcally and
through acquistbon It has continued ta be an active parboipant in the consohdation of the UK waste
market to date and, since October 2001, has made 13 acqwisthions 1n the waste sector foran
aggregate consideration of over £290 milhion They have been ntegrated into the Vandor group with
the exception of Shore Recycling acquered n March 2008 where ntegration 1s ongoing
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Vindor

Left Plymouth waste transfer station
Above Landfill compaction

Middle Baled recyclate

Top Composting operatians
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REGULATORY AND
COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

The UK1s required under the EU Landfilt
Directwe ta reduce the amount of
biodegradable mumaopal waste going to
landhill sites as follows

to 75% of 1995 level by 2010
to 50% of 1995 level by 2013
to 35% of 1995 level by 2020

Followang the )/mplementation 1n October 2007
of the Pre-Treatment Regulahons, all waste
gomng to landfill must have undergone some
form of pre-treatment (including recyching)

At the same time the UK Government has set
targets for recyching and composting of
municpal waste to increase from the current
level of a bittle over 30% to 40% by 2010, 45%
by 2015 and 50% 1n 2020 The Government

15 promoting recychng by vanous measures
ncluding encouraging counals to provide
separate collechon of recyclables winch
enhances the recycling rate obtawnable at MRFs
There are specific targets for recycling of

all packaging with finanaal incentives in the
form of Packaging Recovery Notes (PRNs}) and
Packaging Export Recovery Notes {PERNs)
Speafic requlatiens affect waste electncal and
electromc eguipment which has 1ts own system
of WEEE Evidence Notes which are tradable

Above Waste treatment laboratory tesbing
Right Waste collection
Farnght Restored landfill at Beddington

Business review

In order to meet the reguirements of the Landfitl
Directive, Indmidual local authonties have been
set statutory targets for the dwersion of
biodegradable mumaipal waste from landfill

Each waste dhsposal authonty has been
allocated an allowance of the amount of bio-
degradable waste 1t may dispose of to landfill
for the years 2005 to 2020 These allowances
are designed to ensure thatthe UK as a

whale achieves the requirements of the EU
Landfill Dwrective Subject to some constraints,
local authonties can carry forward or trade
allowances under the Landfill Allowance Trading
Scheme (LATS) Any authonty exceeding its
allocation without such an allowance faces a
penalty of £150 per tonne in addition to the
cost of disposing of the waste This 1s expected
to result 1n the antroduchon of alternative
treatment and disposal processes at ngher
cost than current routes

The Government introduced landfitl tax as

a further incentive to divert waste away from
landfill sites  Landfill tax applies to all waste
dhsposed of at a beensed landfill site, unless the
waste 15 specifically exempt, such as soil frem
mstoncally contaminated sites up to 2012
Landfill tax 1s chargeable by weight Forinert
waste, landfill tax was chargeable at £2 per
tonne increasing to £.2 50 from 1 Apnl 2008
Astandard rate of £32 per tonne applies to all
other taxable waste {up from £24 10 2007/08)
which 1s due to nse by a further £8 per tonne
per annum to reach a level of £48 per tonne
n 2010/11
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Planning for landfill sites and waste and
recycling infrastructure

All waste management faolibes including the
development and expansion of landfll sites,
are subject to planmng permissien from the
relevant local authonty Major facibties such
as EFW plants above 50MW must also receve
consent from the Secretary of State for
Business, Enterpnse and Regulatory Reform
In addibon sigmficant faclibes including
landfill sites and waste treatment fanhties
require an Emaronmental Permit (previously a
Pollutron Prevention and Controel (PPC) permit)
frem the relevant regulator

Vindor bebieves that good environmental

and operational management 15 imnpartant
nwinmng future planming consents It has
acheved 150 14001 (Environmental
Management Systems} accreditation at all

of its key sites and 15 now implementing its
Business Management System ncorporating
externally accredited environmental, quality
and health and safety management standards

Planming applications are subject to ngorous
assessment by local authonties who will
constder them agawnst the backdrop of pohicies
contaned within waste local plans that have
been adopted for thewr areas Applications
have to address a wide range of 1ssues and the
relevant regulator s a statutory censultee n
this process




Integrated municipal waste management
contracts and the role of Private Finance
Initsatives or Public Private Partnerships

To assist 1in meeting their landfll chversion
targets, many local authonties are seeking

to let integrated waste management contracts
covening a range of actvities often including
household waste recycling sites (HWRS),
composting, recycling and recovery, EFW,
waste transfer and butk transport and

final disposal

In 2 number of instances these will be

financed under PFI arrangements where

local authonties apply to the Government for
funding of capital projects which fall within
the ehgibility cntera Successful apphcants
recewve cash funds (known as PFI credits) which
do not have to be repaid and can be used by
the local authonty to fund a proportion of the
capital and operating expenditures needed for
the project

Counaols may also choose to let long-term
contracts using PPP arrangements Under this
they farego the complexities of securing PFI
credits Vindor considers that the nature of
the contract s very ssimilar whether 1t1s a PFI
or a PPP The Instituben of Cvil Engineers
estimates that as much as £30 bilhon of
nvestment will be required i the UK to

meet mumopal waste landfill diversion
targets by 2020

Vindor has been operating a PFI contract with
West Sussex County Counal since Apnl 2005
In May 2006 Vindor signed a 25-year PPP
contract with Somerset County Counol, at the

same time acquinng Somerset's Local Authonty
Waste Dhsposal Company (LAWDC), Wyvern
Waste Services which has been renamed Vindor
Waste (Somerset) The Vindor/Laing consortium
15 expected to reach finanoal close shortly for
the Greater Manchester Waste Disposal
Authanty PFI contract

Vindor recognises that there s a range

of nsks associated with entening into such
contracts, which are often for a 25-year term
However, subject to a careful assessment of
the nsks on a contract-by-contract basis, the
company will continue seeking to secure
such contracts

Waste Regulation Environment

EU directives and related UK legislation, as
well as planmng and hicensing, have been
referred to previously

The Environment Agency (EA) and the Scettish
Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) momtor
performance agawnst permit condihons and
general environmental law Breaches are subject
to prosecution The EA and SEPA can also
require the operator to undertake upgrades to
ensure future compliance and, where 2 polluben
mnadent or beence breach has occurred, for
remedial action to be undertaken

Waste faolhihes are also subject to the same
regulations as other industnes, ncluding
health and safety, control of substances
hazardous to health and the Working Time
Directive In addihion the transport of waste
15 subject to speafic controls

Vindor

Renewables Obligation (RO)

Under the RO the Government has a target
to generate 10% of UK electnaity usage from
renewables by 2010, and 15% by 2015
{compared with under 5% generation from
renewables at present) The EU has an
aspirational target to generate 20% of total
energy from renewables by 2020 (which
equates to over 30% of electnoty from
renewables in the UK)

Praeduction of renewable energy 15 incentivised
under the system of ROCs whereby renewable
energy generators get a prermum in addibon
to the underlying ‘brown energy’ pnce for
ther preduchon This premium relates to the
balance between actual UK cutput and target
UK output At present the UK1s behind target
and many believe 1t will remain so for some
consderable tme Eligibibity for ROCs 15
governed by complex rules Landfll gas,
anaerobic digestion and certawn other waste
technologies are elhgible

A recent change was the introduction of
the banding of ROCs This will mean that all
landfill gas projects accredited by 1 Apnl
2009 will continue to receive one ROC per
Megawatt hour Those accredited after that
date will recewe 25% of one ROC Vindoris
currently ensunng that the vast majonty of
1ts capacity 1s accredited by 1 Apnl 2009

In addtion certan techneologies such as
Anaerobic Dygestion (AD) have been
ncentvised with double ROCs Vandor 1s
pursuing a number of AD ptanmng apphcations
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY/RELATIONSHIPS

EMPLOYEES

The company employs a comprehensive range of techmcal and professional managenal personnel
and supenisary, admimstrative, clencal, sem-shilled and unshlled staff Many are vocationally
trasned and have extensive operattonal expenence Membership of relevant trade and professional
bodies 1s widespread and 15 encouraged

Vindor’s equal opportumties pohicies and procedures seek to ensure that bias and discnmination in
the treatment of Job applicants and employees on grounds of dsabibty are ebrminated Trawing and
appropnate support are provided to ymplement this throughout the company If an employee becomes
disabled whilst in the company’s employment, every effort1s made to make reasonable adjustments

Vindor s pursuing a number of occupational health and safety imbiatives It currently has six sites
accredited to the JHSAS18001 1nternational health and safety standard and 1s extending this across
further sites as part of its integrated business management system All other sites are covered by the
company’s environmental management system (EMS) (most accredited to 15014001), whichis also
the vemcle for delivenng heatth and safety standards and procedures

Vindor's reportable acadent rate per 1,000 employees 1s an wmportant KPI and s set out below for
the five year penod 2003 to 2007 The company was disappointed to note that the rate rose to

21 421n 2007 compared with 18 181 2006 This increase in reportable acoidents was due pnmanly
to anncrease in manual handling type injunes and 1s attnbutable to the change 1 business mix as
more labour intensive recycling businesses are acquired or developed All other acoident types have
fallen shightly Despite continuing to compare favourably with ndustry averages, Vindor’s focus on
health and safety 1mprovement and performance remarns strong and 1t has re-doubled its efforts to
reduce manual handhng type acadents The company has recruited addibonal health and safety
professionals duning the year and continues te raise the level of traiming and support available

1o 1ts staff

RIDDOR acadent and wncident rates

ENVIRONMENT

The most sigmficant positive enviranmental wmpacts of Vindor’s operations anse from the safe and
efficient disposal of society’s waste matenals, increased resource and energy efficency fromits
recyching and recovery operations, the capture of methane (a greenhouse gas 21 himes as petent

as C0z), the generation of renewable energy, and the restoration of despeiled landscapes such as
disused mineral workings through the controlled deposit of waste matenals Sigmficant negative
wmpacts include transportatign and assonated emissigns, methane produchan {where not harnessed
for energy generation or flared), leachate production and potential local impacts such as dust, noise,
htter and odour

Vindor developed 1ts own EMS n the early 1990s recogmsing the growing ympertance of measunng
and momtonng the emaronmental impact of 1ts operattons This has allowed targets to be set and
met to maximise positive environmental impacts and reduce negatwe 1mpacts, resulting 1n
continuous ymprovement in environmental performance

Vindor was the first UK waste company to achieve IS0 14001 accreditation across all major
operational sites and has 53 accredited centres covenng 145 operational faclities as at

31 March 2008 The company 1s now mplementing its Business Management System {BMS) which
ncorporates externally accredited environmental, quality and health and safety management systems
Three BMS accreditabions were achieved 1n the yearin addibon to one PAS99 accreditation for the
Crayford MRF It has also ptayed a leading role 1n developing and reporting against the
environmental performance indicators for the waste industry as promoted by the Green Albance

The amount of waste recycled by the company increased over the year to 1 4 milhon tonnes
(1 2 million tonnes in 2006/07)
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SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

tandfill (and many other facihties) require
waste management bieences or environmental
and PPC permits, 1ssued and momtored by the
EA and SEPA Vindor maintains a postive
working relationship with the regulators,
proacbvely laising on, and managing 1ssues
at, both a site-speaific and strategic tevel

A ‘goed neighbour’ pebicy 1s implemented at all
faclities managed by Vindor with local baison
groups at most major sites consisting of locally
elected representatwes of the commumty
meeting reqularly to be consulted and informed
about the company’s plans and operating
procedures Lison groups also include represen-
tatwes of the regulator, the relevant planmng
authonty and other key local stakehotders

Vindor alse fully partaipates n the Landfitl
Commumities Fund, a scheme whereby a
proporhon of Landfill Tax can be claimed as
credits and distnbuted to quabifyang commumty
and environmental projects Dunng the year
Vindor provided £9 2 mlbon to Vindor Credits
Emaronmental Company, an independent
distnbutive environmental bedy Funding1s
allocated at grassroots level by steening groups
established to serve areas close to operational
landfill sites

KEY CONTRACTUAL AND OTHER
ARRANGEMENTS

Local authontes are the largest single customer
group accaunting in total for 30% of the company's
revenue Nowndwidual authenty accounts for more
than 4% Vindor’s ROC contracts account for 6%
of revenue pnmanly with ane customer No suppher
accounts for more than 1% of Vindor’s revenue
The company sources from competitive markets

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Increases in landfill costs may not be
recovered through price increases

The ra1sing of emvronmental standards 15 leading
te a gradual increase 1n landfill costs in general.
Particular areas of cost increases include site
engineenng (which results in mereased
depreaiation), restoraton and aftercare costs
(see below), leachate management, landfill gas
management and general site management
Compames such as Vindor with landfitls
engineered to modern standards and which have
good environmental control systems, should incur
lower than average increases \n costs However,
there remawns a nsk that nsing standards may
generate lgher treatment and disposal costs than
currently assumed Landfill sites are filled and
restored on a cell-bycell basis After site closure
final restoration and aftercare are undertaken in
accordance with the planming permission for the
site The costs related to aftercare are expected

to continue for around 30 years post closure
These costs are best estmates based on Vindor’s
own extensive expenence and they are updated at
each stage of the capital expendhture pragramme
Nevertheless, as with any estmate of future costs,
there1s a nsk that circumstances may change
which may affect the level of the costs




The costs are charged on a landfll usage basis,
1e pertonnemnput Thisis calculated by
dwiding the total expected cost by the number
of tonnes expected to be mputinto the site up
toits closure This number 1s denved from the
remaiming void space, as eshmated by external
consultants, and eshmated compagtion rates
(tonnes per cubic metre) These are best
estimates, based on current informahon, which
are reviewed every year However, to the extent
that tonnages are over or underesnmated, there
15 a nsk that the amount provided may be too
mgh or low

Municipal waste contracts typically last for a
number of years They usually have provision
for pnce increases under set formulae covenng
nflation as measured by the RP1 and in some
cases speafic legislative or technical changes
Pnces for other types of waste depend more on
local markets and competitive condions
Vindor’s expenence over a number of yearss
that pnces as a long-term trend have nsen fast
encugh at least to cover cost increases in the
areas where 1t operates, although 1nindwdual
years pnce increases may have been less than
costincreases There remains a nsk that tandfill
pnces may not nse sufficently 1n all lecabons
and n all years to recover recent and projected
cost increases

The UK Government s Waste Strategy,
stemming from the Landfill Diractive, will
lead to a reduction In volumes of waste
betng disposed of to landfill

Vindor focuses on the landfill disposal

of mumopal, ndustnal and commerqal,
censtruction and demolitson waste

Around 30%, approaching 20 mlhon tonnes

of the UK total for these waste streams is
mumaipal, of which approximately two

thirds 1s brodegradable mumopal waste

These figures are based on estimates from DEFRA,
the EA, SEPA and HM Revenue & Customs

Existing Government imihatwes are having
anmpact and the amount of mumaopal waste
being disposed of to landfill1s now declining
Assuming the EU Landfill Directive targets are
met, the total amount of mumopal sobid waste
which will be landfilled from 2020 will be under
10 milhon tonnes per annum (depending en the
prease nterpretanon of the Directive)

Ifthere s no change in other waste streams,
this would still leave a substantal landfill
marketin 2020 This should be seen in the
context of EA eshimates of a current consented
landfill capaoity UK-wide of around six to

Seven years

Generally, Vindar has seen its underlying landfill
volumes holding steady with a smallincrease in
2007/08, probably reflecting a greater share of
the landfill market However, the combined
effect of the vanous Government measures1s
trkely to continue to reduce the total amount of
waste being landfilled in the UK n the future

Ligund waste senaces

Vindor
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Not all landfills may meet the standards
of the Integrated Pollution Prevention
and Control Directive and the Landfill
Directive, or requirements may be
imposed which would impact adversely
on the economics of landfill

Landfills (and other industnal processes)

1n the UK are subject to a permitting reqime
pursuant to the Poltution Prevention and
Control {England and Wales) Regulabons
2000 (PPC Regulatons), superseded in
England and Wales by the Emvronmental
Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations
2007 Existing landfills which opened before
July 2001 operated under waste management
licences but subsequently required a PPC
permit granted under the PPC Requlations
PPC permits often wmposed higher standards
and costsin general PPC permits in England
and Wales automatically became Environ-
mental Perrmts from Apnl 2008 Any landfills
which fail to obtawn a perrt wilt be subject
to a closure plan with the EA or SEPA

The net result of this1s that 1t1s expected
that, after a transihonal pened, the average
techmcal and operatonal standards of landfll
n the UK willimprove and that the number of
landhlls may decrease All but one of Vindor's
operational landfills have achieved PPC
permits though in some cases the company
1s appeabing against certain of the conditions
proposed, which might have cost or other
imphcatbions for the landfills The operational
landhlt winch has not yet recewved a permit1s
currently due to close 1n 2009

The EA 15 also considering the imphcations of
a December 2007 Court of Appeal judgment
regarding landhill ‘mggybacking’ and the
Groundwater Directwe, and how this affects
Environmental Permits This may affect
sechions of a small number of Vindor sites

Under both waste management licences

and permits, landfills require expenditure

on restoration when the site 1s closed and
subsequently on aftercare (maintenance,
supervision, monitoring and management of
gas and leachate levels) long after the land-
fillng achivities have ceased The £A or SEPA
will only grant a full or partial beence or
permit surrender once 1t 1s sabsfied that the
landfill no longer poses any environmental nsk
There may still be a nsk of habhty ansing from
any residual contammnation following the
surrender of the permmt Landfll bcences or
permits cannot be surrendered dunng the
aftercare penod

Pricing and other risks relating to
renewable energy

Renewable energy pnces under the current
ROCs scheme are pnmanly a function of the
underlywng ‘brown energy’ pnce and the
premium acheved from the sale of ROCs

Underlying ‘brown energy” pnces rose signifi-
cantly 1in 2006/07 reflecting the general energy
supply/demand posihon 1n the UK and worldwide

Business review

‘Brown energy’ pnces fell back sigmficantly in
2007/08 but have increased for 2008/09 In hne
with 1ts current policy, Vindor has sold energy
approximately one year ahead

‘Brown energy’ pnces will continue to be
determined by the world and UK energy markets
and may go down as well as up Any changesmn
underlying enerqgy prices will directly affect
Vindor’'s revenues when its sales contracts come
up for renewal

lis an important component of overall ‘brown
energy’ pnces Winlst Vindor's power generation
business may be positively affected by increases
m o1l pnees, other parts of the business, n
particular collechon, may be adversely affected

Without a pncaing mechamsm such as ROCs,
further 1nvestment n renewable energy
generation would not generally be econommc
The Government has made a strong commitment
to renewables which are key to meeting the
long-term carbon reduction strategy set outin
the energy white paper and the UK's targets

far €0z reductions under the Kyoto Protocol
Renewables are also important in mimmsing
the UK's increasing rebance onimported energy
Nevertheless, there remains a nsk that the
Government may change the pnang mechamsm
ROC banding 1s referred to on page 23

The value of ROCs 15 increased by the shanng of
the buy-out pnce momes among helders of ROCs
The value of a ROC depends on the supply of
renewable electnaty relatwe to the UK's
annually increasing targets If large amounts

of renewable energy generating capaaty ganed
planmng permission and commenced operations
there 1s a nsk that the value of a ROC would
decline The value of ROCs s also dependent on
the finanaal strength of those supplers who opt
to pay the buy-out pnce Thereis a nsk that the
nsolvency of a freensed electnaty supplber could
lead to a drop n the value of the ROCs which
Vindor sells to hcensed suppliers

A landfill gas project must be able to collect
and burn sufficient gas to produce electnoty
Ulhmately, the volume of gas generated wall
depend on the amount and compositien of the
waste landfilled For example, as the amount of
modegradable mumapal waste diverted away
from landfill1s 1ncreased 1n the future 1n
accordance with the EU Landfill Directive
obligations, the total biodegradable component
of the waste going to landfill will reduce,
affecting the velumes of {andfill gas preduced
It 1s therefore possible that the gas obtaned
wll not be available exther in the amounts or

of the calonfic value required to make a project
cost effective

Lakeside EfW construction and
technical risks

The Lakeside joint venture involves building a
410,000 tonnes EAW capacity plant at a cost of
around £160 milbon and operating 1t for 25 years
86% of the project 1s funded by non-recourse
bank debt which tmits the finanoal nsk to
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Pennan Group The remainders funded by
the yoint venture, 1n which Vindor has 50%
of the equity

The plant 15 a modern conventional

EFW facility As a result of a compehtwe
procurement procedure 1t1s being supphed

by the Japanese consorbum Itochu/Takuma
1n accordance with a fixed pnce contract which
was drawn up with the assistance of speciabist
external consultants Nevertheless, as with
any major infrastructure project, unforeseen
arcumstances may anse which may affect

or delay the construction process Thereis a
sigmficant number of stmilar plants operating
successfully worldwide

Efficencies and output of the plant will be
affected by the prease calonfic value of the
waste throughput The plant s well proven
andt1s a robust conventional technology
designed to take the currently projected

waste mix Nevertheless, of the mix of the waste
changes sigmficantly over the next 25 years,
there may be some adverse impact on
efficencies and output

The current planning regime may
restrict the availability of future waste
treatment facilities

Achievement of the Government's targets for
waste management s cniically dependent on
the planming system delivenng sufficent
waste treatment facihties Obtairing planmng
permissian for any type of waste treatment
fachity 1s difficult and will represent a major
challenge for the waste management industry

Continued skills shortages in many
disciplines across the waste industry
place focus on recruitment and
retention of staff

Good quabty staff with the required techmeal
skills and cerbfication are essential in the
waste industry Vindor focuses on the best
possible employment polhoes to recruit

and retain quabity staff in all disciplines
Vindor seeks to be regarded as an employer
of choice n the sector and has embraced
many modern employment practices to allow
a flexible approach to employment terms
and conditions There 15 more to be achieved
but good progress has been made

Risks associated with long-term
Integrated contracts (including PFls
and PPPs)

Any long-term 1ntegrated contract has a
range of nsks assocated with it Indeed,

nsk transfers a key part of Government PFI
procurement guidelines The nsks include
waste volumes and mix, planmng, technology,
nput costs, and recyclate pnces A careful
assessment of the nsks and the appornonment
of them between chent, main contractor,
technology and equipment suppliers, and
subcontractors 15 a key part of the process of
dding and finabsing a contract



Vandor seeks to protect itself against the nsks 1n
such contracts n the first instance by carrying
out extensive due dibgence, tymeally using a
combination of externat adwisers and in-house
experts, 50 that nsks are correctly \dentfied

Vindor will then seek te protect itself against
the nsks idenhfied through contractual
documentation with 1ts chent, subcontractors
and sub-supphers The degree it does so
depends of course on the other parties’
atttude to nsk transfer and on the speofic
commeraat situation

To the degree that Vindor1s not able to {or
chooses not to) cover off all the nsks 1dentified n
the contractual documentation, then st includes
n its pnce an assessment of a reasonable return
for accephing such nsks Vindor takes a rebust
approach on tms 1ssue If it cannot cover off the
nsks sabsfactonly or cannot get a reasonable
commercial return for taking such nsks, 1ts pohicy
1s to accept the loss of such a contract rather
than win 1t on unsansfactory terms

Whilst vindor's policy on such nsks 15 careful
and robust, there rerains a nsk that Vindor's
commercal assessment will not be sabsfactory
and the results from such contracts wli

be adverse

Recyclate Price Risks

Recycling 1s becoming an increasingly
wmportant part of Vindor's business Recyclate
pnces are dnven by global supply/demand

trends amoeng manufactunng reprocessors
who wish to use the recyclate, coupled with
natwonal and European legislabon setting
targets for landfill dversion, recovery and
use based on ‘polluter pays’ pnnaiples
Reprocessing capaoty in the UK s fimite
with irmted growth forecast, whilstancreasing
amounts of recyclate are being sought by,
and exported to, the rapidly expanding
major manufactunng locatons i China
and elsewhere

Non-European export prnices and frerght costs
for recyclate are setn US dollars They can be
expected to vary with the world and regional
economic cycles and with the environmental
ympact and wncreasing cost of sourang and
processing competing virgin raw matenals
They may also be expected to adjust over time
for movements w the value of the US dollar

Vindor may mihgate any recyclate prce nsk
by shanng downsides/upsides with both its
clients and customers Nevertheless recyclates
are essenbally global commedibes and
therefore there remains a nsk that profits

in recychng may be adversely or positively
affected by movements in recyclate prices

Landfill void space and power
generation calculations

The landfill vord space figures quoted n this
review 1n relation to Vindor aren respect of
consented void only {veid with planmng
permssion for landfiling)

Viridor

The vord space figures are based upon Vindor's
most recent assessment of vord avarlable to the
company for waste and daily cover matenals

The vod figures have been assessed using
pre-settlement levels (based upon the extent of
the planmng consent), proposed base levels
{based upon the terms of the site licence/ perrmt}
and exishing waste surfaces {determned by
survey) These calculations necessanly involve an
etement of management judgement and are
based on certain other assumptions (such as the
waste mix profile of a site) However, Vindor 1s of
the opimon that its calculation methodologres are
n hine with convention typical m the landfill
ndustry Thevoid actually available at any one
tsme may be different from the figures quoted
The gas/electntity generating capaaty of
Windor 1s defined by the Megawatt capanty of
the engines mstalled on landhll sites through
which the gas passes to generate electnaty
Modelling future power generahon requires
consideration of a number of factors including
the waste mass and composition already

n place and volumes of gas currently

beng extracted In addihon the model
requires an assessment of how the current
position 15 expected to change throughout each
site’s remaimng hfe as an operational landfill
and beyond into the aftercare penod Any such
assessment requires certain assumphons to be
made including 1n relation to the amount of
waste 1n the site, 1ts biodegradable content, the
age of the waste and the bkelihood of obtaimng
a gnd connechon at an economic cost

Left Automated matenals recyching
Above Waste transfer stabon
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Dawvid Dupont
Pennon GFOUP Group Directer of Finance

Pennon Group Ple

The Group s financial results showed continued growth in both revenue and
profit from both main businesses

KEY PERFORMANCE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS
The Drectors assess the financial All figures relate to underlying business performance (as defined below)
performance of the Group through unless otherwse stated.

Profit before tax (PBT) 2007/08  2006/07
PBY has grown by 17 5% CAGR over the £m m
last five years OPERATING PROFIT

Statutory operating profit 2368 2000
Non-underlying costs

- Restructunng - South West Water 4.0 03
- Intangibles amortisation — Vindor 1.3 18
Underlying operating profit 2421 2021
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Statutory profit before tax 149 6 131 1
Non-underlywng costs

- Restructuning — South West Water 40 03
- Intangibles amortisation — Vindor 13 18
Underlying profit before tax 154.9 1332
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Statutory earmings per share 38 2p 26 5p
Non-underlying costs

- Restructunng — South West Water 0.9 01
~ Intangibles amortisation - Vandor 04 05
Deferred tax (2.6) 38
Underlying earnings per share 36.9p 30 9p

Earmngs per share {EPS)

Growth

18 4%

19 8%

14 1%

16 3%

44 2%

19 4%

Underlying results exclude restructuning costs, intangibles amortisation and deferred tax
EPS has grown by 16 7% CAGR over the The Directors believe that the underlying measures provide more representative information

tast five years on business trends and performance The term underlying 1s not a defined term under IFRS

and may not be comparable with stmlarly titled measures used by other compames

Operating costs

Group operating costs totalled £633 million and included the following major categones

of expenditure

Depreciation

Landfill tax

Manpower

Transport

Property

Power

Raw matenals and consumables
Abstraction and discharge consents

Lease rentals - plant and machinery
Statutory operating bcences and royalties
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Finance costs

Net finance costs were £87 4 million (2006/07
£69 2 mlhon) and were 2 8 times covered by
Group operating profits (2006/07 2 9 times)

Gross finance costs were £129 4 million
Gross finance income of £42 0 milhion
included £21 0 milbon from the investment
of temporanly surplus funds

Net nterest payable represents a rate of 5 3%
when measured against average net debt
(2006/07 4 6%) and demonstrates the Group's
effective management of interest rates

Over the {ast five years interest rates on
average net debt for the Group have been

Interest rate on average net debt

South West Water's average mnterest rate on net
debt was 4 5% (2006/07 4 3%)

Interest rate management 1s analysed further on
page 32

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was £154 9 mlhon, £21 7 mlbon

up on 2006/07, an ncrease of 16 3%

Taxation

The corporation tax charge for the year was
£25 0 milbon, ncluding £0 7 million tax rebief
on restructunng costs (2006/07 £23 9 mthon}

The deferred tax charge for the year was a credit of

£9 0 milhon (2006/07 a charge of £13 3 milhon)

A non-recurnng credit of £21 0 milbon i 2007/08

reflected the reduction of UK corporation tax
from 30% to 28% effective from 1 Apnl 2008

The abolition of industnal buildings allowances 15
contained 1n the Finance Bill 2008 and, f fully
enacted, 1s bkely to increase the deferred tax
hababty by an estimated £30 milbonn 2008/09

Earnings per share

Earnings per share increased by 19 4% to 36 9p
Statutory earmings per share increased from

26 5pto 38 2p

The werghted average number of shares in 1ssue
dunng the year was 349 7 milhon (2006/07
353 9 milbon) The value of net assets per share
at book value at 31 March 2008 was 184p

Pennen Group

Pennon Group focus

The Board s strategy I1s to promote the success

of the Group for the benefit of its shareholders
through 1ts focus on water and sewerage services
and waste management, underpinned by
efficient finance

Above Vindor fleet vehicles
Top Roadferd Lake
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Dividends and retained earnings

The statutory net profit of £133 6 milbon has
been transferred to reserves

The Dwrectors recommend the payment of a
final dmdend of 13 56p per share for the year
ended 31 March 2008 Tegether with the
intenm twrdend of 6 25p per share pavd on

9 Apnl 2008, this gives a total dwidend for the
year of 19 81p per share, an increase of 6 8%
compared with 2006/07 Proposed dwidends
of £69 1 mlhon (2006/07 £65 6 milhon) are
covered 1 9 bmes (2006/07 1 7 times) by
profit after tax Dwadends are charged aganst
retawned earnings in the year in which they
are pad

Dividend policy

The Group 15 commtted to a progressve
dwdend policy of 3% per annum increase
above inflation in dwidend per share until
2009/10

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Details of the financial performance of South
West Water and Vindor are set out 1n this
business review on pages 6 and 16

Debt profile

At 31 March 2008, loans and finance lease
obligations were £2,121 milion and the Group
held cash and deposits of £357 milbon

Durning 2007/08 the follewzng finance
imbatives were implemented

In South West Water

£200 mlbon 1 95% ndex-binked bonds due
2057 —1ssued at £208 mithon qving a real
rate of 1 86%

£93 mlhon 13 year finance lease extension
£50 milhon finance lease drawdown for

long-hfe assets which were previously treated
for tax purposes as industnal buinldngs

£50 milhon finance lease drawdown for
water mains rehablitation

In the Company*
£100 mlhon bonds due 2022

In Vindor
£10 mulbon sub-LIBOR finance lease

Pennon Group debt has a matunty of 0-49 years
with average matunty increasing dunng the
year from 16 to 24 years as a result of

these imbatves

Business review

CASHFLOWS
2007/08 2006/07
£m fm
Cash inflow from operations 356 314 |
Pension prepayment {19) {9}
Net cash inflow from operations 337 305
Net interest pad (80) (52)
Dwadends and tax paid (86) (73)
Capital expenditure (218) (246)
Acquisihons/dsposals (89) (36)
Net cash outflow (136) (102)
Shares 1ssued - 2
Own shares acquired (net of proceeds on re-1ssue) (48) (6)
B Share payments - (6)
Debt acquired with acguisitions (16) (1) !
Debt indexation/interest accruals (5) (17) |
Increase n net borrowings {206) (130)

The larger increase 1n net borrowings compared with the pnor year was pnnapally attnbutable to
acquisitions, the share buy back and the prepayment of pension contributions

Duning the year new borrowings and finannal lease drawdowns, less debt repayments,
amounted to £426 milbon and as a result net cash and cash deposits increased by £222 milhon
to £339 milbon as at 31 March 2008

The major components of debt finance as at 31 March 2008 were

Within finance leasing £135 mihon {March 2007 £135 milbon) s index-linked debt

Share capital

The on-market share buy back programme 1s now complete with £49 3 milhon spent dunng the year
(2006/07 £3 5 mlhion) Of the shares acquired, 960,000 were cancelled and 7,285,008 held as treasury
shares Subsequently 873,602 treasury shares were re-1ssued under the Company's Sharesave Scheme
n 2007/08

Authonty was obtawned from shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 1n July 2007 to purchase up to
10% of the Company's ordnary share capital Simiar authonty will be sought at the July 2008 Annual
General Meeting
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Pennon Group

Left Bedruthan Steps - photography by John Laurence
Abeve Bndge over the River Exe
Top Waste water treatment works maintenance
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GROUP INVESTMENT

Business review

Capital expenditure by the Group on property, plant and equipment was £228 8 mlhon (2006/07 £245 1 mlhon) ‘

The major categones of expenditure compnsed

South West Water

ASSET VALUE OPINION

In the opimon of the Directors, the current market value of land and buildings 1s
not sigmhcantly different from the holding cost shownn the finangal statements

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Overall position

With year end net debt of £1,764 million, the
Group year end ratio of debt (equity plus debt)
was 73% (2006/07 71%)

The borrowing powers of the Directors are
linmted to two-and-a-half times adjusted capital
and reserves, as defined 1n the Company’s
Articles of Assooation At 31 March 2008,

the it was £2 3 balbon

The Drectors confirm that the Group can

meet its current requirements from the exasting
borrawing faclhibes without breachng
covenants or other borrowing restncoions

South West Water

South West Water's debt to Regulatory Capital
Value (RCV) was 60% at 31 March 2008

(2006/07 62%), within Cfwat’s ‘optimum range’

of 55%-65% The scale of the remaiming K4
nvestment programme means that this rabo s
expected to remain relatively stable up to 2010

Viridor

Vindor1s funded by a combination of Pennon
Group equity and debt (ra1sed by Pennon
Group) and direct borrowing by Vindor At the
year end, Vindor’s net debt stood at £383
milbon {March 2007 £257 milhon), equivalent
to 3 8 tmes EBITDA (2006/07 3 1 times)

TREASURY OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s treasury function seeks to ensure
that suffiment funding 1s available to meet
foreseeable needs, maintain reasonable
headroom for contingencies and manage
interest rate nsk It operates within pohoes
approved by the Board and does not undertake
any speculative trading actmty

Interest rate management

Net finance costs of £87 4 milhon equated to
an average interest rate of 5 3% for the Group
South West Water's average interest rate
equated to 4 5%

The Group’s exposure to interest rate
movements 1s managed by the use of interest
rate denvatives The Board's policy 1s that in
any one year at least 50% of net debt s fixed
Interest rate swaps are used to manage the
mix of fixed and floating rates The Group has
taken advantage of relatwely low nterest rates
to fix approximately 60% of existing net debt
up to 31 March 2010 In addion South West
Water has index-linked approxamately 25% of
1ts current net debt up to 2041~ 2057

South West Water's total wndex-binked debt of
£347 milhon has an average real interest rate
of 1 66% The interest vate for index-hnked
debt 1s based upon an RPI measure which1s
also used in determiming the amount of
nceme from customers 1n South West Water

At 31 March 2008 the Group had interest rate
swaps to convert floating rate habibhes to

Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts

Vindor

In addition, capitat expenditure in the Lakeside
joint venture was £65 milbon {cumulative
£135 milbon}

fixed rate and hedge financial habilihes

with a notwnal value of £634 mibion and

a weighted average matunty of 2 1 years
(2007 £636 mlhon, with 3 1 years)

The weighted average 1nterest rate of the
swaps for tharr nomnal amount was 4 8%
(2007 4 8%) The notional pnncaipal amounts
of the interest rate swaps are used to
determine settlement under those swaps and
are not, therefore, an exposure for the Group
These nstruments are analysed wn more detal
n note 22 te the financal statements

The fair value of borrowangs, based on

the market value of equivalent \nstruments
at the balance sheet date, 1s detaaled in
note 26 to the finanaal statements and
amounted te a £170 milbtion beneht
compared with book value as at 31 March
2008 (2007 £117 mlhon}

Refinancing risk management

Refinanaing nsk1s managed under the
Group Policy so that no more than 20% of
Group net debt s permitted to maturein
any finanoal year

The Group had undrawn committed bank
faolities of £185 mithon as at 31 March 2008

Surplus funds of the Group are usually placed
n short-term fixed 1nterest deposits or the

|
Counterparty risk management
overmght money markets |
\
|
|
|




Counterparty nsk anses from the investment of surplus
funds and from the use of denvative instruments

The Board has agreed a pehcy for managing such
nsk, which 1s controlled through credit hmits,
counterparty approvals, and ngorous mamtoring
procedures All deposits are with counterparhes
which have a credit vating approved by the Board

LIQuIDITY

1t1s Group pohicy to ensure that the Group has
committed loan faolities equivalent to at least one
year's forecast reguirements at all times Thisas
achieved through the use of credit faalitres which
are uhbised as required and refinanced using
drawdowns for longer-term faalties Payment
commitments are expected to be met on the loan
refinancing as required dunng the corming penod

INTERNAL TRANSFERS

Far requlatory purposes, South West Water funding
15 treated as effectvely nng-fenced Funds raised by
or for South West Water are used 1n the appointed
business (provision of water and sewerage services)
and are not available as long-term fundng for the
rest of the Group

KEY CONTRACTUAL AND
OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

The majonty of the Group’s debt1s raised by

finance leasing

European Investment Bank loans
bank tlateral faclines

private placements

mdex-linked bonds

COVENANTS

Pennon Group and South West Water have entered
nto covenants with lenders Whilst terms vary, these
typically provide for hmits on geanng {pnmanly
based on South West Water’s Regulatory Capital
Value and Vindor's EBITDA) and 1nterest cover

Redemptien penaltres included 1n the facility
documentation can be 1nvoked 1f debt fanbties
are redeemed early The redemption penalties
varyn each faclity

The financial covenants included in the Group’s
debt facilities are momtored on a regular basis

The financial covenants offered by the Group
include a provision to re-test the covenants applying
to frozen GAAP accounting standards Thisisto *
protect the Group from changes 1n accounting
standards that may have a detnmental impact on
the finanoal covenant testing methodology

TAXATION OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Pennon Group’s tax strategy 1s to enhance
shareholder value by legally mmmsing taxes

whilst having regard to the longer-term retationships
with the taxing authonties The Group will consider
bona fide business arrangements which quabfy for
tax exempbon or tax relief

The Group has a taxation poticy which has been
reviewed and approved by the Board with the
gurdance of the Group Director of Finance

A matenal tax nsk for the Group 15 the possibility
that the capital expenditure qualifying for capitat
allowances 1s mis-allocated or categonsed
ncorrectly, resulting in under-claims or over-claims
of tax reliefs This nsk1s managed by employing
professional tax consultants with expenence of
analysing the types of speciabist assets nvolved

Pennon Group

Above 0ld groyne ~ photography by Rob Kendall
Top Surfer at Newquay — photography by Jehn Pernam
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TAXATION OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
continued

The current corporation tax charge of £25 milhon
was less than the charge which would have
ansen from the accounting profit of £150
milhon taxed at the statutory corperation tax
rate of 30% A reconaibathon s provided n
note 8 to the finanmal statements

The Group’s total tax contnbuton extends
beyond the corporabon tax charge Avanety
of taxes are ncurred by the Group

Total tax contnbuhon 2007/08

Business review

The most sigmficant taxes involved and ther
profit impact were

landfill tax of £124 millon was accounted

for by the Group on behalf of the taxation
authonbes Landhlltax s an operating cost
which 1s recovered from customers wn turnover
The ympact on profit before taxis ml

Value Added Tax (VAT) of £10 milbon (net)
was collected by the Group and pard to the
taxation authonbies VAT has no matenal
1mpact on profit before tax

business rates of £21 million were

pavd dunng the year to local authonbes
These are a direct cost to the Group
and reduce profit before tax

employment taxes of £31 mlhon contained
employees”'Pay As You Earn’ (PAYE) and total
Natonal Insurance Contnbutsons {NICs)
Employer NICs of £8 milhon were expensed
around 91% to operating costs and around
9% to fixed assets

Fuel Exase Duty of £10 milbhon related to
transport costs This reduced profit
before tax

The Group’s total tax contnbution 1 2007/08
was £64 milbion, with a further £159 mithon
collected on behalf of the tax authonties
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PENSIONS

The Group has defined benefit pension
schemes for exishing staff of Pennon and
South West Water, and for certain employees
of Vindor

Employer costs have been contained through
the introduction of defined contnbution
arrangements for Vindor employees from 2003
and for new South West Water employees from
Apnl 2008

Employee contnbutions for defined benefit
membershipincreased 1n 2006 and will
wncrease further from April 2008 to reflect
the results of the 2007 actuanal valuation

The Group pension schemes had net babilihes
{before deferred tax) at 31 March 2008 of
£26 mihon (2007 £41 mllien) Anincrease
1n the market interest rate used to discount
habihties has been offset by adverse
nvestment performance from market volahlity
The tnenmal actuanal valuation for March
2007 has been completed and has resulted in
higher future service costs and defiot recovery
contnbutions The longewvity assumption has
been strengthened to a scheme-speahc
‘medium cohort’ basis which allows for
improved bfe expectancy for existing and
future pensioners A further £19 milion
prepayment of employer contnbuhons was
made dunng the year

The net habihties (after deferred tax) of
£19 milhon represent just under 1% of the
Group’s total market capitabisation as at
31 March 2008




INSURANCE

The Group manages property and third party
nsks by the purchase of insurance pohicies
Mawn insurance pehicies cover property,
business interruption, pubhc bahlity,
environmental pollution and employers’
habibity There are three ters of insurance for
most pohces The first tier 15 self-insurance 1n
the form of a moderate deductible The second
tier 15 covered by the Group's subsidhary,
Pemnsula Insurance Limted, which insures
the layer of nsk between the deductible and
the cover provided by externalinsurers

The third tier of nsk 1s placed with the
external insurance market The Group’s
nsurance brokers assist 1n souraing
appropnate 1nsurance cover frem nsurance
companmies which have good credit ratings

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

it may not be possible to continue to
sustam the same level of earnings and
growth of the Group as in the past

Theres a nsk to shareholder valuef the
Group 1s not able to continue to grow its

key businesses and produce sustainable
earmngs growth This is dependent upon the
correct strateqies being pursued by strong and
able management within the Group as well as
an external factors

The Group has maintained earmings and has
successfully grown both South West Water
and Vindor and intends to continue to create
shareholder value through its strategic focus
on water and waste water senvices and

waste management

Pension risks

The future costs of defined beneht schemes are
subject to a number of factors including

the returns achveved on pension
fund investments

movements 1nnterest rates and inflation

pensioner longewvity

Treasury risks

These are discussed in the treasury objectives
and pobaes section on page 32

Tax risks

These are discussed n the taxation objectives
and policies sechion on page 33

Pennon Group

Above Wimbleball spillway

Left Venford Reservoir -
photography by James Saldwar
Middle bottom Hexworthy bndge —
photegraphy by Steve Chapple
Middle top Newquay sunset

Far left Grey seals - photography by
Lee Q'Dwyer
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OUR CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

WE OPERATE ENVIRONMENTALLY
SENSITIVE AND SUSTAINABLE
BUSINESSES

Pennon Group s committed to exemplary
engagement with society and to the conservation
and enhancement of the natural environment
Its socal and envirgnmental policy ensures that
these achwities are pursued, paying particular
attention to

operating through best prachce to ensure
the sustainalbty of its actvities by
maximsing the efficency of 1ts resource
uses, effecthve project and programme
delivery, and mmmsing waste

regularly assessing the Group’s built
hentage and ensunng 1ts long-term
preservabion

ensunng compbance with all health and
safety and environmental legislation,
regulatrons and codes of practice so
that 1ts conduct in these areas 1s of the
mghest possibte standard

undertaking wts achwities 1n 2 way that
minmises potential adverse effects on
soqiety, the environment and those lving
orworking in proxymty to the Group’s sites

procunng goods and sennces through
approved supphbers and contractors whose
products and sennces meet the Group's
requirements and whose quality and
environmental prachces correspond

with our own

undertaking longer-term strategic
assessments of 1ts actvities and
opportumties and adopting whole-bife
assessment methods for approaches that are
designed to benefit society, customers of
the Group, suppbers and partners, all other
stakeholders, and the emaronment

the chaltenges of chmate change Thiswill
nvolve achon to optimse energy and
resource effioency, maximse opportumbes
for renewable energy generation, and
reduce the emissions of greenhouse gases

reporting openly and transparently on
Group performance, sethng targets for
continuous improvement and momtonng
progress, and addressing nsk and adopting
pebaes related to wider sustainabibty
considerations n relation to its key
actvities of water supply, waste water
treatment and waste management

making non-operational land accessible to
the public where practicable to satisfy, as a
mmmum, the Group’s obligations under
the Countryside and Rights of Way Act
Wherever possible additional opportumbes
for conservation, access and recreation are
provided, subject to hezlth and safety and
environmental considerations

WE ALSO CARRY OUT QUR ACTIVITIES IN
AN ETHICAL MANNER

Overlaying our social and emvironmental pelicy
15 our ethical pobcy The preservation of a
reputaten for integnty and fair dealing 1s of
paramount importance to the Group Such a
reputation 1s essential to the long-term well-
being of the Groupitself, its shareholders,
employees, customers, supplers and the
commumty 1n which 1t aperates To mantain this
reputahaon, Group compames are required to

conduct all transactions with farness and
honesty and in a professional manner

build and maintain relationsfps with all
parbes based on trust and treat everyone
with respect and digmty

not make any promses and commitments
which they do not have the intention to
fulfit, or which they do not bebeve they
have the resources to meet

carry out all financal transactons and
finanoal reperting, with due observance
of all relevant laws, regulatons and
financal standards

avord any actvibes that could involve or lead
to involvement in any unlawful practice or
any harm to the Group's reputation orwmage

The Group has a ‘whistleblowing’ pobicy which
supports 1ts approach to ethical employment
practices by encouraging employees to raise,
n accordance with a formabsed procedure,
concerns which relate to potential unlawfut
conduct, financal malpractice, dangers to
the public or damage to the environment
This policy 1s reviewed regularly

Through 1ts Corporate Responsibility

Committee, the Pennon Group Board momitors
performance against its ethical pobey and

BatC Emnronment Index score
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its socetal, environmental and health and
safety targets Further detaits of the work of
this Committee are set out on page 55

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
HIGHLIGHTS

Pennon Group has achieved recogmtionn a
range of independent surveys the Busmessn
the Envirpnment Index, FISE4Good Index and
the Carbon Disclosure Project {CDP)

Both South West Water and Vandor have made
sigmificant advances 1n enhanang ther
environmental and commumty performance,
as set out in our Corporate Responsibibty
report available onbine from 4 July 2008 at
WWW pennen-group co uk

Investor Survey Results

In the Business wn the Commumty (BitC)
Emaronmental Index 2007, Pennon Group
scored 95 34% and has maintained 1ts bsting
in the Platinum rank B1tC commented “You
should be very proud of this exemplary result,
which reflects ighly on your business both
agawnst your competitors and absolutely ”

The Group continues to be a conshtuent
member of the FTSE4Good Index which
measures Corporate Social Responsibality

In the Co-op Investment research findings an
Ethcal Investing, Pennon Group was ranked 12th
1n a table of the 20 best firms in the FTSE 350

In June 2007 Pennon Group recewved a speDal
commendation for best use of electromce
communications 1n the South West Finanaal
and Corporate Commumications Award

These awards recogmise the region’s quoted
companes who have demonstrated best
prachce communications with thewr
stakeholders, including shareholders, the
financial press, analysts and employees




Pennon Group

Left Par beach boardwalk - photography by Olwer Denne
Above Land’s End - photegraphy by Michael Saldivar
Tap Mousehole harbour - photography by Michael Saldivar
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Carbon Disclosure Project [CDP}

Pennon Group’s ability to log 1ts carbon
footprint and assess how chmate change will

affect its business has put the Companyn the

lead amongst other corporations The COP
team awarded a ‘best reperting company’

Climate Change and Sustainability

Objective To take appropnate actron to mimmise emssions of greenhouse gases and to adapt to the

potenhalimpacts of chmate change

ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION AND GENERATION

status to 45 out of 245 FISE compames On-site electnaty consumed Gwh
who responded to the survey 0f these 45 South West Water(l 250
compames Pennon Group was the only water
and waste utibty bsted out of the five water \indor 11
utibties that reported
Total consumed 270
Compames respanded to a questionnaire Electnoty generation
with information on direct and indirect No of sites Capacity MW GWh
emissions, disposalissues, and details on South West Water
how they saw the nsks and opportumittes and - Hydro 7 6 12
their carbon reduction targets and strategres - Biogas from comtnned heat and power 7 1 5
COP collates data from major corporations
Vandor
around the world and their website 15 the — LandFill - biogast? 29 84 499
largest repository of corporate greenhouse
gas emissiens data in the world Total generated 516
Generated/consumed ratio 1M1%

{1} 1ncludes Pennon Group Plc and partners related actrty
(2} Includes subcontracted sites in Suffolk

Climate Change Strategy

The Group seeks to optimise energy efficency and maximse appropnate opportumbes for
renewable energy generation The Group will take appropnate achon to reduce the emissions of
greenhouse gases for which 1t s responsibile, wherever this 1s possible In planning for the future
the Group works to ensure its readiness to meet the challenge of maintaiming high quality levels of
sernce 1n the face of a changing chmate

Waste s currently the UK's main source of renewable energy (30% of renewables) and represents
1 5% of the electnaty from all sources According to the Institution of Gwvil Engineers this could
theoretically account for gver 15%, even if this 1s an over eshmateitas shill clear that waste can
make a majer contnbution to UK energy supples
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‘Green energy’ generated

On-site electnaty use in Pennon Group

Pennon Group

Carbon Reduction Commitment

Pennon Group1s prepanng for the
Government's ‘Carbon Reduction Commitment’
This 1s a mandatory enmssions traching scheme
based on reduchions 1n energy use for
commeroal and public sector orgamsations
using annually over 6,000 MWh of half hourly
metered electncity The baseline year for
energy use will be calendar year 2008, and the
earhiest the scheme will begin1s 2010, with the
capped phase beginming tn 2013 Companies 1n
the scheme will be placed 1n a league table
those which perform well will be rewarded and
those at the bottom wll face penalbies

Above Traiming at South West Water

Left Valley Cruz Boconnoc, Lostwithnel —
photography by Gary Chenery

Far left Godrevy Hayle, Cornwall -
photography by Michael Saldwar
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Directors’ report Business review

Internatienal Labour Organisation core

conventions Pennon Envirocnmental Awards

In comman with other responsible employers the
Group supports the pnnaiples of the International
Labour Orgamisation’s exght core convenbions for
the protection and safety of workforces Detals of
the Group’s employment prachices are set out on
pages 13, 24 and 45

In 2007 the winmng pnze was awarded to a

project which achieved emaronmental benefits

and cost savings whilst proactively managing

ultra-wvietet (UV) disinfection at Plymouth Central

waste water treatment works This type of

disinfection achieves the ighest standard of

effluent consentand 1s momtored by the

Emaronment Agency Comphance with UV consent

has been mamntained, with the site operabngn a

UV dose paced arrangement, switching banks of

lamps on and off as required This has prolonged

the operating bife of the lamps and saved about

£13,000 1n lamp costs n a year In addition, there were 520 fewer lamps (a hazardous waste)
dsposed of from this site Savings of almost £16,000 1n energy costs were made over a six month
penod, together with estinated savings of 95 tonnes of carbon thaxade These savings are on-
going and will give continued environmental benefits year on year

Renewable energy generation

Renewable energy1s generated by

both subsidianes Vindor's renewable power
generabon capaaty from landfill gas continues
to increase and 15 now 84MW Vindor captures
nearky 90% of the methane ansing from its
landfills and uses 70% of this for energy
generahon South West Water generates
renewable energy from hydro-power and

combined heat and power at waste water
treatment works

Net electricity export

Swnce 1999/2000, the Pennon Group has
exported more electncal energy each year than
it has consumed In 2007/08 Vindor and South
West Water generated 5166Wh renewable
energy through ther operations Thisas

191% of the Group's electnaity consumption

of 270GWh

Group transport

South West Water and Vindor review their
transport fleets regularly to meet their
operational reguwirements Emvaironmentat
cntena such as clean engine technology,
fuel efficiency, rebablity and end of hife
recyclability are considered dunng the
selection process
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Rebecca Bragg and Roger Wills recewe the trophy from Ken Harvey, Pennon Group chairman

Green Apple Awards

South West Waterss included n the Green
Orgamsation’s list of ‘Green Heroes’, and
1 2007, won a Green Apple Award for the
‘Sludge Judge’, which optimises moisture
content pnor to tankenng to save fuel and
1ncrease transport eficiencies This project
won the 2006 Pennon Emvironmental Award

Steve Chapple recerving the 2007 Green Apple
award from Professor Dawvid Bellamy OBE




COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Pennon Charitable Donations

The Pennon Chantable Donations Committee
provided a total of £64,297 funding to vanous
causes including Hayle Surf Life Saving Club,
Torbay and Seuth Deven Hespice and Dunsford
Pre-School Playgroup

Pennon Chantable Donations Committee
gave money to Vranch House 1n 2007/08
Photegraphy by John Sculpher

Pennon Environmental Fund

The Pennon Environmental Fund awarded
£53,700 to projects 1n 2007/08 includng church
and village hall vnprovements and vanous
habtat creahon schemes to benefit wildiife

Lamerton Sports and Commumty Hall

Vindor Credits Environmental Company (a Distributive Environmental Body)

Dunng the year Vindor donated £9 2 milbion wia the Landfill Communities Fund (LCF)

to Vindor Credits, an independent chanty established to distnbute LCF funding 1n areas
surrounding landfills Deqsions on funding use cntena of sustainatmbty, value for money
and proven need and are made at grass roots level by established local steenng groups for
each area Projects supported dunng the year included creating, improvang and restonng
important habitats, new and ymproved wilage and amenity halls, and wital support for local
museums and similar commumity assets For further details see Vindor Credits’ website at
www vindor-credits co uk

Pennon Group

Stakeholder engagement

Vindar's Chief Executive 1s chairman of the
UK's Knowledge Transfer Netwark, which
compnses representates of the public sector,
businesses and the academic commumity

The netwarks destgned to assist the development
and uptake of Innovative environmental
technologies Pnonty areas of focus include
recovery of energy from waste and energy
efficient water and waste water treatments

vindor’'s Chief Executive s also charman of the
Government's Environmental Sector Advisory
Group which promotes export and inward
nvestmentn the environmental goods and
senaces sector

Progress against 2007/08 Status Comment

Corporate Responsibibity

Target

Mantawn corporate standing  Met Good

of Pennon Group Pic on results in

sustainatnbty credenbals BiE* and
nvestor
surveys

*BiE1s the Business in the Commurty’s Emaronment Index

Corporate Responsinbrty Target 2008/09° maintain
corporate standing of Pennon Group Plc on
sustainabibty credentals

Pennon’s corporate responsibility performance
has been audited by Acona (an independent
nisk and comphance management company)
for 2007/08 The Venfication Statements for
Pennon, South West Water and Vindor are
provided on their respective websites with
their corporate responsibility reports

Left Engaging in commumty imtiatives
Above Canterbury Cathedral - donaton
made for restoration

Far left Peak Hll - photography by John
Pernam
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Directors’ report

INTERPRETATION

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This business review contans forward loocking
statements regarding the finanoal position,
results of operations, cash flows, didends,
financing plans, business strategies, operating
efficenaes, capital and other expenditures,

GLOSSARY

Business review

competitive positions, growth opportunities,
plans and objectwes of management, and
other matters These forward looking
statemants, including, without bmitation,
those relating to the future business prospects,
revenues, working capital, hquidity, capital
needs, interest costs and income 1n relation to
the Pennon Group and its subsidianes,
wherever they occurin this business review,
are necessanly based on assumptions

The following are descriptions of some of the terms used in this Business Review

reflecting the views of Pennen Group and

1ts subsidary compames, as appropnate

They involve a number of nsks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ
matenally from those suggested by the forward
looking statements Such forward looking
statements should, therefore, be considered n
hight of relevant factors, including those set
out wn the sections entrtied ‘Risks and
uncertainties’ on pages 14, 24 to 27 and 35

CAGR Compound Annual Grawth Rate, being the rate of growth over a penod, expressed as a single annual average figure
DEFRA Department for Emargnment, Food and Rural Affairs

Determination The pnce bmits and expenditure plans determined by Ofwat for South West Water for a five year pencd
oW1 Bnnkang Water Inspectorate

EA Environment Agency

EfW Energy from Waste

EMS Envircnmental Management System

finanoal year Finanqal year of the Group ending 31 March

GWh (ngawatt hours

HWRS Household waste recyching sites

IFRS International Financal Reporting Standards

Intenm Determination Intenm Determnation of K

IS0 14001 Internabional envirenmental management accreditation standard

June Return The annual return to Ofwat made by South West Water on its performance duning the previous finanoal year
KPIs Key Performance Indicators

LATS Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme

LAWDC Local Authonty Waste Disposal Company

Ml Megalitres

MW Megawatts

NFFD Non Fossil Fuel Obligation

Ofwat or water regulator Water Services Regulatory Authonty

‘percentage population equwalent’

Penodic Review

Waste water treatment works loadings from domestic, industnal and diffuse sources, averaged and stated as a
population equivalent load, expressed as a percentage

The process of determming the water industry’s price inmts and expendsture plans for five-year regulatery penads

PF1 Private Finance Imbative

PPC Pollution, Prevention and Control

PPP Public Private Partnership

RCV Regulatory Capiat Value

RIDDOR Reporting of Imunies, Dhseases and Dangerous Occurrences Requlations (1995)

ROCs Renewables Obhgation Cerhificates

RPI The UK Government’s Retail Pnce Index

SEPA Scothish Emarenment Protection Agency

UK GAAP Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnaples

Vindor Vindor Limited (subsidiary of Pennon Group Plc) or a Vindar Limited operating subsidiary, depending on the
nature of the actwity descnibed

WEEE Waste electncal and etectronic equipment

Pennon Emaronmental Photographic Compebtion 2007 entry
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Directors’ report

QOTHER STATUTORY
INFORMATICON

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The pnnaipal achwities of the Company

and tts subsidianes (‘the Group’) are the
provision of water and sewerage services and
waste management Information regarding
the Group, including important events and its
pregress duning the year, events since the
year end and bkely future developments 1s
contained 1n the business review set out on
pages 2 to 42 of this Directors report

In addihan the business review contains a far
and balanced review of the business of the
Group, ncluding 1ts position and prospects,
Key Perfarmance Indicators and a descrnipbion
of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties facing
the Group 1n accordance with the requirements
of the Combined Code and Section 234ZZ8 of
the Compames Act 1985 as well as further
information on employee, enviranmental,
socal and commumty matters, reflecing the
requirements of Section 417 of the Compames
Act 2006 (which came into force on 1 Gctober
2007 1n respect of finanoal years commenang
on or after 1 October 2007) In additionin
accordance with the ABI Corporate Secal
Respansibibity Guidelines, statements are
wncluded on any sigmficant environmental,
social and governance (ESG) nsks and the
actons taken 1n mitigating these nsks within
the busmess review on pages 14, 24 to 27 and 35
Further information on ESG aspects of the
Group’s business are included 1n the corporate
respanstbibity section of the business review on
pages 36to 41 The pnnapat subsidianes

of the Company are histed n note 38 to the
financal statements on page 109

TAKEOYER CODE DISCLOSURES

The following disclosures are made pursuant to
Part 7 of Schedule 7 of the Compames Act 1985
(as inserted by Secthien 992, Companies Act
2006 n accordance with the £U Takeover
Drective 2004/25/EC) As at 31 March 2008

(a) detals of the Company’s 1ssued share
capital, which consists of ardinary shares
of nominal value 40 7 pence each, are
set outin Note 31 to the financial
statements on pages 99 to 103 All of
the Company’s ssued shares are fully
pad up, rank equally wn all respects
and are listed on the Offcial List and
traded on the London Stock Exchange
The nghts and ebhgations attaching to
the Company's shares, wn addition to
thase conferred on their holders by law,
are set outin the Company’s Articles of
Assocation (“Articles”), copres of which
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(b)

(o)

{d)

(e}

M

can be obtained from Compames House
n the UK or by wnting to the Company
Secretary at the reqistered office

The holders of the Company's shares are
enhtled to receve the Company’s reports
and accounts and in relation to general
meetings of the Company they have the
nght to attend and speak, exercise voting
nghts and appoint proxies

there are no restnctions on the transfer
of 1ssued shares of the Company or an the
exeraise of vobing nghts attached to
them, except where the Company has
exercised 1ts nght to suspend their veting
nghts or to prolbt thewr transfer
followng the omission of thewr holder or
any person interested 1n them to provide
the Company with information requested
by 1t n accardance with Part 22 of the
Compames Act 2006 ar where their
helders precluded from exerasing
voting nghts by the Financal Senices
Authonty’s Listing Rules or the City Code
on Takeovers and Mergers

details of sigmficant direct or indirect
haldings of secunties of the Company are
set out 1n the sharehalder analysis on
page 114 {shareholder information)

the Company’s rules about the
appointment and replacement of
Directors are contained in the Articles
and accord with usual English company
law provisions The powers of Drectors
are determined by UK legislaben and the
Memorandum of the Company and the
Articles in force from time to time
Changes to the Articles must be
approved by the shareholders by

passing a specal resolution

the Dhrectors have the power to make
purchases of the Company's own shares
1N 1ssue as set out in the section on

page 45 'Purchase Of Own Qrdinary
Shares” and such nghts have been
exercised as set out 1n that section The
Directors also have the authonty to allot
shares up to an aggregate nominal value
of £30,210,712 which was approved by
shareholders at the 2007 Annual General
Meeting (AGM) In addibon, shareholders
approved a resolution giving the
Mhrectors a hmited authonty to allot
shares for cash other than pro rata to
exishing shareholders These resoluhons
remawn vahd unbil the conclusion of this
year's AGM Resolutons will be proposed
at this year's AGM to renew these
authenties The Drectors have no
present intention to1ssue ordinary
shares, cther than pursuant to employee
share schemes

there are a number of agreements which
take effect, alter or termnate upon a
change of control of the Company
followsng a takeover tnd, such as bank
loan agreements, Eurobond documen-
tation, pnvate placement debt and

employees’ share plans None of these

1s considered to be sigmficant in terms
of thewr potential impact on the business
of the Group as a whole except for
agreements relating to £210 milhon of
term loans and £85 million of drawn
revolving credht facibities matunng on
vanous dates up to and including

15 August 2010 which could become
repayable upon a change of control of
the Company A change of control will be
deemed to have occurred if any persan or
persons aching n concert {as defined 1n
the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers)
at any ime 1s/are ar become(s)
nterested 1n more than 50% of the
wssued ordinary share capital of the
Company or shares 1n the capial of the
Company carrying more than 50% of the
voting nghts normally exerosable at a
general meeting of the Company

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Statutory Group profit on ordinary

actwities after taxation was £133 6 mllion

The Directors recommend & final dvidend

of 13 56p per ordinary share to be paid to
shareholders on the register on 8 August 2008,
making a total for the year of 19 81p, the cost
of which will be £69 1 malhion, leavang a
retained surplus of £64 5 milbon The business
review on pages 28 to 35 analyses the finanoal
results 1n more detail and sets out other
financal tnformation, including the Drectors’
opimon on asset values on page 32

DIRECTORS

David Dupont and Kate Mortimer are due to
retire at the AGM on 31 July 2008 and offer
themselves up for re-election In addibhion, as
Ken Harvey has been a Director for over mne
years, \n accordance with the Combned Code
he offers himself up for re-election annually
The Board continues to believe that Kate
Mortimer, asa Nen-executive Director
standing for re-election 1s mndependent, and
that she makes an effective and valuable
contnbution te the Board, demanstrating
continued commitment to the rele Neither
Ken Harvey nor Kate Morhimer has a senice
contract, although Ken Harvey’s contract for
senaces is termnable upon 12 months” notice
Dawid Dupont has a service contract which 1s
due to expire 1n s1x years” time, beang upon his
nermal retirement date Resolubons for the
above Directors’ re-election witl be proposed
atthe AGM No Director has, or has had, a
matenal interest, directly or indirectly, at any
time dunng the year under review in any
contract significant to the Company's business
A list of all the Directors dunng the year1s set
out 1n the emoluments table on page 50
Further detarls relating to the Directors and
ther service contracts or contracts for services
are set out on pages 46 to 50 and details of the
Directors’ interests 1n shares of the Company
are given on pages 51to 53




STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

{2} So far as each of the Directors 1n office at
the date of the sigming of the report are aware,
there1s no relevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

(b} each of the Directors has taken all the
steps each Director cught to have taken
indwidually as a director 1n order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the
Company's audhtors are aware of that
nformation

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the financial nsk management
objectives and policies of the Group and the
exposure of the Group to pnce, credit, kqudity
and cash flow nsks are set out n the business
review on pages 32 to 35

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group has a culture of continuous
improvement through investment 1n people
at all levels within the Group The Group s
committed to pursuing equality and diversity
mn ail its employment achwities including
recruitment, traxming, career development and
promotion and ensunng there 1s no bias or
discnmination in the treatment of people

in particular, apphcations for employment are
welcomed from disabled persons and special
arrangements and adjustments as necessary
are made to ensure that disabled apphcants
are treated fairly when attendng for inteniew
or for pre-employment aptitude tests
Wherever possible, the opportumty 1s taken to
retran people whe become disabled dunng
therr employmentn order to maintawn thewr
employment within the Group Employees are
consulted regularly about changes which may
affect them esther through their trade umon
appointed representatives or by means of the
elected Staff Council which operates 1n South
West Water for staff employees These forums,
together wath regular meetings with particular
groups of employees, are used to ensure that
employees ate kept up to date with the
operabing and financal performance of

their employer The Group also uses a

monthly informabon cascade process to
prowvide employees with ymportant and up

to date information about key events

Further informabion about employment
matters relating to South West Water 1s set out
on pages 13 and 14, and to Vindor on page 24
of the business review

The Group encourages share ownership
amongst its emptoyees by operating both an
HM Revenue & Customs approved Sharesave
Scheme and a Share Incentive Plan At 31
March 2608 around 35% of the Group's
employees participated 1n these plans

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development actiwvities within
the Group nvobning water and waste treatment
processes amounted to £0 2 million duning the
year (2006/07 £0 1 milbion)

PENNON GROUP DONATIONS

Dunng the year, donations amounting to
£64,300 were made Details relating to
chantable and other donations will be set out
wn the Corporate Responsibility Report which
will be available for viewaing on the Company’s
website at www pennon-group co uk from

4 July 2008 No polibcal donations were made

TAX STATUS

The Company 1s not a close company within the
meaning of the Income and Corporation Taxes
Act 1988

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

It1s the Group’s payment policy for the year
ending 31 March 2009 to follow the Code of
The Better Payment Practice Group on suppher
payments Infermation about the Code can be
obtained from www payontime co uk

The Company will agree payment terms with
1indwadual suppliers in advance and alnde by
such terms The ratio, expressed 1n days,
between the amount invoiced to the Company
by 1ts supphers duning 2007/08 and the
amount owed to its trade creditors at

31 March 2008, was 33 days

PURCHASE OF OWN ORDINARY SHARES

The Company has authonty from shareholders
to purchase up to 10% of 1ts own ordinary
shares {as renewad at the AGM n 2007) which
was vald as at 31 March 2008 and remains
currently vaid In connection with the return
of cash to shareholders as set outin the
Circular to shareholders dated 23 January
2006, the Company during 2007/08 purchased
from the market 8,245,008 ordinary shares
(40 7p) of which 960,000 were cancelled and
7,285,008 were held in Treasury for the
purposes of employee share schemes at a cost
of £49 3 mllion amounting to approximately
2 3% ofitsssued ordinary shares Of the
7.285,008 shares held 1n Treasury 873,602
were subsequently re-1ssued under the
Company's Sharesave Scheme for proceeds

of £1 6 mllon

Atotal of 57,967 ordinary shares were also
purchased dunng the year by the Pennon
Employee Share Trust, Pennon Share Plans
Guernsey Limited, for the deferred element
of the Group’s Annual Incenbive Bonus Plan
The total purchase pnice was £0 3 milhon and
the shares amounted to approximately 0 02%
of the Company's 1ssued ordinary shares

Pennon Group

AUDITORS

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed
auditors untl the conclusion of the nineteenth
Annual General Meeting A reselution for their
re-appointment upon the recommendation of
the Aucht Committee of the Board will be
propesed at the AGM

APPODINTED BUSINESS

South West Water bimited 1s required to
publish additionat financial information
relating to the ‘appointed business’ as water
and sewerage undertaker wn accordance with
the Instrument of Appontment from the
Secretary of State for the Environment

A copy of this information wilt be available
from 11 July 2008 upon apphcation to the
Company Secretary at Pemnsula House,
Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The mneteenth Annual General Meehng of
the Company will be held at the Sandy Park
Conference Centre, Sandy Park Way, Exeter,
Devon EX2 7NN on 31 July 2008 at 11 00am
In addhtion te routine business, resolutions
will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting to

renew the existing authonties to 1ssue a
himited number of shares and to purchase
up to 10% of the 1ssued share capital of
the Company

seek authonty to make political donations
under the Pelihical Parties, Elechons and
Referendums Act 2000

re-elect Messrs K G Harvey and D J Dupont
and Ms K M H Morhmer as Directors of
the Company

approve new Articles of Assooation to
provide for new leqislative provisions
ansing from the implementation of
further provisions of the Compames Act
2006 including dealing with cenflicts of
nterest of Directors

Details of the resolutions are set out 1n

the separate Notice of Annual General
Meeting arculated to shareholders with this
Annual Report

By Order of the Board
KEN WOODIER, Group General (ounsel &
Company Secretary

26 June 2008

Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts

PN S

45




Board of Directors

Kenneth George Harvey BSc, CEng, 67
Chairman

Was appointed on 1 March 1997 Ken was
fermerly charman and chief executive of
Norweb Plc He was chairman of National
Grid Holdings 1n 1995 and was previously
deputy chairman of Londen Electnaty and
earlier its engineenng drector He has
also been chawrman of a number of imited
and pnvate equity funded compames
Currently he s the semor independent
non-executive director of Nabonal Grnd Plc

Colin Irwin John Hamilton Drummond
MA, MBA, LTCL, CCMI, 57
Chief Executive, Viridor Limited

Was apponted on 1 Apnl 1992 Pnor to
jomng the Company Cobin was a dwisional
chref execubve of Coats Viyella, having
previously been corporate development
director of Renold plc, a strategy consultant
with the Boston Consulting Group and

an offical of the Bank of England He1s
chairman of the Government’s Environmental
Sector Advisory Group and chairman of the
Emaronmental Knowledge Transfer Network,
semor wisiting research fellow 1n Earth
Soences at Oxford Umversity, and for the
past year has been Master of the Worshipful
Company of Water Consérvators

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audnt

Gerard Connell {Charrman)
Kate Morbimer

Dwnah Nichols

Corporate Responsibility
Dinah Nichols {Chairman)
Gerard Connell

Cabin Drummond

Chns Loughlin

Kate Mortimer
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David Jeremy Dupont MA, MBA, 54
Group Director of Finance

Was appownted on 2 March 2002 Dawid was
formerly regulatory and finance director

of South West Water Limited, having joined
Pennon Group Plc (then South West Water
Ple) 1n 1992 as strategic planming manager
Previously he held business planning and
development roles with Gateway
Corporation Heis a member of the CBI
Environmental Affairs Committee and the
(BI South West Regional Counal

Christopher Loughlin BSc Hons,
MICE, CEng, MBA, 55

Chief Executive, South West Water
Limuted

Was appointed on 1 August 2006 Chns was
most recently chef operating officer with
Lloyd’s Register and previously was an
executive director of Bntish Nuclear Fuels
Plc and executive chairman of Magnox
Electnc Plc Chns started his career as a
chartered engineer and subsequently held
a number of semor positions with Bntish
Muclear Fuels He was appointed chairman
of Water UK with effect from 1 Apnl 2068

Gerard Dominic Connell MA, 50
Senior Independent Non-executive
Director

Was appointed on 1 October 2003

Gerard 1s currently group finance director
of Wincanton Ple Previously he was a
director of Hill Samuel and a managing

director of Bankers Trust and has held other
corporate finance and business development

positions in the Oty and 1n industry

Nomination

Ken Harvey (Chawrman)
Gerard Connell

Kate Morpmer

[nah Nichols

Remuneration

Kate Mortimer (Chairman}
Gerard Connell

Ken Harvey (from 1 June 2007)
Dhnah Mchols

Katharine Mary Hope Mortimer
MA, BPhil, 62
Non-executive Director

Was appointed on 1 May 2000 Kateis
currently a freelance financial consultant
and a member of the Crown Agents
Foundation Council She was formerty a
director of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited,
drector of policy at the Secunties and
Investments Board, chief executive of Walker
Books and was a member of the Competihion
Commission between 1995 and 2001

Dinah Alison Nichols CB, BA Hor'ls, b4
Non-executive Director

Was appointed on 12 June 2003 Dinah was
formerly Director General Emronment at the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affars and previously held vanous semor
appointments within Government,

nctuding being head of the water
directorate duning the penod of water
prvatisation Sheis also a Crown Estate
Commssioner, a non-executive director

of Shires Smaller Compamies Ple, chair of

the National Forest Company, chair of
Groundwork North London and a director

of several Trusts

Group General Counsel & Company Secretary
Ken Woodier Sabctor

Registered office

Pemnsula House,

Rydon Lane,

Exeter

EX2 7HR

Registered i England No 2366640




Directors’ remuneration report

THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee compnses
four Non-executve Directors Kate
Mortimer, who chairs the Committee,
Gerard Connell and Dinah Nichols

(who are all regarded by the Company as
independent) together with the Chairman
of the Company, Ken Harvey, who was
appownted on 1 June 2007 followang the
latest edihon {June 2006) of the
Combined Code, which acknowledged
that a company chairman may also be a
member of a remuneration committee f
he was considered independent upon
appointment as chairman

The Committee’s terms of reference
include adwising the Board on the
framework of executive remuneration
for the Group and responsibbity for
determiming the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the Chairman, the
Executwe Directors and semor
management of the Group No Cwector
or any other attendee participates 1n
any discussien on, or determinahon
of, s or her own remuneration

Dunng the year the Committee met on
seven occasions and recewved adwvice,

or senvices, that matenally assisted the
Commttee in the consideration of
remunerabon matters from Ken Harvey,
Chawrman of the Company In addition
the Commttee received adwice from the
following adwisors, who were appointed
dwrectly by the Committee

- Ken Woodher, Group General Counse! &
Company Secretary, on remunerabion and
share scheme matters He also provides
legal advice and company secretanal
services to the Company,

-1ndependent remuneration adwvisors,
Deloitte & Touche LLP, on long-term
incentive arrangements,

- pensions and remuneration consultants,
Hewtt Associates Limited, on calculating
Total Sharehotder Return for the
Company’s Restncted Share Plan

Hewtt also provide actuanal and
investment pensions adwce to the
Group's Pension Trustees

GROUP REMUNERATION
POLICY

The policy of the Group, which, subject to
a strategic review of remuneration later
in the year, wilt be applied by the
Remuneration Commttee 1n 2008/09 and
15 also currently intended to be appbedin
each subsequent year, continues to be to
provide for Executive Directors a
remunerabion package which 1s adequate
to attract, retawn and motwate good
quabty executives and which 1s
commensurate with the remuneration
packages provided by compames of simlar
size and complexity The pobey 1n respect
of Non-executve Directors 15 set out on
page 49 1n the Non-executive Dwrectors’
remuneration section

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration package of the
Executive Directors 15 summansed below
It compnses salary, annual bonus, long-
term incentives, pensions {or benefit

in hieu), car benefit and health cover

In 2008/09 {subject to fluctuatrons in the
Company's share pnce) it 15 expected that
around two-thirds of Dwrectors’ potential
direct remuneraton (1 e excluding
pensions, car benefit and health

cover) will be performance related (two-
thirds 1n 2007/08) It 15 intended that this
balance between performance related and
that which 1s not related to performance
will continue

None of the Executive Directors currently
serve as a non-executive directors
elsewhere and therefore do not receve
any fees for such sennces

With effect from 2007 /08 the Committee
introduced a shareholding gundebne that
Executive Directors and semor
management shall hold a substantial
personal shareholding in the Company
Executive Directors are encouraged to
build up thew shareholding over a five
year penod to a value of at least
equivalent to their basic salary

(1) Basic satary and benefits - These are
set out on page 50 for each Executive
Director and are not related to performance
The Committee determines revised
salanes, usually on an annual basis,

for Executve Directors based upon
surveys generally available conducted by
ndependent remuneration consultants
and the performance of the indwdual

Executwe Directors which the Committee
assesses with the advice of Ken Harvey,
Chawrman of the Company Other benefits,
not mentioned below, include contnbutory
pension provision (with four times salary
hife assurance cover) or a cash alternative,
a fully-expensed car (or a cash equivalent
alternative)} and health cover

{n) Performance related bonus - Annual
perfermance related bonuses are awarded
wn accordance with an Incentive Bonus
Plan for Executve Dwrectors and based on
the achievement of overall corporate and
indmidual objectwes estabhished by the
Committee The maxamum bonus
achievable under the Plan for Executive
Directors for 2007,/08 was 100% of basic
salary To achieve a bonus towards or at
the upper end of the maximum bonusn
respect of earmngs per share, 1t 1s
necessary for the Company to acheve a
specified level of supenor outperformance
Half of any bonus awarded 1s 1n the form
of shares in the Company winch must
usually be held for a penod of three years
before release Duning this penod, the
Directors, w respect of these shares, are
entitled to recewe any dmadends declared
by the Company No additonal
performance conditions applicable to the
release of these shares, apart from
maintaimng centinuous service with the
Company, are considered appropnate by
the Committee in view of the stretching
performance condibons applicable to
achieve the imtal award of the shares
The Commttee, n setbing the
performance objectives for Directors, 15
able to consider corporate performance
on ervironmental, sonal and governance
(ESG) 1ssues Objectives set embrace
appropnate ESG parameters which are
important to the success of the Group and
which seek to ensure that the Group meets
a number of its ESG targets as set outn
the Group's Corporate Responsibity
Report (referred to on pages 36 to 41 of
the business renew) The Committee in
setting such objectives and in deterrmming
1ts remuneration policy overall, does
ensure that the relevant incentives to
Directors and sen1cr management raises
no ESG nsks by inadvertently motivating
irresponsible behaviour In addition, the
Commuttee will take wnto account ESG
1ssues n deterrmming the vesting of any
awards under the Company's Performance
and Co-investment Plan, as referred to on
page 49

Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts

47




Directors’ remuneration report

(n) Performance related bonus (conbnued)
The following corporate and indwidual
objectves of the Executve Directors
applicable to the performance related
bonus award for 2008/09 were determined
by the Commttee as appropnate, having
regard to the actwmities of the Group that
each indwdual Director could most
nfluence and also to the overall
performance of the Group, all of which
seek to ahgn the interests of the Directors
with those of shareholders (the references
to a percentage bonus relate to a
percentage of the annual basic salary

of each Executive Director in 2008/09)

Colin Drummond
— A bonus of up to 40% for
outperformance of Group earmngs
per share agawnst budget, up to 40%
caleulated by reference to out-
performance of the profit before tax
and net debt budgets of Vindor, and up
to 20% for personal objectives retating
to key business targets for Vindor

David Bupont
— A bonus of up to 40% for outperfor-
mance of Group earnings per share
aganst budget, up to 40% for
outperformance aganst budget
relating to net debt and net interest of
the Group and profit before tax of
South West Water and Vindor, and up
to 20% for personal oyectives relating
to Group finanoing and Group imtatives

Chnis Loughlin
— A bonus of up to 40% for outperfor-
mance of Group earmngs per share
against budget, up to 20% for
personal objectives relating to
mplementing South West Water's
new strategies and projects, and up
to 40% calculated by reference to the
average honus earned by the other
execubive directors of South West Water
(which relate to outperformance
against the operating costs, profit
before tax, capitat expenditure and net
debt budgets of the company, the
position the company achieves in the
"Overall Performance Assessment’ of
water and sewerage compamies
established by the Water Senices
Regulatory Authonty (WSRA}, the
achievement of a range of service
standards set for the company by the
WSRA, and personal objectives relating
to key imtiatwves and projects of
the company)
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The acmevements of the Executve
Directors aganst ther indwidual
perfarmance objectives are assessed by
the Commttee following the finanoal
year end when the audited results of the
Company and perfarmance against
parameters set are known This enables
the Commuttee to apply largely objective
cntenan determining the level of bonus
(vf any) that should be awarded, with the
adwice of the Chairman of the Company,
Ken Harvey

(m) Long-Term Incentive Plan -

A Performance and Co-investment Plan
(PCP), as approved by shareholders at
last years Annual General Meeting, was
operated by the Company dunng the year
for Executive Directors and semor
management

The purpose of the PCP1s to award shares
to particrpants subject to the achievement
of stretching performance conditions
measured over three years The first
awards under the PCP, w the form of a
conditwonal nght over ordinary shares

n the Company, were made by the
Commttee n August 2007 and, for
Executwe Directors, the award was over
shares worth 100% of basic salary

In accordance with 1its discretion pursuant
to the rules of the PCP, the Commttee
made the vesbing of the awards also
subject to the fulfilment of a co-invest-
ment condition whereby Executive
Drectors were requived te 1nvest and hold
sharesn the Company equal to 20% of the
value of their award over the Restncted
Penod (being a penad of three years from
the date of the award) The percentage
requirement for semor management was
suitably scaled back The number of shares
subject to each awardin the event of
vesting will be increased by such number
of shares as could have heen acquired by
reinvesting the dwvidends which would
otherwise have been recewved on those
shares pnor to vesting or exercise

The awards made mn August 2007 will vest
based on the Company's total shareholder
return {'TSR’) performance over a three
year performance penod against two
different comparator groups as set

out below TSR measures the value created
for shareholders through increases 1n
share pnce and the payment of dwdends
and was appbed by the Committee

because, based upon adwvice recewved from
remuneration consultants, Delowtte &
Touche LLP, it belhieves that thisis an
appropnate measure to ahgn the interests
of the Executive Directors wath those of
shareholders

B 50% of an award will vest according
to the Company’s TSR performance
measured aganst an wdex made up of
the following six hsted water and waste
comparator companies

Biffa

Kelda Group

Northumbnan Water Group
Severn Trent

Shanks

United Utiities

These were the Company's key hsted
sector comparators but, as Biffa and

Kelda Group have now de-bisted, the
Committee will have discretion to include
these compames 1n the calculaton of the
ndex up to the date of de-listing (or other
earlier date at 1ts discretion) and exclude
them from that date onwards or adopt an
alternative approach

WATER/WASTE GROUP  Vesting

% of total award
Above theindex
+15% 50%
Equal to the index 15%
Stranght-bne vesting mn between the
above paints
Below the index 0%

B 50% of the award wll vest according to
the Company's ranked TSR performance
against the constituents of the FTSE 250
ndex (excluding investment trusts) This
15 the FTSE index to which the Company
belongs

FTSE 250 GROUP Vesting
% of total award
At or above 75th
percentle 50%
Abave 50th percentile 15%

Straight-line vesting 1n between the
above points

Atar below 50th
percentile %
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() Long-Term Incentive Plan
continued

In addition to this TSR condition,

before any award 1s capable of veshing,
the Committee will also need to be
sahsfied that the underlyng operational
and economc performance of the
Company s at a satisfactory level

This wallinclude consideration of
sustainambty and emaronmentat

factors and safety performance, as

well as finanoal performance

Whilst the Committee intends currently
to apply similar performance conditions
to those set out above to any future PCP
awards, they will be reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure that they remain
appropnate and sutably stretching for
future awards

(iv) Other Share Schemes — Executwve
Directors are entitled to parhcipate in

the Company’s Sharesave Scheme

It s an all-employee plan to which
performance conditions do not apply

In addibion, Executive Directors are entitled
to parbapate in the Company's Share
Incentive Plan (SIP), which 1s also an
all-employee plan to which performance
conditions do notapply

(v) Sennice Agreements — In accordance
with Company policy, all Executive
Directors have senace agreements subject
to one year's notice and which are due to
expire when Directors reach thewr normal
retirement age (age 60) unless extended
by agreement between the Director and
the Company No provision s made for
termnahion payments under the senice
agreements In the event of termination
by the Company of any Executive Dwrector’s
sennce agreement, the Board would
determine what payments (1f any) should
be made to the Director depending on

the circumstances of the termnatien

The dates of the agreements are

Cobin Drummond 5 March 1992
Dawvid Dupont 2 January 2003
Chns Loughbin 16 May 2006

[(wi) Provision for Pension - With the
exception of Chns Loughlin, Executive
Directors parbaipate in the Pennon Group
Pension Scheme and the Pennon Group
Executive Pension Scheme These are
funded defined benefit schemes which,
dependent on length of senice at normal
retirement date (age 60), could amount to

two thirds of final pensionable pay

(after deduction for the Executive Directors
mentioned below of benefits accrued

1n the now closed Supplementary Pension
Scheme} For service to 5 Apnl 2006 an
Earnings Cap applied 1n these Schemes

te Colin Brummend and Dawvid Dupont
Both were provided with addihonal
pension benefits under an unapproved
funded Supplementary Pension Scheme of
the Company 1n order to bnng their pension
benefits up to a level which would have
been provided under the other schemes if
the Earmngs Cap had not apphed With
effect from 6 Apnl 2006 the Earmings Cap
no longer applied to pension schemes as
part of the simpbfication of taxaton of
pensions legislation The Committee
accordingly deaded to prowide all of the
Directors’ future service pension benefit
above the Earmings Cap level from the
Pennon Group Executive Pension Scheme
The Supplementary Pension Scheme was
therefore closed and the accrued benefits
were paid out to 1ts members 1n Apnl 2006

The pensionable pay for Executive Directors
consists of the highest basic salary 1n any
consecutive twelve month penod of sernce
within five years of retirement Bonuses are
not included n pensionable pay In beu

of the provision of pension benefits, Chns
Loughlin receives an annual payment
equivalent to 30% of h1s annual basic salary

In determimng remunerahon arrangements
for Executive Directors, the Remuneration
Committee gwes full consideration to their
impact on the pension schemes funds and
costs of provading indwidual pension
arrangements or payments n bieu of
pension provisian

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (TSR) GRAPH

This graph shows the value, over the five
year pened ending w March 2008, of £100

invested i Pennon Group on 31 March
2003 compared with the value of £100
nvested in the FTSE 250 Index The other
points plotted are the values at intervenming
financal year ends This Index s
considered appropnate as 1t 1s a broad
equity market index of which the Company
15 a constituent

The graph has been produced in
accordance with Schedule 7A of the
Companies Act 1985

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
THE CHAIRMAN

Non-execute Directors’ remuneration
(excluding that of the Chawrman, Ken
Harvey) consisting of fees anly as set out
below, 1s determined by the Board of
Drectors, including the Chairman,

but n the absence of the other Non-
executive Directors Itis currently
reviewed each year to take account of
market changes in non-executive
directors’ fees The level of fees was last
reviewed 1n September 2007 In reviewing
the fees, the Board takes 1nto account
market information on non-executive
directors’ fees, most recently from the
Monks Partnership Non-executive
Directors receve a base fee of £31,500 per
annum, the Audit, Remuneration and
Corporate Responsiity Commttee chairs
are pavd fees of £8,900, £6,300 and £6,300
per annum respectively and Commttee
members of these Committees receve
£3,700 each The policy to be applied n
2008/09 (which1s also currently intended
to be applied 1n each subsequent year)
continues to be to set fees around the
medhan level compared to the market,
which the Board believes 1s appropnate to
attract and retain surtably expenenced
non-executive directors

The Chawman's remuneration 1s set by the
Remuneration Committee and was reviewed
1n March 2008 The policy of the Committee
to be applied 1n 2008/09 (which 15 also
currently 1ntended to be applied wn each
subsequent year) 1s the same as that of the
Executwe Directors 1n reviewing the fees of
the Non-executive Directors In addibon to
a fee {determined with market information
from Deloitte & Touche and New Bndge
Street Remuneration Consultants) the
Chawrman recewves a fully-expensed car
benefit and health cover No other
benefits or remuneration are recewed

by the Chairman
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
THE CHAIRMAN continued

The Non-executwe Directors (excluding
the Chawrman) have contracts for senices
setting out thewr terms and condibions of
appontment which are subject to the
Articles of Association of the Company
and which may be extended by agreement
between the Company and the Non-
executive Directors No provision 1s made
for any termination payment under

these contracts

The Chairman, Ken Harvey, has a contract
for senices dated 1 Apnl 2005 which 1s
subject to 12 months’ notice to provide the
Company with reasonable secunty with
regard to s ongoing senice No provision
1s made for any termnation payments
under this contract

The contracts for senices of the Chairman
and the Non-executive Directors reflect
corporate governance best practice and,
together with the Execute Dwrectors’

The dates of the Non-executive Directors’ contracts are

Dhrector

Gerard Connell
Kate Mortimer
Dinah Nichols

Date of contract

30 September 2003
19 March 2005
10 June 2003

senice contracts, are available for
inspection at the Company’s registered
office dunng normal business hours

Expary of contract

30 September 2009
30 Apnl 2009
11 June 2009

The information set out below and on the remaining pages of this remuneration report {pages 51 to 53) has been audited by the
Group's independent auditors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The emoluments of indwidual Directors are shown n the table below

Dvrector Salary/fees
£000

Charrman

Ken Harvey 200

Executive Directors

Cobin Brummond 300

Dawd Dupont 300

Chns Loughkin 275

Non-executive Directors

Gerard Connell 47

Kate Mortimer 44

Onah Nichols 44

Totat 1,210

Performance related
benus Other Pgyment

payable” emoluments{ in lieu of pensionT® Total 2008 Total 2007

£000 £000 000 £000 £000

- 23 - 223 196

142 22 - 464 461

131 19 - 450 439
117 22 a3 497 ar et

- - - 47 43

- - - 44 41

- - - LA 39

390 86 83 1,769 1,546

t Other emoluments are car benefit and health cover

* Inaddinon to the performance related cash bonus, Executive Directors are due to receive a condihonal award of shares as referred to
1 a nete to () ‘Incentive Bonus Plan - Deferred Shares (long-term incentive element)’ on page 53

tt In beu of any pension provision by the Company, Chns Loughlin recewves 2 cash payment equivalent to 30% of his annual basic salary

** Chns Loughhin was appointed a Director part way through the year on 1 August 2006

No expense allowances chargeable to tax or termmation or compensation payments were made dunng the year
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DIRECTORS’ PENSIONS

Defined benefit pensions accrued and payable on rebrement for Directors holding office dunng 2007 /08 are shown n the table below

Increasen Increase in Increase n Transfer value

attrued pension acoued Acoued Transfer Transfer transfer value of Column a

dunng 2007/08 pensign pension at value at valueat  (net of Dvrectors {net of Directors

{net of inflation) during 2007/08 31 March 2608 31 March 2008 31 March 2007 contnbutions) £ontrnbunans)

Dhrector £000 £000 £000 £000 foco £000 £000
a & 3 d . f [

Cobin Drummond 17 21 111 2,319 1,967 331 334
Bawvid Dupont 15 18 99 2,009 1,511 477 286

Column a above 15 the increase in accrued pension durning 2007/08 (net of inflatien) It recogmses
1 the accrual rate for the addihonal penod’s senace based upon the pensionable pay at the end of the penod, and
i the effect of pay changes in real terms (net of inflation) upon the accrued pension at the start of the year
Column &15 the actual increase in accrued pension dunng 2007/08
Column €15 the accrued pension at 31 March 2008 payable at normal retirement age
Column o 15 the transfer value of the accrued pension set out in column ¢ as at 31 March 2008
Column e1s the transfer value of the accrued pension at the end of the previous finanoal year on 31 Maych 2007
Column £ 1s the increase 1n the transfer value dunng the year {column o minus celumn e) after deducting Directors” contnbutions
Column g 1s the transfer value of column a, less Drectors’ contnbutions
Columns @ e fand g have been calculated 1n accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11

Under the Company's pension salary deduction arrangements, the Company pays all pension scheme members’ contnbutions to the
Group pension schemes and salanes are reduced by the same amount The figures quoted above have not been adjusted to reflect
this arrangement

Until 31 March 2006 the Company operated a Supplementary Pension Scheme which mainly funded pension provision above the
Earmings Cap and provided benefits in tax-pa1d lump sum form at rebrement Appropnate figures have been included in the accrued
pension totals shown above Since 1 Apnl 2006 pension service benefit above the Earmings Cap level has been provided in the Pennon
Group Executive Pension Scheme as descnbed n (wv1) "Provision for Pension’ on page 49

Directers have the ophon to pay addibonal voluntary contnbutions, neither the contnbutions nor the resulting benefits are included n
the table shown above

DIRECTORS" SHARE INTERESTS

la) Shareholdings
The number of ordinary shares of the Company n which Directors held benefical interests at 31 March 2008 and 21 March 2007 were

2008 2007 2008 2007

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Orchnary shares

Director {40 7p each} (40 7p each} frrector {40 7p each) {40 7p cach)

Gerard Connell - - Chns Loughlin 18,987 9,734

Colin Drummond 188,277 125,043 Kate Marbmer 1,974 1,951

David Dupont 166,063 99,655 Minah Michols - -
Ken Harvey 7,209 7,209

Additonal ordinary shares (40 7p each) have been acquired by the Directors since 31 March 2008 as follows as a result of parhapation in the
Company’s Dvidend Re-investment Plan, Indwidual Savings Accounts or the Company’s Share Incentive Plan

Cobin Drummend 119 Dawvid Dupont 61 Chns Loughtin - 227 Kate Morhmer 8

There have been no other changes in the benefical interests or the non-beneficial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of
the Company between 1 Apnl 2008 and 30 May 2008
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DIRECTORS’ SHARE INTERESTS continued
Ib) Restricted Share Plan and Performance and Co-investment Plan [Long-Term Incentive Plans)

In addiion to the above beneficial interests, the followang Directors have or had a contingent interest in the number of 40 7p ordinary
shares shown below, representing the maximum number of shares to which they would become entitled under the Group's Long-Term
Incentive Plans should the retevant cntena be met n full

Conditional Conditional Value of shares Conditional Date of end of
awards awards Market pnce upon vesting awards  penod for quabfinng
Director and date held at mademn upon award Vesbing n {before tax} held at condition to be
of award 1 Apnt 2007 year n year year £000 31 March 2008 fulfilted
Colin Bremmend
16/9/04 1 101,070t - 269 83p 85,909 516 - -
27/9/05 1 40,140 - 356 67p - - 40,140 26/9/08
18/9/06 41,363 - 498 62p - - 41,075 17/9/09
29/8/07° - 53,859 557 00p - - 53,859 28/8/10
Dawid Dupont
16/9/04 96,0151t - 269 83p 81,612 490 - -
27/9/05 1 40,140 - 356 67p - - 40,140 26/9/08
18/9/06 41,363 - 498 62p - - 41,075 17/9/09
29/8/07" - 53,859 557 00p - - 53,859 28/8/10
Chns Loughbn
18/9/06 36,099 - 498 62p - - 35,847 17/9/09
29/8/07" - 49,371 557 00p - - 49,371 28/8/10

t The amount of the awards (and the market price upon award) for the awards made on 16/9/04 and 27/9/05 have been adjusted n
the ratio three for one consequent upon the Company’s share capital spbit on 31 July 2006

With the exception of the Awards marked * the Awards relate to the Company’s Restncted Share Plan (RSP) The Awards marked * relate

to the Cempany’s new Performance and Co-investment Plan (PCP) which succeeded the RSP1n 2007 Details of the PCP and the
performance conditions apphcable to these Awards are set out 1n section (1) "Long-Term Incentive Plan’ on page 48 of this report

tfBecause of the existence of unpublished pnice sensitive information, no RSP awards were made dunng 2003 to the Executive Directars

Accordingly, with shareholders’ approval, the usual award was made 1n 2004 together with a further award of shares equivalent to 75%

of basic salary 85% of this award vested on 15 September 2007 at a market pnce of 600 99p per ordinary share as the performance

cntenon had been partially met The balance of the share awards of 15% lapsed on 15 September 2007 Bob Baty, a former director of the

Company who retired on 31 July 2006, also recewed on 15 September 2007 54,887 ordinary shares of a total value of £330,000 at that
date {market price of 600 99p each) which vested 1n him from a total award of 64,573 ordinary shares (adjusted as set out below} made

on 16 September 2004 at a market pnce of 269 83p each pursuant to the provisions of the RSP The balance of the shares awarded to Bob

Baty lapsed on 15 Septernber 2007 As reported n last year's annual report the number of shares awarded to him had been adjusted pro
rata to s penod of employment with the Company dunng the restncted penod of the award

It 1s anticipated that some (but not all) of the 2005 award will vest in September 2008 as the performance cntenon has been partally met

The performance cntenon applicable to the 2004, 2005 and 2006 RSP Awards was the total shareholder retum (TSR) achieved by the

Company in the performance penod must be greater than that of the company at or nearest to (but not above) the 50th percenhle posttion of
the comparetor group If the TSR performance condition 1s met then 50% of an award wall vest with 100% vesting if the Company achieves

the posibon equal or closest to, but not above, the 75th percentile position of the comparator group The actnevement of a position
between the 50th and the 75th percentile postbons will result 1n vesting 1n steps reflecting the number of compames within that third
quartile of the comparator group The comparator group consists currently of 10 of the water only, water and sewerage, electnaity and

gas companies 1n the FTSE Utibines Index and quoted on the London Stock Exchange The TSR of each company in the comparator group 1s
measured by Hewtt Associates Limted assuming that all dnadends are reinvested and s calculated by taking the average market value of

each company’s shares for the whole of March befare the beqinmng of the relevant three year performance penod and comparing this to
the average market vatue of the same shares for the whole of March at the end of the three year penod

During the year the Directors recewved dividends on the ahove shares 1n accordance with the condihions of the RSP as follows
Colin Drummond £33,867, Dawvid Dupont £23,584, Chns Loughlin £6,696
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DIRECTORS" SHARE INTERESTS continued

(c) Incentive Bonus Plan - Deferred Shares [long-term incentive element]

The following Directors also have or had a contingent interest in the number of 40 7p ordinary shares shown below, representing the
total number of shares to which they have {or would) become entitled under the deferred bonus etement of the Incentive Bonus Plan
{the Plan) at the end of the relevant quabifying penod

{ondibonal
awards
Director and date heid at
of award 1 Apni 2007
Cohin Brummond
28/6/04 t 20,670
10/8/05 18,843
26/7/06 t 16,527
26/7/07 -
Dawvid Dupont
28/6/04 1 15,909
10/8/05 1 18,606
26/7/061 16,095
26/7/07 -
Chns Loughhn
26/1/07 -

Condiaral
awards
made in
year

17,018

8,767

Market pnce
upon award
n year

259 50p
328 00p
486 00p
599 50p

259 50p
328 Q0p
486 00p
599 50p

599 50p

Vestingin
year

20 670

* The June 2004 award shares vested on 27 June 2007 at a pnce of 616 00p each
1 The amount of the awards made on 28/6/04, 10/8/05 and 26/7/06 have been adjusted 1n the ratio three for one consequent upon the

Company's share capital split on 31 July 2006

Value of shares Conditional Date of end of
upon vesting awards  penod for qualifing
(before tax} held at conditien to be
£000 31 March 2008 fulfilled
127" - -
- 18,843 9/8/08
- 16,527 25/7/09
- 17,798 25/7/10
a8* - -
- 18,606 9/8/08
- 16,095 25/7/09
- 17,018 25/1/10
- 8,767 25/7/10

A further condihonal award of shares will be made 1n 2008/09 to the value of the amount of the performance related cash bonus shown
1n the Emoluments of Directors table on page 50 (Paragraph (u) ‘Performance Related Bonus’ on pages 47 and 48 set out the provisions
relating to the condihonal award of shares pursuant to the Plan)

Dunng the year the Directors recewed dmidends on the above shares 1n accordance with the condinons of the long-term incentive
element of the Plan as follows Colin Drummond £10,031, Dawd Dupont £9,529, Chns Loughbin £1,113

It 1s anticipated that all of the shares wall vest under the 10/8/05 award 1n 2008/09 as the cntenon 1s expected to be met

[d} Sharesave Scheme

Details of options to subscnbe for shares of the Company under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme were

Dhrector and
date of grant

Cphons held
at 1 Apnl 2007

Colin Drummond

4/7/06 1 2,613
Dawid Dupont

9/7/02 1 8,772
3/7/07 -
Chns Loughlin

3/7/07 -

Granted
nyear

3,136

3,136

Exevnised
n year

8,772

Exerqise
price

357 &6p

188 67p
522 00p

522 00p

Market pnce Options held
on exercising  at 31 March 2005

Exererse penod,/
matunty date

- 2,613 1/9/09-28/2/10
601 50p - _
- 3,136  1/9/12-28/2/13
- 3,136  1/9/12 - 28/2/13

t The options held and the exeraise pnce have been adjusted 1n the ratio three for one consequent upon the Company’s share capital

sphiton 31 July 2006

() Share price

The market pnce of the Company's 40 7p ordinary shares at 31 March 2008 was 647 S0p (2007 584 50p} and the range dunng the year

was 547 50p to 639 00p (2006/07 408 33p to 584 50p*)

*Adjusted n the ratio three for one consequent upon the Company’s share capital spht on 31 July 2006

By Order of the Board\\‘

KEN WOODIER, Group General Counsel & Company Secretary

26 June 2008
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Corporate governance and internal control

COMPLIANCE

The Board1s committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance

with the aim of continuing to enhance

1ts effectiveness The Annual Reportis
the pnnapal means of reporting to share-
hotders on the Board's governance policies
This sechion sets out how the mar and
supperting pnnaples of good corporate
governance contained in Sectian 1 of the
Combined Code (June 2006 version) have
been applied by the Company 1n practrce

The Company considers that it has
complied with the provisions of the Code
throughout the year

THE BOARD AND ITS
COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors at the end of

the year compnised the Chairman,

three Executive Directors and three
Non-execubive Directors All of the
Non-executive Directors are considered

to be independent as none of the
relationships or aircumstances set out 1n
paragraph A 3 1 of the Combined Code
apply to these Non-executive Directors
They are also considered to have the
appropnate skills, expenence 1n their
respective disciplines and persenality to
bning 1ndependent and objective
Judgement to the Board's deliberatons
Gerard Connell s the Semor independent
Non-executive Director The bhographes on
page 46 demonstrate a broad range of
business and financial expenence Thereis
a clear division of responsibibibes between
the roles of Chairman and the Chief
Executives of South West Water and Vindor
as recorded in the descnptions of the roles
approved by the Board All Directors are
subject to re-election when they have held
office for three years

Dunng the year the Board met in
accordance with 1ts schedule of meetings
on eleven occasions At each meeting, all
Mrectors were present with the exception
of Gerard Connell on two occasions, David
Dupont and Kate Morbmer each on one
occasion In accordance with Group
policies the Board has a schedule of
matters reserved forits deasion and
delegates more detailed consideration of
certain matters to Board Committees, to
the subsichary boards of South West Water
and Vindor, to the Executwe Drectors, and
to the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary, as appropnate Recogmsing this
pohicy, the matters reserved to the Board
mclude the approval of finanoal
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statements, acquisihons and dispasals,
major items of capital expenditure,
authonty levels for other expenditure, nsk
management, and approval of the Strategic
Plan and annual operating budgets

The Board operates by receming wntten
reports orculated in advance of 1ts
meetings from the Executive Directors and
the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary on matters wathin ther
respectwve business areas 1n the Group
Under the guidance of the Chawman, alt
matters before the Board are discussed
openly and presentations and advice
are recewed on occasions from other
senior executives within the Group or
from external adwisers

Directors have access to the adwice and
services of the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary and the Board has
established a procedure whereby Directors,
n order to fulfil their duties, may seek
independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense The traiming needs of
Directors are reviewed on a regular basis

The Board has aninternal procedure to
evaluate the performance of the whole
Board, each Committee, the Chairman,
each indwrdual Directer and the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary

Ths evaluation procedure was admimstered
for the year by the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary seeking all partopants’
views on a range of prescnbed quesbons
designed to ensure objective evaluation of
performance The participants’ responses
were then summansed and evaluated by
the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary for the Board to consider

and determine whether any changes

were necessary for the Board to be

more effective Overall performance was
considered to be satisfactory but a number
of minor1ssues were 1denhfied where
changes could be made to 1improve
performance including, for example,

a review of the terms of reference of certain
committees to ensure that delegations
from the Beard were appropnate and that
the Board had sufficient time to attend to
strategic matters The Chairman’s
performance was evaluated separately by
the Non-executive Directors, led by the
Semor Independent Non-executive
Director The Chairman’s other sigmficant
commitments outside the Group have not
changed dunng the year and the Board 1
sahsfied that such commitments do not
prejudice the Chairman’s performance in
relation to hus Group role

All Directors are equally accountable for
the praper stewardship of the Group’s

affairs with the Non-executive Directors
hawving a particular responsibility for
ensunng that strategies proposed for
the development of the business are
entically reviewed The Non-executive
Directors also cntically examine the
operational and financat performance
of the Group and fulfil a key role 1n
corporate accountambity through their
membershp of the Commttees of

the Board Inaddition the Chairman
during the year holds meetings with the
Non-executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present, to discuss
performance and strategicissues

Group policies allocate the tasks of giving

detailed considerabion to specified

matters, to momtonng executive actions

and to assessing reward, to the Board

Committees as set out below i

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commsttee was chaired by Gerard
Connell, who has current and relevant
financial expenence, and the other
members of the Committee were Kate
Mortimer and Dinah Nichols Dunng the
year the Committee met on five occasions
and all members were present at each
meeting, with the exception of Kate
Morbmer on ene occasion In discharging
its Terms of Reference the Commttee
recewves reports and meets regularly

1n parhcular to

- momitor the ntegnty of the finanoial
statements of the Group, ncluding a
review of significant reporting judgements,
pnor to approvat by the Board,

- keep under review the effectiveness of
the Group's internal controls, 1ncluding
all matenai financial, operational and
comphance controls and nsk
management systems,

— momtor and review the effectiveness of
the Group's internal audit function and
approve the annualnternal audrt plan,

- review the findings of the internal
audit funchon and review and momtor
management’s responsiveness to such
findings,

- oversee the relationship wath the
external auditors including their
remuneration, appointment,
re-appointment and removal and 1n
addition momtor their independence
and objectwvity including the supply of
non-audit senaces, and

~ tecewe nternal control reports from the
external auditors and meet with themn
the absence of management at teast
once a year to dscuss their remit and
any 1ssues ansing from the audit




In additien the Committee penodically
reviews the arrangements for, and

the effectiveness of the Group’s
‘whistleblowing’ pohcies (detaits of
which are set out on page 36 of the
bustness review)

The Commttee pays particular attention to
the independence and ob)ectwity of the
auditors and has established a policy for
the engagement of the auditors for non-
audht work by the Group Thisinvolves the
Group Director of Finance setting out1n

a report to the Commttee reasons for
appointing the auditers for any matenal
work and obtaining the approval of the
Committee to such appointment which the
Commttee will only grant sf1t1s satisfied
that the auditors’ independence and
ohjectivity are safequarded This1s
acheved by reviewing the appointment
with the auditors as considered
appropnate and recemng from the
auditors at the year end a letter setting
out how the auditors bebieve their
independence and objectiwity have been
maswntained In addition the Company's
current auditors ensure that the semor
partner responsible for the external audit
of the Group remains responsible for such
audit for no more than five years and that
there1s an independent partner who1s
1nvolved in planming and in the reviewing
of the final accounts of the Company and
also any cnbcal matters which may be
ennfied in the audit Details of audit
and non-audit fees are contained 1n

note 6 to the finanaal statements on
page 76

The Executive Directors, subsidiary

finance directors, the auditors, the Group
Financial Controller and the Company’s
internal auditor attend meetings of the
Committee by invitation In additton both
the external and internal auditors have the
nght of direct access to the Committee
without the presence of any Executive
Director or other senior management

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired
by Kate Mortimer Ken Harvey {from 1 June
2007), Gerard Connell and Dinah Nichols
were the other members of the Commttee
The Committee met on seven occasions
dunng the year at which all members were
present with the exception of Kate
Mortimer and Gerard Connell each on one
occasion The Committee s responsible for
deterrmiming the Group’s remuneration

Corporate governance and internal control

policy, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the Chairman and the
remuneration and terms of employment
of the Executive Directors and semor
management of the Group Members of
the Remuneration Committee do not
parboipate 1n decisions concerming their
own remuneration The Directors' report on
remuneration, which also prowides mare
nformation on the actwvities of the
Remuneratien Committee, appears on
pages 47 to 53

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nommation Committee was

chaired by Ken Harvey and also

compnsed Kate Mortimer, Dnah Nichols
and Gerard Connell It meets as and when
required to select and recommend to the
Board switable candidates for appointment
as Executive and Non-executive Directors,
determine the nomination process

and review succession plans Dunng the
year 1t met on two occasions, at which all
members were present, to consider the
annual performance evaluabon results for
the Committee and to review succession
planmng for the Group

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE

The Corparate Responsibility Committee
was chared by Dinah Michols and alse
compnsed Gerard Connell, Kate Mortimer
and the Chief Executives of South West
Water and Vindor It met on six occasions
dunng the year at which all members were
present, except for Gerard Connell on

one occasion The Committee’s duties,

1n the context of the requirement for
companes to conduct their business in a
responsible manner (ncludingin relation
to environmental, social and governance
(ESG) matters), are to review the
strateges, polices, management,
wmbiatives, targets and performance of the
Pennan Group of compames 1n the areas of
occupational health and safety and
secunty, environment, workplace policies,
corporate polices, non-financial
requlatory complance and the role of the
Group n society

In reporting on corporate responsimity,
the Company has sought to comply with
the Association of Bntish Insurers’
Guidebines on Responsible Investment
Disclosure The business review on pages
36 to 41 contains details of ESG matters
and additional information 1$ contained
1n the Group's annual {orporate

Responsibibty Report The 2008 Report
will be on the Company’s website at
www pennon-group co uk from 4 July 2008

COMMITTEES' TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate
Responsibility Committees are avarlable
upon request to the Company Secretary
and are also set out on the Company’s
website at www pennon-group co uk

INTERNAL CONTROL

WIDER ASPECTS OF INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board 1s responsible for the Group’s
system of internal control and for
reviewing 1ts effectiveness The systems
designed to manage rather than ehrmnate
the nsk of fallure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against
matertal misstatement or loss There1s an
engoing process foridentfying, evaluating
and managing the sigmficant nsks faced
by the Group that has been n place
throughout the year 2007,/08 and up to the
date of the approval of thhs Annual Report
and Accounts The Board confirms thatit
continues to apply procedures 1n
accordance with the Combined Code and
the ‘Gudance on Internal Control’

{The Turnbull Gudance) which suggests
means of applying the internal control part
of the Code As part of these procedures
the Board has a formalised nsk
management policy which prevides for the
denbfication of key nsksn relation to the
achievement of the business objectives of
the Group This policy 15 apphed by all
business umts within the Group n
accordance with an annual timetable

RISK IDENTIFICATION

Afull nsk and centrol assessment 15
undertaken annually by the management
of each business to 1dentfy financial and
non-financial nsks and 15 continuously
updated Each business comples (as part
of its regular management reports} an
enhanced and focused assessment

of key nsks against corporate objectwes
The Board at each meehng recewes from
Executive Directors details of any new
high-level nsks 1dentified and how they are
to be managed, together with details of
any changes to existing nisks and their
management The subsichary Boards
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RISK IDENTIFICATION continued

of South West Water and Vindor also
recewve at each meehing simlar reportsn
respect of their own areas of responsibility
All semor managers are required to certify
on an annual basis that they have
established effective controls to manage
nsks and to operate 1 comphance with
legislation and Group procedures All of
these processes serve to ensure thata
culture of effective control and nisk
management s embedded within the
orgamsation and that the Groupisina
position to react appropnately to new nsks
asthey anse Detals of key nsks affecting
the Group are set outin the business
review on pages 14, 24 to 27 and 35

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

As well as the nsk management policy of
the Group there1s an estabhished internal
control framework which compnses

(a) a clearly defined structure which
delegates an appropnate tevel of
authonty, responsiibity and
accountabibty, wncluding responsinlity
forinternal finanaal control, to
management of operating units,

(b

——

a comprehensive budgeting and
reporting funchon with an annual
budget approved by the Board of
Directors, which also momtors monthly
achieved results and updated forecasts
for the year against budget,

(c) documented financial control
procedures Managers of operating
umts are required to confirm annually
that they have adequate finangial
controls in operation and to report
all matenal areas of finanoal nsk
Comphance with procedures 1s
reviewed and tested by the Company's
1nternal audit funchon, and

(d) aninvestment appraisal process for
evaluating proposals for all major
capital expenditure and acquisitions,
with defined levels of approval and a
system for momtonng the progress of
capital projects

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW

An evaluation of the effectiveness of
overallinternal control comphance by the
Group 1s undertaken 1n respect of each
calendar year (and subsequently requlated
to the date of the report) to assist the
Audit Committee 1n considenng the Group
internal audit plan for the forthcomng
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finanoal year and also the business review
for the Annual Report The Group General
Counsel & Company Secretary 1mbally
carnes out the evaluation with Directors
and semor management for consideration
by the Audit Committee and subsequently
for final evaluaton by the Board

In addition the Audht Committee regularly
reviews the operation and effechveness of
the internal control framework and also
annually reviews the scope of work,
authonty and resources of the Company's
wternal audit function and reports to the
Board on such rewiews For 2007/08 and up
to the date of the approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts, both the Audit
Commttee and the Board were satisfied
with the effectiveness of the nsk
management policy and the internal
control framework and thewr operation
withn the Group

GOING CONCERN

The Dhrectors consider, after making
appropnate enquines, that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to
conbinue in operabonal existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason they
conhnue to adopt the gowng concern basis
1n prepanng the financial statements

DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES
STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for prepanng
the Annual Report, the Directors’
remuneration report and the finanoal
statements in accordance with apphicable
law and regutations

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for each
finanoalyear Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group and Company
financal statements 1n accordance with
International Finanoal Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union The finanoal statements
are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company and of their profits and cash
flows for the year

In prepanng these finanaal statements the
Directors are required to

~ select sintable accounting pobices and
then apply them consistently

- make judgements and estimates which
are reasonable and prudent

- state thatthe finannoal statements
comply with IFRS as adopted by
the European Umon

The Directors confirm that they have
comphed with the above requirements

n prepanng the financial statements

The Directors are respensible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any bme the
financial position of the Group and the
Company and te enable them to ensure
that the financal statements and the
Directors’ remuneration report comply with
the Compames Act 1985 and, as regards
the Group financiat statements, arhcle 4

of the International Accounting Standards
(IAS) Regulation They are also respansible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties

RELATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains a regular dialogue
with its insttutional shareholders and has
a comprehensive investor relations
programme Dunng the year, meetngs
with inshtutional shareholders were held
and attended by the Group Director of
Finance and the Company’s Investor
Relathons Manager On certain cccasions
the Chawrman, the Chief Executive of South
West Water and the Chief Executive of
Vindor also attended The Board
encourages the particpation of
shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting and complies wath the prowisions
of the Combined Code 1n respect of
relahons with shareholders In particular,
Non-executive Directors are 1nvited to
attend meetings with institutional
shareholders and analysts” and brokers’
brefings The Group Director of Finance
reports to the Board reqularly on major
shareholders’ views about the Company
Further, surveys of shareholder opimon
conducted, usually on an annual bass, are
evaluated and reported on to the Board

By Order of the anm

KEN WOODIER, Group General Counsel™ -
& Company Secretary
26 June 2008




Independent Auditors’ report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF PENNON GROUP PLC

We have audited the group and parent
company financial statements (the finanoal
statements) of Pennon Group Plc for the
year ended 31 March 2008 which compnse
the Consolidated income statement, the
Group statement of recogmsed income
and expense, the Company statement

of recogmsed come and expense, the
Group balance sheet, the Company
balance sheet, the Group cash flow
statement, the Company cash flow
statement and the related notes

These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting polhicies
set out therewn We have also audited

the information n the Directors’
remunerabion report that s descnbed

as having been audited

RESPECTIVE
RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Drectors’ responsibibties for
prepartng the Annual Report, the
Dwrectors’ remuneration report and the
financial statements 1 accordance with
applicable law and International Financal
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union are set gut in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsiilities

Qur responsibility s to audit the financial
statements and the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
This report, including the opimon, has
been prepared for and only for the
company’s members as a body 1n
accordance with Section 235 of the
Compames Act 1985 and for no other
purpose We do not, 1n gnang this
opimon, accept or assume responsibibty
for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our pnor consent

n wnting

We report to you our oprmion as to
whether the finanoal statements give a
true and fair view and whether the
financal statements and the part of the
Dhrectors’ remunerabion report to be

audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Compames Act 1985
and, as regards the group financal
statements, Article 4 of the JAS
Regulation We also report to you
whether 1n our opimon the \nformation
gwven 1n the Directors' reportis
consistent with the financial statements

In addibion we report to you 1f, 1n our
opinion, the company has not kept
proper accounting records, 1f we have
not received all the \nformation and
explanahons we require for our audit, or
if information speafied by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other
transactiens 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate
Governance Statement reflects the
company's comphance with the mne
provisions of the Combined Code (2006)
speoified for our review by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Senaces Authonty,
and we report 1f 1t does not We are not
required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all
nsks and controls, or form an opimon on
the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures or 1ts nsk and
control procedures

We read other information containedn
the Annual Report and consider whether
1t 1s consistent with the audited financal
statements The other informahon

compnses only the Chairman’s Statement,

the Chief Executives’ overviews, the
business review, the Directers’ report,
the unaudited part of the Directors’
remuneration report and the Board of
Birectors” statement on corporate
governance and internal control

We consider the imphcations for our
report 1if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or matenal
nconsistencies with the finanoal
statements OQur responsibilibes do not
extend to any other nformation

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance
with Internationat Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes
exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the finanoal statements and the part of
the Dwrectors’ remuneration report to be
audited It also includes an assessment of
the sigmificant estimates and judgements

made by the Directors 1n the preparation
of the financal statements, and of
whether the accounting pobaes are
appropnate to the Group's and Company's
circumstances, consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so
as to obtan all the nformation and
explanations whmch we considered
necessary in order to prownide us with
sufficient endence to give reasonable
assurance that the finanoal statements
and the part of the Dwrectors’
remuneration report to be audited are free
from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregulanty

or error In forming our opimon we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of nformation in the
financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ remuneration report to
be audited

OPINION

In our opimon

- the Group financial statements give a
true and fair view, 1n accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the European
Umon, of the state of the Group's
affawrs as at 31 March 2008 and of
s profit and cash fiows for the year
then ended,

- the Company finanoal statements qgive
a true and fair view, 1n accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the European
Umen as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Compames Act
1985, of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 31 March 2008 and cash
flows for the year then ended,

- the financal statements and the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report
to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the
Compames Act 1985 and, as regards
the group financial statements, Article

f the IAS Regulation, and

nformation gwen in the Directors’
the financial

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors

Bnstol

26 June 2008
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Revenue
Operating costs
Manpower costs (excluding restructunng costs)
Raw matenals and consumables used
Other aperating expenses
Depreciation
Restructunng costs
Amortisation of intanqbles
Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures
Profit before tax
Taxation
Profit for the year
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders
Earmngs per share (pence per share)
- Basw
- Dluted
Proposed dindend per share (pence per share }

Proposed dwidend for the year

All operating actwvities are continuing operations

The notes on pages 62 to 112 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2008

.

Notes

5

10

11

11

2008
£m

8750
(100.4)
(54.8)
(349.8)
(127 9)
(40)
(13)
2368
420
{129 4)
02
1496
{16 0)
133.6
133 6
382
379

19 81

69.1

2007
£m

7483
(90 7)
(47 2)

(294 6)

(113 7)

{03)
{18
2000
290
(98 2)
03
1311
(37 2)
939
939
265
263

18 55
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Statements of recognised income and expense for the year ended 31 March 2008

Notes

Profit for the year
Actuanal gawns/(losses) on defined benefit schemes 28

Cash flow hedges
Net fair value (losses}/gains

Tax onitems taken directly to or transferred from equity 8, 29
Net (losses)/gains recogmsed directly 1n equity 34
Total recogmsed income for the year

Attnbutable to equity shareholders

The notes on pages 62 to 112 form part of these financial statements

2008
£m

1336

51

(127)

(14)

(90

1246

1246
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Group

2007
£m

939

(12)

157

04

149

108 8

108 8

2008
£m

74 2

(1.3)

(1.2)

04

(2.1)

Company
2007
im

938

(04)

11

01
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Balance sheets at 31 March 2008

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
(Restated
note 37)
Notes £m im Em im
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwll 14 234 6 1375 - -
Other intangible assets 15 92 79 - -
Property, plant and equipment 16 2,663 0 2,558 9 0.2 02
Trade and other recewables 18 10 4 &9 259 6 1712
Denvanve financal instruments 22 4,0 160 05 17
Deferred tax asset 29 - - 1.6 18
Investment in subsidary undertakings 19 - - 1,045 8 943 8
Investments accounted for using equity method 19 1.4 14 - -

2,922 6 2,728 6 1,306 7 1,118 7

Current assets

Inventones 20 66 51 - -
Trade and other recevables 21 164 7 122 5 704 560
Denvative financal instruments 22 119 - - -
Current tax recoverable 25 - - 71 12
Cash and cash deposits 23 3574 127 9 97 241
540 6 2555 127 2 813
Liabihties
Current habilities
Borrowangs 26 (89 2) (85 8) (297 3) (303 3}
Denvative financial instruments 22 (17 0) - (17 0) -
Trade and other payables 24 (204 2) (176 6) (18 9) (1% 0}
Current tax babihties 25 (43 1) {36 6) - -
Prowisions for habihties and charges 30 (18 1) (13 2) - -

(37116) (3122) (3332) (3223)

Net current assets/ (habihities) 169 0 (56 7) (206 0) (2410}
Non-current habihties

Borrowangs 26 (2,0320) (1,5994) (394.7) {130 0)
Other non-current habilities 27 (4.0) (43) @&n 87
Denvative finanoal instruments 22 (05) - - -
Retrement benefit obligations 28 (26 3) {412) . 29 (34)
Deferred tax llablihes 29 (307 2) (3135) - -
Provisions for habalibes and charges 30 (81 3) (86 3) - -

(24513) (2.0447) (4063) (142 1)

Net assets 640 3 627 2 694 4 7356
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital n 144 5 1449 144 5 144 9
Share premism account 32 117 117 11.7 17
Capital redempbon reserve i3 144 2 143 8 144 2 143 8
Retained earmings and other reserves 34 3399 3268 3940 4352
Total shareholders’ equity 640 3 627 2 694 4 7356

The notes on pages 62 to 112 form part of these financial statements
The financial statements on pages 58 to 112 were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 26 June 2008 and
were signéd onits behalf by
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Cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March 2008

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

Notes £m im £m m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/({outflow) from operations 35 3371 3051 (108 9) (54 5}
Interest paid (96 7) (58 1) (15 8) (B 6)
Tax paid {21 0) (12 0) (13) 23)
Net cash generated/(outflow) from operating activities 2194 2350 (126 ©) {65 4)
Cash flows from investing achwvities
Interest recewved 170 67 215 143
Dmwadends recetved - - 857 901
Acquisibion of subsidvary undertakings (net of cash acquired) 37 {89 0} (37 0) - -
Investment in subsidiary undertakings - - (101 0) -
Return of loan from joint venture 01 01 - -
Proceeds from investment disposal - 06 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (219 2} (251 4) (01) {02)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 11 50 0.1 -
Net cash {used wn)/from investing achvities (290.0} {276 0) 62 104 2
Cash flows from finanaing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary share capital - 19 - 19
Purchase of ordinary shares subsequently cancelled (59) (359) (59) (38)
Purchase of ordinary shares held as treasury shares (43 4) - (43 4) -
Proceeds from treasury shares re-1ssued 16 - 16 -
Ordnary shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust 34 {03) (2 3) - -
Deposit of restncted funds (106 7) (4 1) {0.6) -
Net proceeds from new borrowing 4735 1100 5160 243 2
Repayment of borrowings (157 5) (71 1) (257.3) (250 4)
Finance lease drawdowns 110 4 1302 - -
Finance lease principal repayments {20 4) (21 4) - -
Dwidends paid 11 {65 &) (61 Q) (65 6} {61 0)
B Share payments 3 - (57) - 57)
Net cash recewed/(outflow) from financing achwittes 185 7 730 144 8 {75 5)
Net increase/ (decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents 1151 320 250 (36 7}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginmng of the year 23 1123 803 241 608
Cash and cash equwvalents at end of the year 23 227 4 1123 49.1 241

The notes on pages 62 to 112 form part of these finanmal statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Pennon Group Plc1s a company incorporated 1n the Umted Kingdom under the Compames Act 1985 The address of the registered

office 1s given on page 46 Pennon Group's business 1s operated through two man subsichanes South West Water Limited holds the

water and sewerage appointments for Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset, Vandor Limted's business 1s waste treatment
and dsposal

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting pohicies adopted in the preparation of these financal statements are set out below These polinies have been
consistently applied to atl the years presented

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with Internabienal Financal Reporbing Standards (IFRS) and Internatienal
Finanaal Reporting Interpretations Commttee {IFRIC) interpretahions as adopted by the European Umion, with those parts of the
Compames Act 1985 apphicable to compames reporting under IFRS and the requirements of the Finangial Sennces Authonty A summary
of the pnnapal accounting policies 15 set out below, together with an explanatien where changes have been made to prevtous policies
on the adoption of new accounting standards in the year

At the date of approval of these financial statements the followang standards and nterpretations, which have not been appbed in these
finangial statements, were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 8 “Operating segments”

IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements” (revised)
TIAS 23 “Borrowing costs” (revised})
IAS 27 “Consobidated and separate financial statements” (revised)

IFRIC12  “Serce concession arrangements”
IFRIC13  “Customer loyalty programmes”
IFRIC14  “IAS 19— The limt on a defined benefit asset, mmmum funding reguirements and their interachon ”

The presentationalimpact of these standards and interpretations 1s being assessed and the Directors expect that the adoption of these
standards and interpretatons in future penods will have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group

The preparation of finanaal statements 10 conformity with generally aceepted accounting pnnaples requires the use of estimates and
assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and habbihes at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Although these estimates are based on management’s best assessment
of the amounts, actual events or actions and results may ulbmately differ from those estimates

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Group finanoal statements 1nclude the results of Pennon Group Plc and its subsidary and joint venture undertakings

The results of subsidianes and jont venture undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or incorporatien, and excluded from
the date of disposal The results of subsichanes are consolbdated where the Group has the power to controla subsidiary The results of
Jomt venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the company exercised joint control under a contractual
arrangement

0n acquisition, the assets and babibties and contingent labilittes of a subsidiary or joint venture acquired are measured at their far
values and any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the idenbfiable net assets acquired 1s recogmsed as goodwill
Where the cost of acquisition 1s below the fair values of the identfiable net assets acquired a credit 1s recogmsed 1n profit and loss in
the year of acquisition
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Notes to the financial statements

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

lc] Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration recewable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and inter company sales, 1n
the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue s recogmsed ence the services or goods have been provided to the customer

Income from marn water and waste water charges includes billed amounts for estmated usage and also an estimahon of the amount of
unbilled charges at the penod-end based upon a defined methodology reflecting histoncal consumption and current tanffs Income
from electnaity generated from waste management landfill gas producbon includes an eshmation of the amount to be recewed under
renewables obhgation certificates

Interest income 1s recogmised on a me-apportianed basis using the effective interest method

[d} Landfill tax

Landfill tax 1s included within both revenue and operating costs It 1s determined by the Government and s a cost to the Group but1s
recovered from customers

(e) Segmental reporting

Each of the Group’s business segments provides serices which are subject to nsks and returns which are different from those of the
other business segments The Group's internal orgamsation and management structure and 1ts system of nternal financial reparting 1
based primanly on business segments The business segments compnse the regulated water and sewerage senices undertaken by South
West Water Limited and the waste management business of Vindor Limted Segmental revenue and results include transactions
between businesses Inter-segmental transachons are ehmnated on consohdabon

(f) Goodwill

Goodwll ansing on consohidation from the acquisition of subsidhary and joint venture undertakings represents the excess of the
purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets acquired

Goodwtl1s recogmsed as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Anyimpairmentis recogmsed immediately 1n the
mcome statement and 15 not subsequently reversed Further details are contained 1n accounting policy (k)

When a subsihary or Joint venture undertaking 1s sold, the profit or loss on disposal1s determined after including the attnbutable
amount, of unamortised goodwalt

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before 1 Apnl 2004 (the Group's date of transiion to IFRS) has been retaned at the previous UK GAAP
amounts, subject to being tested for impawment at that date and annually thereafter Goodwill wntten off to reserves under UK GAAP
pror to 1998 was not reinstated on transition to IFRS and will not be 1ncleded 1n determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

(g) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired 1 a business combination are captabised at fair value at the date of acquisibon  Following imtiat
recogmition, fimte hife intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives, with the
expense taken to the income statement through operabing expenses
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Notes to the financial statements

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(h) Property, ptant and equipment

1) Infrastructure assets (being water mawmns end sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, pipelines and
sea outfalls)

Infrastructure assets were included at fair value on transihon to IFRS and subseguent additions are recorded at cost less accumulated
deprecabion Expenditure to increase capacity or enhance infrastructure assets 1s capitalised where 1t can be reliably measured and it 1s
probable that incremental future economc benefits will flow to the entity The cost of day-to-day servicing of infrastructure
compenents 1s recognsed n the income statement as it anses

Infrastructure assets are depreciated over their useful economic hives, which are pnncipally

Dams and y/mpounding reservoirs 200 years
Water mains 40 - 100 years
Sewers 40 - 100 years

Assets n the course of construction are not depreciated untit commissioned
n) Landfill sites

Landfill sites are included within land and buildings at cost less accumulated depreaation Costincludes acquisition and development
expenses The cost of a landfill1s depreciated to its residual value {which 1s inked to gas produchion at the site post-closure) overits
estimated operational life taking account of the usage of vord space

Where the obhgation to restore a landfill site 1s an integral part of 1ts future economic benefits, a non-current asset within property,
plant and equipment 1s recognised The asset recogmsed 1s depreciated based on the usage of vord space

ni) Other assets (including properties, over-ground plant and equipment)}
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated deprecation

Freehold tand 1s not depreciated Other assets are depreciated evenly to thewr residual value over therr estimated economic lives which
are pnncipally

Freeheld buildings 30 - 60 years

Leasehold buildings Over the penod of the lease
Operational structures 40 — B0 years

Fixed plant 20 - 40 years

Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3 - 10 years

Assets 1n the course of construction are not depreciated until commissioned

The cost of assets includes directly attnbutable labour and overhead costs which are incremental te the Group Borrowing costs which
are directly attnbutable to the constructron of a quabifying asset (an asset which necessanly takes a substantial penod of time to be
prepared forits intended use) are capitabised as part of the asset

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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Notes to the financial statements

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

i) Grants and contributions
Grants and contnbutions recewvable 1n respect of property, plant and equipment are deducted from the cost of those assets

Grants and contnbutions recevable n respect of expenditure charged agawnst profits in the year have been included in the income
statement

() Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are included n the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment at their equiwvatent capital value
and are depreated over thewr eshmated economic lives or the finance lease penod, whichever 1s the sharter The corresponding
habibty 15 recorded as borrowings The ntevest element of the rental costs 1s charged against profits using the actuanal method over
the penod of the lease

Rental costs ansing under operating leases are charged against profits 1n the year they are incurred

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets which have an indefinite useful Life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or whenever events
or changes n crcumstance ndicate that the carning amount may not be recoverable

Assets which are subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes 1n arcumstance 1ndicate
that the carnynng amount may not be recoverable

An mparrment loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable
amount s the tgher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating umits) Value in use represents the
present value of projected future cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-generating umt, discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate which reflects an assessment of the cost of capital of the cash-generating umt

Impawments are charged to the ncome statement 1n the year in which they anse

(1] Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidhary undertakings are imitally recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid, including
assoniated acquisibion costs Subsequently, nvestments are reviewed for impairment on an indwadual basis, annually or 1f events or
changes in aircumstance indicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable

[m] Joint ventures

Jownt ventures are entities over which the Group has Joint control Investments 1n Jjoint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the far values of the denntfiable net assets

of the Joint venture at the date of acquisihion 15 recogmsed as goodwill and 1s 1ncluded 1n the carrying value of the investment 1n the
jont venture

The carrying value of the Group’s investment 1s adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition profits ot losses recogmised in the
income statement Losses of a Joint venture 1n excess of the Group’s interest are not recogmsed unless the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation to fund those losses

[n) Cash and cash deposits

Cash and cash deposits compnse cashn hand and short-term deposits held at banks Bank overdrafts are shown within
current borrowings
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Notes to the financial statements

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{o) Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Group classifies 1its financialinstruments 1n the following categones
1) Loans and recewvables

All loans and borrowings are initially recogmsed at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Followng imtial recogmtion, interest-
beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective 1nterest method

Gawns and losses are recogmsed n the income statement when the instruments are derecognised or impawred Premia, discounts and
other costs and fees are recogmised in the income statement through the amortisation process

Borrowings are classified as current habilitres unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the hablity for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date

1} Denvative financial instruments and hedging achwities

The Group uses denvatve financial instruments, pnnaipally interest rate swaps, to hedge its nsks associated wath interest rate
fluctuatrons Denvatve instruments are imibally recogmsed at fair value on the date the denvatwve contract 1s entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value for the reported balance sheet

The gamn or loss on remeasurement 1s taken to the income statement except for cash flow hedges that meet the conditions for hedge
accounting, when the portton of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument which 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogmsed
directly 1 equity, and the ineffective portion in the income statement The gains or losses deferred 1n equity in this way are
subsequently recogmsed in the income statementn the same penod 1n which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment 1s
recogmsed 1n the income statement

In order to guabfy for hedge accounting, the Group s required to document wn advance the relatienship between the item being hedged
and the hedging mstrument The Group 1s also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the
hedged 1tem and the hedging wnstrument, which shows that the hedge will be lnghly effective on an on-going basis This effectiveness
testing 1s reperformed at the end of each reporting penod to ensure that the hedge remawns highly effective

The full fair value of a hedging denvatwe s classified as non-current asset or hability when the rematmng hedged 1tem 15 more than 12
months, and as a current asset or habibty when the remaimng matunty of the hedged item 15 less than 12 months

Dernwvative instruments which do not quabfy for hedge accounting are classified as a current asset or hability wath any change i fair
value recogmsed immedately 1n the income statement

m) Trade recevables

Trade recewvables do not carry any nterest and are recogmsed imbally at far value and subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment A provision for impawrment of trade recewables 1s established when thereas
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recewables

w) Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest bearing and are recogmsed 1mihally at fair vatue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or habhity and of allocating the interest
mncome or expense over the relevant pertod The effective 1nterest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts eshmated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected hife of the finanaal asset or habibity or, where appropnate, a sherter pened
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Notes to the financial statements

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(p] Taxation including deferred tax

Tax payable for the yearis prowided at current rates which are substantively enacted Deferred taxation 1s provided 1n fult using the
habihity methed on temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and babilities and thew carrying amounts n the finanoal
statements A deferred tax asset s only recogmsed to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the
future for it to be utihsed

[q] Provisions for Liabillities and charges

Provisions are made where there 1s a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 1t 1s probable that there wall
be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obhgation and a rebiable estmate of thys amount can be made The Group’s policy on
prowvisions for specific areasas

1) Landfill restoration costs

Provisions for the cost of restonng landfill sites are made when the obligation anses Where the obligation recogmised as a provision
gwves access to future economic benefits, a non-current asset in property, plant and equipment s recogmsed Provisions are otherwise
charged against profits

n) Environmentat control and aftercare costs

Environmental control and aftercare costs are wncurred over the operational bfe of each landfill site and may be wncurred for a
considerable pencd thereafter Prowvision for all such costs 1s made over the operational bfe of the site and charged to the income
statement on the basis of the usage of vord space

Provisions for restructuning costs are recogmsed when a detailed formal plan for the restructunng has been communicated to
affected parties

Where the effect of the fime value of money 1s matenal the current amount of a provision 15 the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle chbgahons The unwinding of the discount to present value 1s included as a financiat item within
finance costs

(r) Share capital and treasury shares
Ordnary shares are classified as equity

Where any Group company purchases the Company‘s equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideration pard, including any directly
attnbutable costs, 15 deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or rerssued Where such shares are subsequently reissued any
consideration recewed, net of any directly attnbutable transachon costs, 15 1ncluded n equity

The Group balance sheet wncorporates the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust and which have not vested by the balance
sheet date These are shown as a deduchion from shareholders’ equity until such time as they vest

(s] Dividend distributions

Divndend distnbubions are recogmsed as a hability 1n the finanoal statements in the penod in which the dwvidends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders Intenm dwidends are recogmsed when paid, final dividends when approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{t] Employee benefits
1} Pension obligations
The Group operates defined benefit and defined contnbution pension schemes

Defined benefit schemes

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using nd pnce Defined benefit pension scheme hahitities are measured by an
independent actuary using Directors’ best eshmates The projected umt credst method 15 employed and babhibes are discounted at the
current rate of return on high quality corperate bonds of equivalent term to the bability The increase in the present value of the
habilihes of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected to anse from employee service 1n the penod 1s charged agawnst
operating profit The expected return on scheme assets and the increase dunng the penod in the present value of scheme babilities are
ncluded 1n other finance income or cost Changes in past service costs ansing from changes n benefits are recogmsed immedately

n nceme

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity
and recorded 1n the statement of recogmsed income and expense

Defined contnbution scheme
Costs of the defined contnbution pension scheme are charged to the income statement in the penod in which they anse

n) Share-based payment

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based payment plans for employees The fair value of the employee sennces
required in exchange for the grant1s recogmsed as an expense gver the vesting pencd of the grant

Fair values are calculated using an appropnate pneaing model Non market-based vesting conditians are adyusted for 1 assumptiens as
to the number of shares which are expected to vest

(u) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as tncurred, except where 1t 15 virtually certain that the contract will be awarded, 1n which case they are
recogmsed as an asset which 1s amortised to the mcome statement over the bfe of the contract

{v) Fair values

The fair value of the interest rate swaps 1s based on the market pnce of comparable nstruments at the balance sheet date if they are
pubhcly traded

The fair values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their
book values Inthe case of bank leans and other loans due in more than one year the fair value of financial babihibes for disclosure
purposes 1s esbmated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate avallable to the Group for
sumlar finanoal instruments
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial nisk factors

The Group's achwvibies expose 1t to a vanety of finanoal nsks, market nsk {interest rate nsk), bguidity nsk and credit nsk The Group's
treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 1s available to meet foreseeable needs, maintains reasonable headroom for
contingencies and manages inflation and interest rate nsk

The pnnaipal finanaal nsks faced by the Group relate to interest rate and counterparty nsk

These nsks and treasury operations are managed by the Group Dwector of Finance 1n accordance with policies established by the Board
Major transactions are indwidually approved by the Board Treasury activibies are reported to the Board and are subject to review by
mternal audit

Financal instruments are used to raise finance, manage nsk and optimise the use of surplus funds The Group does not engage 1n
speculabive actvity

1) Market risk

The Group has a polhicy of maintayming at least 50% of interest beanng habibines at fixed rates The Group uses a combination of fixed
rate and index-hnked borrowings and fixed rate interest swaps as cash flow hedges of future vanable 1nterest payments to achieve this
policy Atthe year end 58% of net borrowings were at fixed rates and 20% mdex-linked The notional pnnaipal amounts of the nterest
rate swaps are used to determine settlement under those swaps and are not, therefore, an exposure for the Group These instruments
are analysed n note 26

The wnterest rate for index-linked debt s based upon an RPI measure which s also used in determiming the amount of income from
customers 1n South West Water

The Group has no sigmficant interest-beaning assets upon which the net return fluctuates from market nsk Deposit interest recewable
15 expected to fluctuate 1n line with interest payable on floating rate borrowings Consequently the Group's Income and cperating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes 1n market interest rates

At 31 March 2008 if interest rates on net borrowings at that date had been 0 5% higher/lower with all other vanables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been £1 9 mithon (2007 £1 ¢ milhon) lower/hgher

n} Lgurdity nsk

The Group actwvely mawntains a mixture of long-term and short-term committed facihhes that are designed to ensure the Group has
sigmficant available funds for operations and planned expansions and faabties equivalent to at least one year's forecast requirements
are maintained at all imes Details of undrawn committed facilities and short-term uncommitted facibihies are provided 1n note 26

Refinancing nsk 1s managed under a Group pobicy which requires no more than 20% of Group net borrowings 1s permitted to mature in
any financial year

The Group and South West Water Limited have entered 1nto covenants with lenders Whilst terms vary, these tymically provide for lirmts

on geanng (pnmanly based on South West Water Liinited’s Regulatory Capital Value and Vindor Limited's EBITDA) and interest cover
More detals are provided in the Directors’ report on page 33
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

(a) Financial risk factors continued
n) bLgudity nsk (contmued)

Contractual undhscounted cash flows were

Dug within Due between Due between Overs
1 year 1and 2 years Zand 5 years years Total
im im £m im tm
31 March 2008
Non-denvative financial fabrlities
Borrowings excluding finance lease hablibes 341 2191 246 3 4311 930 6
Interest payments on borrowings 423 400 436 827 2 9531
Finance lease habilibes 749 146 0 164 4 1,977 9 23632
Denvative financial habiities
Denvative contracts — net receipts 40 25 05 - 70
Due wmithin Due between Oue between Over 5
1 year 1and 2 years 2z and 5 years years Total
im im im fm fm

31 March 2007
Non-denvative financial bhabiities
Borrowings excluding finance lease hatmhities 372 541 366 3 1455 6031
Interest payments on borrowings 340 287 470 271 1368
Finance lease batlitres 536 116 3 1271 1,693 4 1,990 4
Penvabve financal habritres
Denvative contracts - net receipts 67 106 68 - 241

m) Credit nsk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash deposits, dervatwe financialinstruments and deposits with banks ard financialinstitutions,
as well as exposure to trade customers, ncluding outstanding recewables Furtherinformation on the credit nsk relating to trade
recevablesis given n note 21

Counterparty nsk anses from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of denvative instruments The Board has agreed a

policy for managing such nsk which 1s controlled through credit hmits, counterparty approvals and ngorous momtonng procedures
The Group has no other sigmficant concentration of credit nsk The Group’s surplus funds are usually placed 1n short-term fixed interest
deposits or the overmght money markets All deposits are with counterparties which have a credit rating threshotd approved

by the Board
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

(b]) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern n order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to mimmise the cost of capital

In order to mawntain or adjust the capital structure the Group seeks to mantain a balance of returns to shareholders through dwidends
and an appropnate capital structure of debt and equity for each business segment and the Group

The Group momitors capital nsk on the basis of the geanng rabc This ratios calculated as net borrowings divided by total capatal
Net borrowings are analysed 1n note 36 and are calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash deposits Total capitals calculated as
total sharcholders’ equity plus net borrowings

The geanng ratios at 31 March 2008 and 2007 were

2008 2007

£m £m

Net barrowings (note 36} 1,763 8 1,557 3
Total shareholders’ equity 640 3 627 2
Total caprtal 2,404 1 2,184 5
Geanng ratio 73% 1%

South West Water Limited 1s also momtored on the basis of the rabo of its net borrowings to Regulatory Capital Value

2008 2007

£m fm
Regutatory Capital Value 2,408 0 2,265 0
Net borrowings 1,4500 1,401 2
Net barrowings/Regulatory Capital Value 60% 62%

[c) Determination of fair values

The fair value of financial struments traded n active markets (such as trading and available-for-sate secunties) 1s based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group s the current bad pnce

The fair value of financial instruments which are not traded 1n an active market (for example, over-the-counter denvatves }1s
deterrmned by using valuation techmques The Group uses a vanety of methods and makes assumptions which are based on market
condihons existing at each balance sheet date Quoted market pnces or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term
debt Other techmques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaiming financial
mstruments The fair value of nterest rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estimated future net cash flows

The carrying values less impawrment provision of trade recewables and payables are assumed to approximate to their far values
The fair value of financial habbhes for disclosure purposes s estmated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate which 1s available to the Group for similar financial instruments
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's prinaipal accounting policies are set out 1n note 2 Management 1s required to exerase sigmficant judgement and make use
of estimates and assumptions in the applicabion of these policies

Areas which management beleves require the most cntical accounting judgements are ‘

Underlying business performance

Underlying business performance 1s presented to provide more representative information on underlying trends The term underlying
18 not a defined term under IFRS, and may not be comparable with similarly titled profit measurements reported by other compames
A reconaibation between underlying and reported measures 1s included 1n note 10 and 1n the Directors’ report on page 28

Exceptional items

The Dwectors consider that items of income or expense which are matenal and non-recurnng by virtue of thesr nature and amount
should be disclosed separately if the financial statements are to fairly present the financial posihon and financial performance of the
Group The Directors label these items collectvely as “excephional items”

Enmvironmentat and landfill restaration provisions

Restoration and aftercare provisions are recogmsed n the financial statements at the net present value of the estimated future
expenditure required to settle the Group’s restoration and aftercare obhgations A discount s applied to recogmse the hime
value of money and 1s unwound over the hife of the provision Thisis included 1n the income statement as a financal stem within
interest payable As at 31 March 2008 the Group’s environmental and landfill restoration prowisions were £97 7 milbon

Where a provision gives access te future economic benefits, an asset1s recogmsed and depreciated 1n accordance with the Group's
depreciabion policy

Capitabisation of borrowing costs

The Group capitalises borrowing costs which are matenal and directly attnbutable to the construction of quabfying assets, which are
assets that necessanly take a substantal penod of time to be prepared for their intended use Currently only the assets under
constructon in the Lakeside Energy from Waste joint venture meet the cnitena for capitabsation

Retwrement benefit obligatons
The Group operates defined benefit schemes for which actuanal valuations are carned cut as determined by the trustees at intervals of
not more than three years

The penston cost under IAS 19 15 assessed in accordance with Directors” best estimates using the advice of an independent quabfied
actuary and assumphons in the latest actuanal valuation The assumptions are based on information supplied to the actuary

by the Company, supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management The pnncipal assumptions used to measure
schemes’ habilibes, sensitivities to changes 1n assumptions and future funding oblhigations are disclosed 1n note 28 of the financial
statements

Cash-generating umts ‘

For the purposes of assessing 1mpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 1dentsfiable cash flows
(cash-generating umts) The waste management segment 15 considered to be a single cash-generabng umt as 1t 1s an integrated
business
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES continued

Areas which management beheves require the most cntical accounting estimations are

Landfill costs

The estmation of landfill reserves 1s of particular importance i assessing landfill costs, since the cost of a landfill site 1s depreciated
over 1ts estimated operabonal hfe taking 1nto account the usage of void space and gas production at the site post closure The estimates
of landfill reserves are regularly reviewed and updated duning the financal year for usage and other events (for example site
extensions) Esthimates are also subject to physical review by external adwisors

A number of factors impact on the depreciation of landfill reserves incluchng the available landfill space, future capital expenditure and
eperating costs The assumphions are revised as these factors change

Carrnying value of long-hfe assets

The Group's accounting pahcy for property, plant and equipment assets 1s set out 1n note 2 The carrying value of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 March 2008 was £2,663 0 mlbon In the year ended 31 March 2008 additions totalled £228 8 milon and the
depreciahion charge was £129 2 milhon Estimated useful economic bives of property, plant and equipment are based on management's
Judgement and expenence When management identfies that actual useful ves differ matenally from the estimates used to calculate
depreciation, that charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due to the sigmficance of capital investment to the Group, vanations between
actual and estimated useful lives could 1mpact operating results both positively and negatively Histoncally, only minor changes to
eshmated useful Lives have been required

Revenue recogmtion
The Group recogmses revenue at the time of delivery of sennces Payments received 1n advance of services delivered are recorded as
a habibity

South West Water Limited raises bills and recogmses revenue m accordance with 1ts entitlement to receive revenue 1n line with the
hmits estabhished by the Penodic Review pnce setting process For water and waste water customers with water meters, revenue
recogmsed 1s dependent upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales value of umts supplied between the date of the
last meter reading and the finanoal year end Estimated usage 15 based on histonc data, judgement and assumptions, actual results
could differ from these eshmates which would result 1n operating revenue being adjusted 1n the penod 1n which the revision of the
estimates 1s determined

Prowvision for doubtful debts

At the balance sheet date each subsicdhary evaluates the collectability of trade debtors and records provisions for doubtful debts based
on expenence including compansons of the relahve age of accounts and consideration of actual write-off history The actual level of
debt collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery and could 1mpact future operating results positely or negatively

As at 31 March 2008 the Group’s current trade recewables were £149 6 mibon, against which £36 2 milhon was provided for impairment

Impawrment of 1ntanqible assets
The Group records all assets and babibties acquired in business acquisitiens, including goodwall, at farr value Intangible assets which
have an indefimte useful hfe, panaipally goodwill, are assessed at least annually for impawrment

The 1mtial goodwll recorded and subsequent imparment analysis require management to make estmations of future cash flows,
terminal values and an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate to be appbed to those cash flows which reflects an assessment
of the cost of capital of the cash-generating umt

5 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The water and sewevage business compnses the requlated water and sewerage senaces undertaken by South West Water Limited

The waste management business s the waste treatment, recyching and disposal seraces provided by Vindor Limited Other includes
parent company financing of business acquisihons made before 1999 Segment assets include goodwall and other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment, 1nventones, trade and other recervables and cash and cash equivalents Segment hahilibes compnse
operating habihties and exclude taxahon The other segment habilihes include the Company’s financing of business acquisitions and
Group taxation habliies Capital expenditure compnses additions to property, plant and equipment, including additrons resulting from
acquisthons through business combinations
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5. SEGMENTAL REPORTING continued

2008 2007
£m £m
Revenue
Water and sewerage 4210 3815
Waste management 4551 3677
Other 84 76
Less intra-segment trading* {95) (85)
8750 748 3
Segment result
Undertying operahing profit before depreciatson and amortisaton (EBITDA)
Water and sewerage 2700 234 8
Waste management 101 0 828
Other (1.0} (18)
370.0 3158
Underlying operating profit
Water and sewerage 1850 1571
Waste management 581 468
Other (10} (18)
2421 2021
Operating profit
Water and sewerage 1810 156 8
Waste management 568 450
Other (1.0} (18)
2368 2000
Underlying profit before tax
Water and sewerage 1205 99 2
Waste management 355 29 4
Other (11) 46
154 9 1332
Profit before tax
Water and sewerage 1165 98 ¢
Waste management 342 27 6
Other (11) 46
149 6 1311

All operating actwities are continuing operations

*Intra-segment trading between and to other segments by the water and sewerage and waste management segments 1s under normal commeraal terms
and condihons that would also be avaitable to unrelated third parties Intra-segment revenue of the other segment s at cost

A reconahation between underlying and reported measures 1s included 1n the Dwectors’ report on page 28
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5 SEGMENTAL REPORTING contrnued

Water and Waste
sewerage management Other Eiminations Group
{Restated
note 37}
im £m fim im fm
Balance sheet
31 March 2008
Assets (excluding investment 1n joint ventures) 2.632 6 1758 794 5 {741 1) 3,4618
Investment 1n jont ventures - 14 - - 14
Total assets 2,6326 7772 794 5 {741 1) 3,463 2
Liztihties {1,829 8) (647 0) (1087 2) 7411 (2,822 9)
Net assets/(babibties) 8028 130 2 (282 7) - 6403
31 March 2007
Assets (excluding 1nvestment in Joint ventures) 2,429 2 5935 5531 {593 1) 29827
Investment in joint ventures - 14 - - 14
Total assets 2,429 2 5949 5531 {593 1) 2,9841
Liabibhties (1,659 9) (480 1) (810 0) 5931 (2.356 9)
Net assets/(habhhes) 769 3 114 8 (256 9) - 627 2

Segment babilibes of the water and sewerage and waste management segments compnse operabng habihbes The other segment habbties mclude the
Company’s finanaing of business acquisitions and Group taxabon babibbes

Water and Waste
sewerage management Other Group
im £m £m £m

Other information
31 March 2008
Amorhsation of otherintangible assets {note 15) - 13 - 13
Capital expenditure (including acquisibiens) 169 7 1480 01 317 8
Cepreciation 85 Q 42 9 - 127 9
31 March 2007
Amortisation of other intangsble assets {note 15) - 18 - 18
Capital expenditure (including acquisitions} 184 0 947 9 02 2821
Deprecation 7 360 - 13z
Geographical segments

Separate disclosure by geographical segment 1s not shown since the operations of the Group are all located 1n the Umted Kingdom
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& OPERATING COSTS

2008 2007
£m im
Manpower costs (note 12) 100 4 907
Raw matenals and consumables 54 8 472
Other operating expenses include
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (2 6)
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plantand machinery 59 72
- Property 52 15
Research and development expenditure 02 01
Trade recewables impairment 60 56
Depreciation of property, plant and equpment
- Owned assets 98 9 907
- Under finance leases 90 230
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 15) 13 18
Fees payahle to the Group's auditors wn the year were
2008 2007
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's accounts 46 37
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for other senices to the Group
Audht of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 297 243
Other senices pursuant to tegislation 23 17
Tax senvices 197 162
Senaces relating to corporate finance transactions 359 188
All other sennces 5 97
927 744
Fees poyable to the Company’s ouditors in respect of Pennon Group pension schemes
Audht 22 22

Expenses reimbursed to the auditors 1n relation to the audit of the Group were £30,000 (2007 £25,000)

A descniption of the work of the Audht Committee 15 set out in 1ts report on pages 54 and 55 which includes an explanation of how
auditor ohjectimty and independence are safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors
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7 NET FINANCE COSTS

2008 2007
£m £m
finance income
Interest recevable 210 69
Expected return on pension schemes” assets {note 28) 210 221
420 290
Finance costs
Bank borrowings and overdrafts {47 6) {33 3)
Interest element of finance lease rentals {52 8) (419)
Other finance costs {14) (08)
Interest cost on retirement benefit obligatons (note 28) (18 5) (18 4)
Unwinding of discounts 1n provisions (note 30} (4 3) (41

(124 6) (98 3)
Net gains/{losses} on denvative instruments

Ineffectiveness on denvatives designated as cash flow hedges {note 22) 0.3 01
0n denvatives deemed held for trading (note 22) (51) -
(120 4) (98 2)
Net finance costs (87 4) (69 2)
8 TAXATION
2008 2007
m £m

Analysis of charge n year

Current tax 250 239
Deferred tax 120 133
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate (210} -
Total deferred tax {note 29) (9.0) 133
160 372

UK carporation tax 1s calculated at 30% {2007 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year The deferred tax charge has

been reduced by a non-recurning credit of £21 0 mlbion reflecting the reduchon 1n the rate of UK corporation tax from 30% to 28%
effective 1 Apnt 2008 The tax for the year differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK (30%) from

2008 2007
£m fm

Profit before tax 149 6 1311
Profit before tax multiplied by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 30% (2007 30%) 449 393
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 27 07
Sale of assets and finance leasing - {38)
Other (23) 06
Capital gains reduced by capital losses {4 2) -
Effect of reductionn the rate of UK corporation tax on deferred tax (21 6)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor years (35) 04
Tax charge for year 160 372

The average applicable tax rate for the year was 11% (2007 28%)

In addition to the amount credited to the income statement, a deferred tax charge relating to actuanal gans on defined benefit
schemes of £1 4 million {2007 credit on actuanat losses £0 4 milhon) has been charged directly to equity A deferred tax credit relating
to share-based payment of £0 2 millon (2007 nil) has been credited directly to equaty
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8 TAXATION continued

1t has also been announced that industnal buildings allewances will be phased out over three years commencaing 1 Apnl 2008, but at
31 March 2008 the change was not substantwely enacted The prowvision to abolish industral buildings allowances 1s contaned in the
Finance Bill 2008 and, 1f fully enacted, 1s hkely to increase the deferred tax hability by an estimated £30 milhon

9 PROFIT OF PARENT COMPANY

2008 2007
£m m
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders dealt with n the accounts of the parent company 742 938

As permitted by Section 230 of the Compames act 1985 no 1ncome statement 1s presented for the Company

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share are calculated by dwading the earmings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust (note 34) which are treated as
cancelled

For diluted earmings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to include all dilutive potential
ordnary shares The Group has twe types of dilutive potential ordinary shares - those share options granted to employees where the
exercise price s less than the average market pnce of the Company's ordinary shares dunng the year, and the contingentty 1ssuable
shares under the Group’s Restricted Share Plan, the Performance and Co-investment Plan and the deferred shares element of the
Incentive Bonus Plan, to the extent that the performance cntena for vesting of the awards are expected to be met

The werghted average number of shares and earmings used n the calculatons were

2008 2007
Number of shares (mlhons)
For basic earmings per share 3497 3539
Effect of dilutwe potential ordinary shares from share options 2.7 32
For diluted earnings per share 352 4 3571

Underlying basic and diluted earmngs per share

Underlying earmings per share are presented to provide more representative information on underlying trends The term underlying is
not a defined term under IFRS and may not be comparable with a similarly titled profit measure reported by other compames
Underlying earmings have been calculated

2008 2007
Profit Earnings per share Profit Earmngs per share
after tax Bashc Olluted after tax Bang Dituted
£m p P im |3 P
Earnings per share 1336 3g2 7.9 939 265 263
Restructunng costs (net of tax) 33 09 0.9 02 01 01
Amortsation of intangibles 13 Q4 04 18 05 05
Deferred tax (8 0) {2 6) (2 5) 133 38 37
Underlying earmings per share 129 2 369 367 109 2 309 306

All operating activities are continuing operaticns
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11 DIVIDENDS
2008
£m
Amounts recogmised as distnbubions to equity holders 1n the year
Intenm dwdend pard for the year ended 31 March 2007 5 85p (2006 5 5p) per share 208
Final dnvidend paid for the year ended 31 March 2007 12 7p (2006 11 7p) per share 44 8
656
Proposed dividends
Proposed intenm dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2008 6 25p (2007 5 85p) per share 218
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 13 56p (2007 12 7p) per share 473
691

The proposed intenm and final dwidends have not been included as habilibies n these financal statements  The proposed intenm

2007

19 4
416

610

208
448

656

dwidend for 2008 was paid on 9 Apnl 2008 and the proposed final dividend s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual

General Meeting

12 EMPLOYMENT COSTS

2008
£m
Wages and salanes 88 9
Socal secunty costs 78
Pension costs 151
Share-based payments 19
Total employment costs 1137
Charged
Manpower costs 100 4
Capital schemes 105
Restructunng costs 28
Total employment costs 1137

Detanls of Directors’ emoluments are set out1n note 13 There are no personnel, other than Directors, who as key management exercise

authonty and responsibility for planming, directing and controlling the actwities of the Group

2008
Employees (average number)
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive [hrectors) was
Water and sewerage 1,276
Waste management 2,059
Other 42
Group totals 3,317

The total number of employees at 31 March 2008 was 3,388 (2007 3,204)
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77

142
21

1009

907
89
03

100 9

2067
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13 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

2008 2007
£000 £000

Executive Dhrectors
Salary 875 803
Performance related bonus payable 390 286
Share-based payments 461 501
Other emoluments 63 112
Payment in heu of pension provision 83 48
Payments related to supplementary pension - 100
Non-executive Directors 358 319
2,230 2,169

The cost of share-based payments represents the amount charged to the income statement, as descnbedn note 31

The aggregate gains on vesting of Directors’ share-based awards amounted to a total of £1,231,000 (2007 £512,000) of which the
vesting of Restncted Share Plan awards was £1,006,000 {2007 mil) relahng to the 2004 award, the details of which are shown on
page 52

Totak gains made by Directors on the exercise of share ophions were £36,000 (2007 £15,000)
Total emoluments nclude £1,283,000 (2007 £1,074,000) payable to Directors for senaces as directors of subsidhary undertakings

At 31 March 2008 rebrement benefits were accruing to two Directors under defined benefit pension schemes {2007 two)

The accrued pension entitlement at 31 March 2008 under defined benefit schemes of the highest paid Drector was £111,000 {2007
£90,000) No pension contnbutions were payable to defined contnbution schemes but one Director has receved payments 1n bieu of
pension provision

More detailed wnformation concermng Directors’ emoluments (including pensions and the lighest pard Diector) and share intevests s
shown 1n the Directors’ remuneration report

80 Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts




Notes to the financial statements

14 GOODWILL

{Restated note 37}
im
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 98 6
Recogmsed on acquisihon of subsidhanes 389
At 31 March 2007 137 5
Recognised on acquisihon of subsidhanes (note 37) 97 1
At 31 March 2008 234 6
Carnnng amount
At 31 March 2007 137 5
At 31 March 2008 2346

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combnatien 1s allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating umt (CGU) expected to benefit from that
business combinatien All of the carnnng amount of goodwiil1s allocated to the waste management segment which 15 considered to be a
single CGU, as it 1s an integrated business

Goodwll1s reviewed annually or when other events or changes i circumstance indicate that the carnang amount may not be fully
recoverable

The recoverable amount of the waste management segment 1s determined from value i use calculations The key assumptions n those
calcutations relate to discount rates, cash flows, pnce increases and for landfill, the compaction rate (ash flow projechons are based
on approved budgets and plans for the next five years and beyond this penod on long-term growth rates for the waste sector based on
GDP The cash flows have been discounted using a pre-tax nominal dhscount rate of 13 2% which reflects the overall business nsks
associated with the waste management segment actwvihes

15 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer Patents Total
. contracts (Restated
(Restated note 37) note 37)
im fm fm
Acquired mtangible assets
Cost
At 1Apnl 2006 85 0z 87
Acquisitrons 40 - 40
At 31 March 2007 125 02 127
Acquisifions 26 - 26
At 31 March 2008 151 0z 153
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2006 30 - 30
Charge for year 18 - 18
At 31 March 2007 48 - 48
Charge for year 13 - 13
At 31 March 2008 61 - 61
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2007 17 02 79
At 31 March 2008 90 02 g2
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15 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

Customer contracts are amorhsed over the useful economic bfe of each contract which at acquisition ranged between two and 15 years
The average remaiming life 15 five years

Patents are amorbised over their estimated useful economc bves which at acquisition was 13 years The average remaining bife 1s nine years

The carrying value of other intangible assets 1s revewed annually or when events or changes 1n arcumstance indicate that the carrying
amount may not be fully recoverable

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2006

Ansing on acquisittons
Additions

Other

Grants and contnbutions
Dhsposals
Transfers/reclassificabons

At 31 March 2007

Ansing on acquisittons
Addibans

Other {note 30)

Grants and contnbutons
Disposals
Transfers/reclassifications

At 31 March 2008

Depreciation
At 1Apnl 2006
Charge for year
Disposals

At 31 March 2007

Charge for year
Disposals

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2007

At 31 March 2008

Land and
bunldings
{Restated
note 37}
im

265 3
69
315

{03)
03

3035

09
331

12

3387

971
183
(©2)

1152

221

1373

188 3

201 4

Infrastructure
assets
£m

1,108 0

607

(3 6)
(07
3zs

1,196 9

500

27
7
173

1,260 8

248
151
07

169
©n

1,157 7

1,205 4

Qperational
properties

im

5573

21

114

5708

16

131

5855

1214
106

1320

103

1423

438 8

443.2

fixed and
maobile plant
vehicles and Landfill
im £m
8701 354
53 14
129 -
- 68
(13) -
(62) -
414 -
1,082 2 436
64 -
626 -
- 11
(01) -
(87) -
347 -
1,1771 44 7
3741 27
681 31
(4 1) -
4381 58
761 38
(7 6) -
506 6 96
644 1 378
6705 351

Construction
n progress
fm

999

79

(85 6)

922

815

(66 3)

107 4

922

107.4

Total
(Restated
nate 37}
[]

3,036 0
136
245 1
68
{¢9)
(74)

3,289 2

73
228 8
11
28)
(s )

3,514 2

6201
152
50

7303

129 2
(83)

8512

2,558 9

2,6630

Of the total depreciation charge of £129 2 milhon {2007 £115 2 milbon), £1 3 milon {2007 £1 5 milbon} has been charged to capital
projects and £127 9 milbon (2007 £113 7 milhon) aganst profits

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

Assets held under finance leases wncluded above were

Land and Infi ture
Lenldings assets
£m im
Cost
At 31 March 2007 - 2713
At 31 March 2008 - 3240
Deprecabion
At 31 March 2007 - 65
At 31 March 2008 - 105
Net book amount
At 31 March 2007 - 264 8
At 31 March 2008 - 3135

Company

Cost

At 1 Apnt 2006
Addibions
Disposals

At 31 March 2007

Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2008

Depreaabon
At 1 Apnl 2006
Charge for year
Disposals

At 31 March 2007

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2007

At 31 March 2008

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually

properbes
£m

3873

4323

327 4

3658

Fixed and
mobite plant
veeles and Landfill Construction

computers restaration n progress Total
£m £m fm fm
211 - 523 988 0
306 8 - 378 1,100 %9
137 9 - - 204 3
1538 - - 2308
1392 - 523 78317
1530 - 378 8701

Fixed and
mabnle plant
wehicles and
computers
£m

02
02
¢1)

03

01
(o1

03

01
01
(01)

01

01

02

02
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the ine items as below

Note

Group

31 March 2008

Finanaal assets

Trade and other recewables 21
Denvative financial instruments 22
Cash and cash deposits 23
Total

Finanaal habibhties

Borrowings 26
Denvative financial instruments 22
Trade and other payables 24
Total

31 March 2007

Financal assets

Trade and other recewvables 21
Denvative finanoal instruments 22
{ash and cash deposits ° 23
Total

Financial bambties

Borrowings 26
Trade and other payables 24
Total

Company

31 March 2008

Financal assets

Denvative financial instruments 22
Cash and cash deposits 23
Total

Finanaial kabibtes

Borrowings 26
Denvative finanoal instruments 22
Trade and other payables 24
Total

31 March 2007

Financial assets

Denvative finangal instruments 22
Cash and cash deposits 23
Total

Finannal habilities

Borrowings 26
Trade and other payables 24
Total
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Penvatves
used for
hedging

£m

40

40

05)

s

Fair value
Denvatives
deemed held
far tradang
fm

19

1ng

(17 0)

(17 0)

(1; 0)

(17 0)

Amartised cost
Trade recevables
Loans and and ade
recetvables payables
£m fm
- 113 4
357 4 -
357 4 113 4
(2,121 2) -
- (89 8)
(21212 (89 8)
- 85 ¢
1279 -
1279 850
(1,685 2) -

- (84 8)
(1,685 2) (84 8)
497 -
497 -
(692 0) -

- (02)
(692 0) (02)
241 -
241 -
(433 3) -
- (1)
(433 3) (1),

Total
£m

113 4
159
357 4

486 7

{2,121 2)
(17 5)
(89 8)

(2,228 5)

850
16 0
127 9

2289

(1,685 2)
(84 8)

(1,770 0)

05
497

502

(692 0)
(17 0)
{0 2)

(708 2

17
241

258

(433 3)
(©1)

(433 4)
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ~ NON-CURRENT

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
im £m im im
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 258 5 1701
Amounts owed by Joint ventures (note 42} 93 58 - -
Other recewables 1.1 11 11 11
10 4 69 259.6 172
Non-current recevables were due
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m fm im im
Between 1 and 2 years 1.4 03 66.4 55 6
Between 2 and 5 years 14 18 193 2 115 6
Over 5 years 7.6 48 - -
104 69 259 6 1712
The fair values of trade and other recewables were
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m im £m fm
Amounts owed by subsidary undertakangs - - 2581 170 3
Amounts owed by Jont ventures 151 92 - -
Other receivables 11 11 1.1 11
16 2 103 259 2 1714

The farr value of amounts owed by joint ventures 1s based on cash flows using a rate based on the borrowings rate of 5 8% (2007 5 8%)
The dscount rate 1s equal to London Interbank Offered Rate plus an atlowance to reflect an appropnate credit rating

The effective interest rate on amounts owed by joint ventures was 13 4% (2007 13 4%)
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19 INVESTMENTS

Jownt ventures

Shares Loans. Total
im im im
Group

At 1 Apnl 2006 11 02 13
Share of profit 02 - 02
Part repayment of loans - 01) {01)
At 31 March 2007 13 01 14
Share of profit 01 - 01
Repayment of loans - (0 1) (01)
At 31 March 2008 14 - 14
Subsidhary
undertalangs
im

Company
At 1Apnl 2006 943 8
At 31 March 2007 9438
Addibons 100
At 31 March 2008 10448

Dunng the year the Company invested £100 0 million 1n the preference shares of a subsidiary undertaking to benefit from the efficient
deposit of surplus funds to September 2008

Details of the Group’s pnncipal subsidiary and jownt venture undertakings are set out in note 38

The Group's share of the results, assets and Liabibties 1nits Joint ventures are

Assets Llabilities
Non-current Curent Current Norn-turrent Revenues Profit
im £m £m im £m £m
2008
Echo South West Limited - 10 (10) - 56 01
Lakeside Energy from Waste
Holdings Limted 69 4 43 (19) {68 8) 03 01
69 4 53 (29) (68 8) 59 02
2007
Echo South West Limited 01 06 (0 8) - 52 01
Lakeside Energy from Waste
Heldings Limited 383 28 (0 9) {36 9) a3 02
38 4 34 (17 (36 9) 55 03

The joint venture 1n £cho South West Linmted ceased operation on 31 March 2008
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20. INVENTORIES
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 52 50 - -
Wark in progress o1 01 - -
Fimshed goods and goods for resale 13 - - -
66 51 - -
21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CURRENT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
{Restated)
£m £m £m £m
Trade recewables 149 6 1188 - -
Less provision for impawrment of recevables (36.2) 337) - -
Trade recewvables 113 4 851 - -
Amounts owed by subsidvary undertakings - - 69 4 556
Amounts owed by joint ventures (note 42) 21 09 - -
Other recewables 6.9 32 10 03
Other prepayments and accrued \ncome 423 333 - 01
164 7 122 5 704 560

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables approximates to thewr fair value Group trade recewables,
the provision for imparment and accrued income for 2007 have been restated to exclude amounts shown as a reduchion to revenues and
prownded against accrued 1ncome n previous years

There 15 no concentration of credit nsk 1n trade recewvables The Group has a large number of customers who are dispersed and there is
no sigmificant loss on trade recewvables expected which has not been provided for The Group has created IAS39 portfobo prowisions, but
cannot practicably identify which recewvables speaifically are the ones impawred It1s Group policy to consider a recewable 1n a portfolio
to which an 1mpairment has been allocated on a collective basis as not bewng ympaired for the purposes of IFRS 7 disclosures until the
loss can be speafically identfied with the recewvable

The ageing of trade recewvables which are past due but not impaired was

2008 2007
£m Em

Group

Past due 0 - 30 days 376 240

Past due 31 - 120 days 180 813

More than 120 days 526 408

The Group’s two operating businesses specfically review separate categones of debt to wdentify an appropnate provision for
wnpairment South West Water Limited has a duty under legislation to continue to prowde domestic customers with services regardless
of payment

The movement 1n the allowance for /mpairment in respect of trade recewables which are past due but not impared was

2008 2007

£m £m

At 1 Apnl 337 08
Provision for receivables impairment 6.0 56

Recevables wntten-off dunng the year as uncollechble (35) 27
At 31 March 362 317
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22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m im £m fm

Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges
Non-current assets 40 160 05 17
Non-current habibbes (05) - - -
Denvatives deemed held for troding
Current assets 11,9 - - -
Current habilibes (17 0) - (17 0) -

The full fair value of a hedging denvative1s classified as a non-current asset or hability if the remaiming matunty of the hedged item s
more than 12 months and, as a current asset or habiity, 1f the matunty of the hedged item s less than 12 menths

The mneffective portion recogmsed n the income statement which anses from cash flow hedges amounts to a gan of £0 3 milhon
(2007 £0 1 mihon)

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate borrowings are used to manage the mix of fixed and floating rates to ensure at least 50% of Group net
borrowings s at fixed rate At 31 March 2008 58% of Group net borrowangs was at a fixed rate (2007 66%)

At 31 March 2008 the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financiat babihines with a notional
value of £634 0 mllion and a weighted average matunty of 2 1 years {2007 £636 0 milion, with 3 1 years) The weighted average
interest rate of the swaps for thewr nominal amount was 4 8% (2007 4 8%}

At 31 March 2008 the Company had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financial liabibties with a notonal
value of £50 0 mlhon and a weighted average matunty of 2 0 years (2007 £50 O milhon, wath 3 O years) The werghted average interest
rate of the swaps was 4 5% (2007 4 5%)

Denvatwes deemed held for trading relate to the Company’s investment of £100 0 milhion 1n the preference shares of a subsidiary
undertaking to benefit from the efficient deposit of surplus funds up to September 2008

The amounts above are the fair value of swaps based on the market value of equwvalent instruments at the balance sheet date Allthe
interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash ftow hedges and the fair values have been deferred 1n equity

23 CASH AND CASH DEPOSITS

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m fm £m im
Cash at bank and 1n hand 147 89 491 241
Short-term bank deposits 1411 114 3 - -
Qther deposits 2016 47 06 -
357.4 1279 49.7 241

The effective interest rate on Group short-term deposits was 5 7% (2007 5 3%) and these deposits have a matunty of one day

The effective 1nterest rate on Group other deposits was 7 4% (2007 5 3%) and these deposits have an average matunty of 127 days
Group other deposits include £10 1 milbon (2007 £4 1 milbon) of restncted funds to settle long-term lease habibiies (note 26) and
£100 0 million of surplus funds deposited up to September 2008

Cash and cash equiwvalents compnse the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
em £m £m £m
Cash and cash deposits as above 357.4 127 9 49 7 261

Bank overdrafts (note 26} {18.6) (109) - -
3388 117 0 49.7 241

Less deposits with a matunty of three months or more {restncted funds) (111 4) (47) (0 6) -
227 4 1123 491 241
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CURRENT

2008

£m

Trade payables 89.8
Amounts owed te subsidiary undertakings -

Amounts owed to joint venture {note 42) 02

Other tax and soal secunty 453

Other creditors 14.8

Accruals 54,1

204 2

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to thewr fawr value

25 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES/[RECOVERABLE)

2003
£m
Corporation tax 43.1
26 BORROWINGS
2008
£m
Current
Bank overdrafts 18.6
Short-term loans -
European Investment Bank 141
Unsecured loan stock notes 1.4
Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings -
341
Obhgations under finance leases 5§51
Total current borrowings 892
Non-current
Bank and other toans 706 4
European [nvestment Bank 2018
908 2
Obligatons under finance leases 1,123.8
Total non-current borrowings (note 36) 2,032.0
Total borrowings 21212

Group
w001
(Restated
note 37)
£m

B4 8
03
" 427
10 6
382

176 6

Group
2007
{Restated
note 37}
im

366

Group
2007

109
76
163
21

369
489

858

3501
2159

566 0
1,033 4

1,599 4

1,685 2

The Drectors consider that the carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate to their fair value
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Em

02
110

02

70
05

18.9

2008

£m

(71)

2008
£m

14

295 ¢

2973

2973

3947

3947

3947

692.0

Company
2007

{m

01
145

03

31
10

Company
2007

£m

(12)

Company
2007
im

75

21

2937

3033

3033

1300

1300

1300

43313
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26 BORROWINGS continued

The fair values of non-current borrowings were

2008 2007
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m Em £m £m
Group

Bank and other loans 706 4 6731 3501 3497
European Investment Bank 201 8 197 3 2159 210 9
908 2 870 4 566 O 560 6
Obhgations under finance leases 1,123 8 9921 1,033 4 9218
2,032.0 1,862 5 1,599 4 1,482 4

Company
Bank and other loans 394 7 3924 13¢ ¢ 1300

Where market values are not available, fair values of borrowings have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at

prevailing interest rates

The matunty of non-current borrowings was

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Em im £m im
Between 1and 2 years 263 4 932 205.0 -
Between 2 and 5 years 3451 4420 900 130 ¢
Over 5 years 1,423 5 1,064 2 997 -
2,0320 1,599 4 3947 130 0
The weighted average matunty of non-current barrowings was 24 years (2007 16 years)
Finance lease balhities - mmmum lease payments
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
im fm £m fm
Within one year 768 64 4 - -
In the second to fifth years inclusive 311 6 2700 - -
After five years 19779 1,866 7 - -
2,366 3 2,2011 - -
Less future finance charges {1,187 4) (1,218 8) - -

1,178 9 1,082 3 - -

Included above are accrued finance charges ansing on obhgations under finance leases totatling £129 8 milhon {2007 £126 4 milhon),
of which £39 5 milhon (2007 £36 5 milhon) 15 repayable wathin one year

Within obligations under finance leases, South West Water Limted has ublised finance lease facihties of £180 0 million for certain water
and sewerage business property, plant and equipment which are secured by bank letters of credit 1ssued by Umted Kingdom financal
nstitubhons These letters of credit, covenng the full penod of the finance leases, are renewable between the financial institutions and
South West Water Limited at five-yearly intervals, the next being March 2011

Dunng 2007 the penod for repayment of these hallibes was extended with an agreement to deposit wath the lessor group amounts
equal to the difference between the onginal and revised payments due The accumulated deposits, £10 1 milhion at 31 March 2008
(2007 £4 1 mlbon), are being held to settle the habibity over the penod from the end of the onginal lease term The deposits are
subject to a registered charge given as secunty to the lessor for the balance outstanding
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26 BORROWINGS continued

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date and the exposure to interest rate changes and the repnaing dates was

Effective rate
%

Group
31 March 2008
Bank overdrafts 613
European Investment Bank 60
Unsecured loan stock notes 52
Bank and other loans 57
Finance leases 46
Effect of swaps 48
31 March 2007
Bank overdrafts 62
Short-term loans 58
European investment Bank 56
Unsecured loan stock notes 48
Bank and other loans 53
Finance leases 44
Effect of swaps 48
Company
31 March 2008
Unsecured loan stock notes \ 52
Bank and other loans 63
Effect of swaps 45
31 March 2007
Short-term loans 57
Unsecured loan stock notes 48
Bank and other loans 58
Effect of swaps 45

Undrawn committed borrowing facilies

Floating rate
Expinng within one year
Expinng after one year

6 manths or less 6-12 months

im

186
2159
14
2950
57715

1,108 4
(594 0)
514 4

109
76
2322
21
2501
509 2

1,012 1
{636 0)
3761

14
2950

296 4

(50 0)
246 4

75
21
1300

1396
{50 0)
89 6

Group
2008
£m

500
1350

1850

£m

2117
3582

5699

569 9

2007
£m

1200
1500

2700

1-5years.
im

199 7
2432

4429
594 0
1,036 9

1000
122 6
2226
636 0
858 6

9% 7
9g 7

500
149 7

500
500

2008

250
550

800

Total
im

186
2159
14
706 4
1,178 9

21212

21212

109

14
394 7

3961

3961

75

1300
139 6

139 6

Company
2007
f£m

450
1050

150 ¢

Inaddition the Group has shart-term uncommitted bank faciities of £80 0 millron available to the Company or South West Water Limited
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27 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Graup Ctompany
2008 2007 2008 2007
(Restated
note 37)
£m Em £m £m
Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings - - 87 87
Other creditors 40 43 - -
40 43 87 87

28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Group operates a number of pension schemes including a defined contnbubion section within the main scheme

The assets of the Group’s pension schemes are held n separate trustee admimstered funds The trustees of the funds are required to act
n the best interest of the funds’ benefinanes The appointment of schemes’ trustees 1s determined by the schemes’ trust
documentation The Group has a policy that one-half of all trustees, other than the Chairman, are nominated by members of the
schemes, including current pensioners

Defined contnbution schemes
Pension costs for defined contnbution schemes were £1 1 milbon (2007 £0 8 milben)

Defined henefit schemes
Assumptions
The pnnaipal actuanal assumptions at 31 March were

2008 2007

% %
Expected return on scheme assets 70 69
Rate of increase in pensignable pay 44 40
Rate of increase for present and future pensions 34 30
Rate used to discount schemes” hiabilities 69 54
Inflation 34 30

Assumptions regarding future mortahty expenience are set based on actuanal advice in accordance with published statishics and
expenence Asat 31 March 2008 the mortabity assumption uses a scheme-speafic ‘medium cohort’ basis

The average life expectancy 1n years of a pensioner retinng at age 62 on the balance sheet date 15 projected at

2008 2007
Male 218 238
Female 25.3 266

The average hife expectancy 1n years of a pensioner retinng at age 62, 20 years after the balance sheet date, 1s projected at

2008 2007
Male 233 245
Female 26.4 213
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28, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

The sensibwvities regarding the pnncipal assumptions used to measure the schemes’ habilities are

Impact on
Changein schemes
assumption batlties
Rate of increase 1n pensionable pay +/~05%  +/-2 1%
Rate of increase n present and future pensions +f— 0 5% +/-5 0%
Rate used to discount schemes biahlites +/-05% +/-85%
Inflation +/~-05%  +/-BO0%
Life expectancy +/-1year +/-25%
The amgunts recognised wn the income statement were
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m fm £m £m
Current service cost {129) (12 6) 09 {0 8)
Past service cost (1.1) {0 8) - -
Totalncluded wn employment costs (14 0) (13 4) (0.9) (0 8)
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets 210 221 19 17
Interest cost an rebrement benefit obligahons (18 5) (18 4) (16) (14)
Totat included within net finance costs 25 37 03 03
Total charge (11 5) {97) (0 6) (05)
The actual return on schemes’ assets was a loss of £23 7 milhon {2007 a gawn of £23 6 million)
The amounts recogmsed n the statement of recogmsed income and expense were
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m fm
Actuanal gains/(losses) recogmsed 1n the year 51 (12) (1.3) (0 4)
The amounts recogmsed in the balance sheet were
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m fm
Fair value of schemes’ assets 3318 3476 339 270
Present value of defined benefit obligahons (357 8) (388 8} {36 8) (30 4)
Net hability recogmsed i the balance sheet (26.3) {412} (2.9) (3 4)
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28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

The schemes’ assets and the expected long-term rates of return at the year end were

2008 2007
Expected Expected

Teturmn Value Fund return Value fund
% £m L % fm %
Equities 85 1850 59 80 194 3 56
Property/currency 78 147 [ 78 402 11
Bonds 46 1217 37 47 1125 33
Other 50 01 - 50 06 -
315 100 347 6 100

The Company's share of the schemes’ assets at the balance sheet date were

2008 2007
£m Em

Equites 202 152
Property/currency 15 29
Bonds 122 B9
339 270

The expected return on plan assets 1s determned by constdenng the long-term returns and the balance between nsk and reward on the
vanous categones of investment assets held Expected returns on equity and property investments reftect long-term rates of return
expenienced 1n the respective markets Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemphon yelds as at the
balance sheet date

In comunchion with the trustees and investment adwisers, the Group restructured 1ts portfoho of defined benefit pension investments
dunng 2006/07 following a review of strategy This led to a new asset allocaton structure with the objective of increasing investment
returns whilst reducing nsk The rewised asset allocation has three man elements

- anncreased holding of bonds which are expected to be less volatile than most other asset classes and are a better match for the
schemes’ habhties

- areduction in the proportion of equities, but wath fund managers having more freedom 1n making investment decisions to maximise
returns

— nvestment of a relately small proporbion of the schemes’ assets (circa 10%) in alternative asset classes which give the potential
for gaving higher returns {property and currency)

Equittes held by the scheme are spread between the UK {circa 60%) and international markets {circa 40%) excluding emerging markets

The Group provides retirement benefits to some of 1ts former and approximately 49% of current employees through defined benefit
schemes The level of retirement benefit1s based pnncipally on final annual salary earned 1n employment

The babilibes of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected umt credit methed which 1s an acerued benefits
valuation method wn which the scheme babiliies make allowance for projected earnings

An alternative method of valuation to the projected umt credit method 1s a solvency basis, which 1s eshmated using the cost of buying
out benefits with a suitable insurer This amount represents the amount that would be required to settle the schemes habibities at the
balance sheet date rather than the Group continuing to fund the on-going habihties The Group estimates the amount required to settle
the schemes’ habilibies at the balance sheet date was approximately £630 million
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28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

Movements 1n the net habihty were

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m fm £m im
At 1 Apni {41 2) (417) (34) (33)
Income statement {11 5) @n (06) (0 5)
Statement of recogmsed ncome and expenditure 51 (12) (13 (0 4)
Regular contnbutions 23 28 05 05
Prepayment of regular contnbubons 190 86 19 03
At 31 March (26 3) (412) 29 (3 4)
Movements in the fair value of schemes’ assets were
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m tm £m im
At 1 Apnl 347 6 3175 271.0 25 4
Expected return an schemes’ assets 210 221 19 17
Actuanal (losses)/gains (44 7) 15 40 01
Members’ contnbutions 0.3 03 - -
Benefits paid (14.0) (13 1} {14) (10)
Group regular contnbutions 23 28 05 05
Prepayment of Group regular contnbutions 190 86 19 03
Acgquisition of subsichary - 79 - -
At 31 March 33115 347 6 339 270
Movements in the present value of defined benefit oblhigations were
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m im £m £m
At 1Apni (3888) (359 2) (30 4) (28 7)
Service cost (14 0) (13 4) (c9) {08}
[nterest cost (18 5) (18 4) (1.6) (1 4)
Actuanal gains/(losses) 493 27 {53) (05)
Members’ cantnbubons (03) (03) - -
Benefits paid 140 131 14 10
Acquisition of subsidhary - (79) - -
At 31 March (357 8) (388 8) (36 8) (30 4)

The cash flows ansing from the payment of the defined benefits are expected to be settled pnmanly in the penod between 15 and 40
years from the balance sheet date
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28 RETIREMENT 8ENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

The Group's transition date to IFRS was 1 Apnl 2004 and the following hstoncal data s presented from that date The histoncal data
will prowvide a rolling five-year record from next year

2008 2007 2006 2005
£m £m fm £m

Group
Fair value of schemes’ assets 3315 3476 3175 2238
Present value of defined benefit obligations (357 8) (388 8) (359 2} (303 6)
Net habibity recogmsed {26 3} (412) (41 7) (79 8)
Expenence {losses)/gains on schemes’ assets
Amount (£m} (46 7) 15 342 98
Percentage of schemes’ assets (13 5)% Q 4% 10 8% 4 4%
Expenence gans/{losses) on defined benefit obligations
Amount (£m} 498 (27 (37 0} (79)
Percentage of defined benefit obhgations 13 9% (0 7)% (10 3)% (2 6)%

The cumulatve actuanal gans recogmsed 1 the Group statement of recogmsed income and expense at 31 March 2008 were
£3 0 milbon (2007 losses of £2 1 mihion)

2008 2007 2006 2005
£m im £m fm

Company
Fair value of schemes’ assets 339 270 254 179
Present value of defined benefit abligations {36 8) (30 4) {28 7) (24 3)
Net habiltty recogmsed (2.9) (3 4) (33) (6 4)
Expenence gains on schemes’ assets
Amount (£m) 4.0 01 39 09
Percentage of schemes’ assets 11.8% - 15 3% 5 0%
Expenence losses on defined benefit obligations
Amount (£m) (5.3) (0 4} {03) 11
Parcentage of defined benefit obhigations {14 4)% (0 1)% {0 1)% (4 5Y%

The cumulative actuanal gains recogmsed in the Company statement of recogmsed 1ncome and expense at 31 March 2008 were
£1 8 milbon (2007 £3 1 milbion}

96 Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts




Notes to the financial statements

28 RETIREMENT BENEF!T OBLIGATIONS continued

The Group’s current service cost duning the year was 21 7% of pensionable earmngs (2007 21 7%} The Group’s ex1sbng defined benefit

schemes have been closed to new entrants from 1 Apnl 2008

The Group has recently completed the tnenmal actuanal valuatien of its defined benefit schemes as at 1 Apnl 2007 which has resulted
m higher future service and deficit recovery contnbutions The Group has agreed with the trustees that it will aim to eliminate the
actuanally calculated funding deficit of circa £38 milbon as at 31 March 2007 over a 10 year period A contnbution prepayment of
£19 0 million was made duning the year and a further £10 7 milbon contnbution has been made 1n Apnl 2008 (2007 £8 6 million}
The Group momtors funding levels on an annual basis and as a result of these prepayments no further Group regular contnbutions are

expected to be pard to the schemes dunng the year ending 31 March 2009

29 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax 1s provided n full on temporary differences under the hablity method using a tax rate of 28% (2007 30%)

Movements on the deferred tax account were

biabbity/{asset) at 1 Apnl
{Credited)/charged to the income statement
Charged/(credited) to equity

Ansing on acquisibons

Liabibty/{asset) at 31 March

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
(Restated
note 37)
£m im £m £m
3135 302 8 (18) {18)
(9.0) 133 07 01
1.2 (0 4) {05) (01
15 (z2) - -
307 2 31315 (16) (18)

Deferred tax assets have been recogmised wn respect of all temporary differences gnang nse to deferred tax assets because 1t 1s probable

that these assets will be recovered

All deferred tax assets and hatlities are within the same junsdiction and may be offset as permitted by IAS 12 The movementin

deferred tax assets and habilities 1s shown below
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29 DEFERRED TAX continued

Group
Deferred tax habibbes

Accelerated 1ax depreciaban

Owned assets  Leased assets Other Total
£m {m fm £m
At 1 Apnl 2006 3061 51 24 6 3358
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 63 49 (2 1) 91
Ansing on acqusihons (2 4) - 20 (04)
At 31 March 2007 3100 100 245 344 5
(Credited)/charged to the income statement {21 3) 55 (3 1) (18 9)
Ansing on acqwsibons 07 - os 15
At 31 March 2008 289 4 155 22,2 3271
Defarred tax assets
Frovisions Retirement. Total
(Restated benefit {Restated
note 37) obhgatans Other note 37)
fm fm im fm
At 1 Apnl 2006 (77 {12 5) {12 8) (3310)
Charged to the income statement o4 05 33 42
Credited to equity - (04) - (0 4)
Ansing on acquisitions (18) - - {18)
At 31 March 2007 {9 1) {12 4) (9 5) (310)
Charged to the income statement 25 36 ER:] 99
Credited to equity - 14 (02) 12
At 31 March 2008 {6 6) (74) (59) (19 9)
Net deferred tax habbity
At 31 March 2007 3135
At 31 March 2008 3072
Company
Deferred tax assets
Retirement
benefit
obbgatigns Other Total
£m im m
At 1Apnl 2006 (10) (08) (18)
Charged to the income statement 01 - 01
Credited to equity (©01) - (01)
At 31 March 2007 (10) (0 8) (18)
Charged to the income statement 06 g1 Q7
Credited to equity {0 4) (01) (05)
At 31 March 2008 (08) (08) (16)
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29 DEFERRED TAX continued

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year was

Group
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Actuanal {losses}/gains on defined benefit schemes (14) 04 04 01
Share-based payments (note 34) 0.2 - 01 -
: (12) 04 05 01
30 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Environmental
and landfitl Other
torat R g provisions Total
fm £m £m fm
Group
At 1 Apnl 2007 993 - 02 99 5
Charged to the \ncome statement 55 40 - 95
Landfill restoration 11 - - 11
Utibsed dunng year {82 (25) - (107)
At 31 March 2008 977 15 02 99 4

The amount charged to the income statement includes £4 3 million charged to finance costs as the unwinding of discounts 1n provisions

The addition to landfill restoration prowision of £1 1 mllien recogmsed 1n the year has been matched with an additon to property,

plant and equipment

The analysis of provisions between current and non-current 15

2008 2007
£m £m

Current 181 132
Non-current 813 86 3
99 4 9% 5

Emaronmental and tandfill restoration provisions are expected to be substantially utihised over the penod from 2009 to beyond 2050
The provisions have been estabhshed assuming current waste management technology based upon estimated costs at future prices
which have been discounted to present value The restructunng prowision related pnincipally to severance costs and will be utihsed
within one year

31. SHARE CAPITAL

2008 2007
£m £m

Auvthonsed
429,975,270 ordwnary shares of 40 7p each 1750 175 0
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31 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Ordinary shares atlotted duning the year

Number of shares
Oeferred Treasury Ordonary
shares shares shares im
At 1 Apnl 2006 ordnary shares of £1 22 ¥yp each 35,858,521 118,608,847 144 8
Deferred shares of £1 10 each 394
184 2
Deferred shares of £1 10 each cancelled (35.858,521) (39 4)
For consideration of £3 3 mithion, shares purchased
and subsequently cancelled (245 000) {03)
118,353,847
Sub-dwision into three new ordnary shares of 40 7p each 355,091 541
For consideration of £0 2 mlhion, shares purchased
and subsequently cancelled {50,000)
For consideration of £1 9 milhon, sharesssued under the
Company’s Sharesave Scheme 1,082,338 04
At 31 March 2007 ordwnary shares of 40 7p each - - 356,123,879 1449
For consideration of £5 9 million, shares purchased
and subsequently cancelled (960,000) (04)
For consideration of £43 4 millien, shares purchased
and held as treasury shares 7,285,008 (7.285,008) -
For consideraton of £1 6 malbion, shares 1ssued under the
Company's Sharesave Scheme (873,602) 873,997 -
At 31 March 2008 ordwnary shares of 40 7p each - 6,411,406 348,752,868 144 5

Shares held as treasury shares may be sold, re-1ssued for any of the Company’s share schemes, or cancelled

On 31 July 2006 each of the Company’s 1ssued and umssued existing ordinary shares of £1 221/1¢ each were sub-dwided 1nto three new
ordmary shares of 40 7p each

Dunng 2006 a capitat return to shareholders was made by way of the B Share Scheme amounting to £143 5 milbon, of which £39 4
million was by way of the imtial dwvidend payment and £104 1 million was through share redemption The B Shares which receved the
mbal dwvidend were subsequently converted into Deferred Shares, redeemed at the close of business on 6 Apnil 2006 for a total
aggregate consideratien of one pence and were then cancelled At 31 March 2007 £39 4 milhon of the capital return via the B Share
Scheme was outstanding and held 1n Share Capital and £5 7 million of the B Shares not redeemed until 6 Apnl 2007 were held within
other payables

Employee share schemes
The Group operates a number of equity-settled share plans for the benefit of employees Details of each plan are
1) Sharesave Scheme

An all-employee savings related plan 1s operated that enables employees, including executive directors, to invest up to a maxamum of
£250 per month for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy ordinary shares at a pnce set at a 20% discount to the
market value at the start of the savings perod at the third, fifth or seventh year anmversary of the option being granted Options expire
six months following the exercise date and, except for certain speafic ircumstances such as redundancy, lapse if the employee leaves
the Group before the option exeraise penod commences

100 Pennon Group Annual Report and Accounts




Notes to the financial statements

31 SHARE CAPITAL continued
Employee share schemes contmued

1) Sharesave Scheme (continued}

Outstanding aptions to subscnbe for ordwnary shares of 40 7p each under the Company’s share option schemes are

Penod when
ophons normally
exeraisable

Date granted and
subscniption prce fully pasd

6 July 1999 275p 2002 - 2006
5 July 2000 154p 2003 - 2007
4 July 2001 163p 2004 - 2008
9 July 2002 189p 2005 - 2009
8 July 2003 177p 2006 - 2010
6 July 2004 200p 2007 - 2011
5 July 2005 270p 2008 - 2012
4 July 2006 358p 2009 - 2013
3 July 2007 522p 2010 - 2014

At 31 March 2008 there were 1,281 participants 1n the Sharesave Scheme (2007 1,145)

The number and weighted average exercise pnce of Sharesave options are

2008
Number of Weighted
ordinary shares average exercise
(thousands) price per share (p}
At 1 Apnl 2,925 244
Granted 580 522
Exerased {875) 189
Expired {111) 337
At 31 March 2,519 322

Thousands of shares 1n respect of
which ophons outstanding at 31 March

2008 2007

- 1

- 189

k) | 33

40 236

339 351

314 803

633 669

612 643

550 -

2,519 2,925

2007

Number of Wesghted
ordinary shares average exergise
{thousands) prce per share (p)
3,465 201
665 358
(1,082) 177
(123) 248
2,928 244

The weighted average pnce of the Company's shares at the date of exeroise of Sharesave optiens dunng the year was 606p (2007 477p)
The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had a weighted average exercise pnce of 322p {2007 244p) and a werghted average

remaimng contractual life of 2 0 years (2007 2 O years)

The aggregate fair value of Sharesave options granted dunng the year was £0 9 milbhon (2007 £0 7 million), determined using the
Black-Scholes valuation model The sigmficant inputs into the valuatvon model at the date of 1ssue of the options were

Weighted average share pnce
Wewghted average exercise pnce
Expected volatibty

Expected hfe

Risk-free rate

Expected dwidend yield

2008 2007
409p 321p
327p 257p
21 0p 22 3%

4 3 years & 2 years
4 7% 4 6%
4 2% 4 6%

Expected volatihty was determined by calculating the mistoncal volatiity of the Group's share pnce over the previous two years
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31 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Employee share schemes contitued
n) Restncted Share Plan

Under this plan executive dhrectors and semor management receve a conditional award of ordinary shares i the Company
The eventual number of shares, 1f any, which vest s dependent upon the achievement of the performance condvbon of the plan over
the restncted penod, being not less than three years

The number and weighted average pnce shares in the Restncted Share Plan are

2008 2007
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
ordinary shares average exercise ordinary shares average exerise
(thousands) price per share (p} (thousands) pnce per share (p)
At 1Apnd 1,498 346 1,347 287
Granted - - 366 499
Vested (666) 270 (95) 195
Lapsed (148) 104 (120} 270
At 31 March 684 448 1,498 346

The plan was succeeded dunng the year by the Performance and Co-investment Plan

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2008 had a weighted average pnce of 449p (2007 346p) and a werghted average remaiming
contractual bife of 1 1 years (2007 1 2 years) The Company’s share pnce at the date of the awards ranged from 357p to 499p

The aggregate fair value of awards granted dunng the year was ml (2007 £1 0 milhon), determned using a Monte-Carlo simulation
model The sigmficant inputs nto the valuatton model at the date of the share awards were

2008 2007
Weighted average share price 449p 346p
Expected volahhty 20.9% 22 6%
Risk-free rate 4 8% 4 7%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the mistoncal volatility of the Greup’s share pnice over the previous two years

m) Performance and Co-investment Plon
The plan was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting wn July 2007 and succeeded the Restncted Share Plan in
September 2007

Executive Directors and semor management receive a conditional award of ordinary shares in the Company and are aiso required to hold
a substantial personal shareholding i the Company The eventual number of shares, if any, which vest 1s dependant upon the
achievement of condihions of the plan over the restricted penod, being not less than three years

The number and price of shares in the Performance and Co-investment Plan are

2008
Number of Exercise price
ordinary shares per share
(thousands) [}
At 1Apnl - -
Granted 422 575
At 31 March 422 575

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2008 had an exerase pnce of 575p and a remaiming contractual bfe of 2 5 years
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31 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Employee share schemes continued
1} Performance and Co-investment Plan (continued)

The aggregate fair value of awards granted dunng the year was £1 1 milhon, determined using a Monte-Carlo simulation model
The sigmficant tnputs into the valuation model at the date of the share awards were

2008
Share pnce 575p
Expected volatibty 18 7%
Risk-free rate 53%

Expected volatlity was determned by calculating the histencal volatility of the Group's share pnce over the previous two years

w) Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directors and semior management involve the release of ordinary shares in the Company to
parhcapants The number and werghted average pnce of shares 1n the Incentive Bonus Plan are

2003 2007
Humber of Weighted Humber of Weighted
ordinary shares average exercise ordinary shares. average exercise
(thousands) price per share (p) (thousands) pnce per share {p}
At 1Apnl 406 350 501 269
Granted 124 600 139 484
Vested (162) 320 {234) 255
At 31 March 368 465 406 350

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2008 had a weghted average pnce of 465p (2007 350p) and a weighted average remaiming
contractual hfe of 1 3 years (2007 1 4 years} The Company’s share pnce at the date of the awards ranged from 328p to 600p

The aggregate fair value of awards granted dunng the year was £0 7 million {2007 £0 6 million), determined from market value No ophon
pnang methodology1s applied since dwidends declared on the shares are recewvable by the parbcipants 1n the scheme and there 1s no
performance condition since vesting 1s usually conditional upon continuous semnce with the Group for a penod of three years from the
award

Further details of the plans and optiens granted to Directors, included above, are shown n the Directors’ remuneration report

32, SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

At 1 Apnl 2006 102
Premium on shares issued for cash consideration 15
At 31 March 2007 17
At 31 March 2008 117
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33 CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

fm
At 1 Apnl 2006 98 4
Transferred from retained earmings on redemption of 5,200 871 B Shares of £1 10 each 57
35,858,521 Deferred shares cancelled 394
Own shares purchased and subseguently cancelled 03
At 31 March 2007 1438
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled 04
At 31 March 2008 144 2
34 RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES
Hedging Own Retained
reserve shares earmings Total
fm £m £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2006 01 (6 0) 294 3 288 4
Profit for year - - 939 939
Other recogmsed income and expense for the year 157 - {0 8) 149
Dwndends paid - - {61 0) (610}
Adjustmentn respect of share-based payments - - 21 21
Adjustmentn respect of share ophons vesting - 11 (11) -
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled - - 35) (35)
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust - (23) - (23)
8 Share payments - - (57) 57
At 31 March 2007 158 (7 2} 3182 326 8
Profit for year - - 1336 1336
Other recogmsed income and expense for the year (127 - 37 {9 0)
Dwndends pard - - (65 6) (65 6)
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - 1% 19
Adjustmentin respect of share eptons veshing - 30 (3 0} -
Deferred tax 1n respect of share-based payments - - 02 02
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled - - (59} (59)
Own shares purchased and held as treasury shares - - (43 4} (43 4)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 16 16
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust - (0 3) - (03)
At 31 March 2008 31 (45) 341.3 3399

The own shares reserve represents the cost of ordinary shares in Pennon Group Ple 1ssued to or purchased in the market and held by the
Pennon Employee Share Trust to satisfy awards under the Group’s Restncted Share Plan and Incentive Bonus Plan

Dunng 2008 the trustees of the Pennon Employee Share Trust acquired 57,967 of the Company's ordinary shares, financed through
non interest beanng advances made by sponsonng group companes (2007 46,684 ordinary shares of £1 22V, each and 319,334
ordinary shares of 40 7p each}

The market value of the 1,210,000 ordinary shares (2007 1,980,000 ordinary shares) held by the trust at 31 March 2008 was
£7 8 million (2007 £11 6 mithion)
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34 RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES continued

Hedging
reserve

Company

At 1 Apnl 2006 06
Profit for the year -
Other recogmsed income and expense for the year 11
Dwidends paid -
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments -
Ad)ustment in respect of share options vesting -
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled -

B Share payments -

At 31 March 2007 17

Profit for the year -
Other recogmsed 1ncome and expense for the year (12)
Dwndends pad -
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments -
Adjustment 1n respect of share options vesting -
Deferred tax 1in respect of share-based payments -
Qwn shares purchased and subsequently cancelted -
Own shares purchased and held as treasury shares -
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued -

At 31 March 2008 05
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Retained
earmngs
m

4101
938
(03)
(610
05
(0 4)
(35)
57)

4335

142
(09)
(65 6)
06
{07)
01
(59)
(53 4)
16

3935

Total
fm

4107
938
08
(61 0)
Q5
(0 4)
(35)
(57)

4352

74 2
(21)
(65 6)
06
(07
61
(5 9}
{43 4)
16

3940
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35 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Reconcibiation of profit for the year to cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations

Group {ompany
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Profit for the year 133 6 939 74 2 938
Adjustments for
Employee share schemes 19 21 g6 05
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (2 6) - -
Profit on disposal of investment - (0 6) - -
Depreciabon charge 127.9 1137 - 01
Amaortisabon of intangible assets 1.3 18 - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint venture (0.2) (03) - -
Finance income (42 0) {29 0) {22 0) (16 1)
Finance costs 129.4 98 2 365 99
Dwidends receivable - - {857} (90 1)
Taxahon 160 372 (3.9) 12
Changes 1n working camital {excluding the effect of acquisition of subsidianes)
Increase in inventones (06} (01) - -
Increase in trade and other recevables (29 9} (20 7) (103 0) (83 4)
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 125 169 (3 8) (0 4)
(Decrease)/1ncrease 1n retirement benefit obhgatons (73) 20 (18) -
Decrease 1n provisions for habibibes and charges (55} (7 4) - -
Cash generated/(cutflow) from operations 3371 3051 {108 9) (54 5)
36 NET BORROWINGS
Group Company
2003 2007 2008 2007
£m m £m £m
Cash and cash deposits 357 4 127 9 497 241
Rorrawings - current
Bank overdrafts (18 6) (109) - -
Other current borrowings (15 5) (26 Q) (14) (9 6)
Finance lease obhgations (551) (48 9) - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - (295 9) {293 7)
Total current borrowings (89.2) (85 8) {297.3) (303 3)
Borrowings - non-current
Bank and other loans (706 4) (350 1) (394.7) (130 0)
Other non-current borrowangs (201 8) (2159} - -
finance lease obhgations (1,123 8) (1,033 4) - -
Total non-current borrowings {2.0320) (1,599 4) (394.7) (1300}
Total net borrowings (1,763 8) (1,557 3) (642 3) (409 2)
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37 ACQUISITIONS

0On 5 December 2007 the entire 1ssued share capital of Grosvenor Waste Management Limted, (now renamed Vindor Resource
Management Limited), was purchased by Vindor Waste Management Limited for a cash consideration of £80 0 milion, including costs
of £0 5 milhon The acquisiton has been accounted for using the acquisition method

Vindor Resource Management Limited contnibuted revenues of £17 3 mithion and net profit of £3 1 million for the penod from

5 December 2007 to 31 March 2008 If the acquisitien had occurred on 1 Apnl 2007 Group revenues for the year would have been
£908 9 mlbion and profit for the year would have been £137 7 million These amounts have been calculated after applyng the Group’s
accounting policies, adjusting the results to reflect the provisional fair value adjustments as if they had applied from 1 Apnl 2007 and
nclude the costs of integrating the acquisibion with the exasting business

Allintangible assets have been recogmised at their respective provisional fair values The residual excess over the net assets acquired
has been recogmsed as goodwill The provisional goodwillas attnbuted to the profitabibity of the acquired business and the antiopated
future operating synergres ansing from the combination

Book Fair value Far
value adjustment value
Em £m £m
Other intangible assets - 26 26
Property, plant and equipment 59 - 59
Inventones 04 - 04
Recewables 110 - 1190
Payables (68) (32) (10 0}
Taxation - current (19) {0 1) {2 0}
Taxaton - deferred (0 6) (0 8) (14}
Finance {eases (23) - {23)
Cash and cash deposits 06 - 06
Net assets acquired 63 {15) 48
Goodwilt 752
Total consideration 800
Satisfied by
Cash 795
Directly attnbutable costs 05
800
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 800
Cash and cash deposits acquired (0 6)
7194

The other intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisibion retate to customer contracts
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37 ACQUISITIONS continued

On 25 March 2008 the entire 1ssued share capital of Ledge 806 Linmted {now renamed Vindor Electncal Recycling (Holdings) Limited),
the holding company of Shore Recycling Limited, was purchased by Vindor Waste Management Limted for a cash consideration of
£10 5 mlbion, including costs of £0 3 million The acqwsition has been accounted for using the acquisiion method

Vindor Electncal Recycling (Holdings) Limited contnbuted revenues of £0 3 million and broke-even for the pencd from 25 March 2008
te 31 March 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 Apnl 2007 Group revenues for the year would have been £883 2 million and
profit for the year would have been £134 8 mithon These amounts have been calculated after applying the Group's accounting policies,
adjusting the results to reflect the provisional fair value adjustments as if they had appled from 1 Apnl 2007 and 1nclude the costs of
ntegrating the acquisihion with the existing business

The excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The prowisional goodwalls attnbuted to the profitabibity of the
acquired business and the anticipated future operating synergies ansing from the combination

Provisional Fasr vatue Provisional
book value adjustment farr value
im Em im
Goodwll 156 (15 6} -
Property, plant and equipment 14 - 14
Inventones 05 - 05
Recevables 09 - 09
Payables {09) 01 (08)
Taxation - current {03) {0 2) {05)
Taxation - deferred - 01) {01)
Other loans (12 8) - (12 8)
Finance leases (09) - {09)
Cash and cash deposits 09 - 09
Net halmbities acquired 44 {15 8) (11 4)
"Goodwill 219
Total consideration 105
Satsfied by
Cash 102
Directly attnbutable costs 03
105
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash considerabion 105
Cash and cash deposits acqured (09)
96

Restatements at 31 March 2007

At 31 March 2007 the accounting for the acquisiton of Skipaway Holdings Limited {renamed Vindor Waste (Medway) Holdings Limited}
was provisional Completion of the accounting for the acquisition has resulted 1n an wncrease in goodwill of £3 2 mithion, an increase in
intangible assets of £0 1 mithon, a decrease in property, plant and equipment of £0 5 millhon and an increase 1n provisions and other
habibibes of £2 9 milhon with an additional £0 1 millien creditor for current tax and a £0 2 mithon reduction 1n deferred tax
Comparative figures at 31 March 2007 have been restated accordingly

These restatements have had no 1mpact on profit for the year or retained earmings
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38 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT VENTURE UNDERTAKINGS AT 31 MARCH 2008

Water and sewerage Country of incorporation, reqistrahion and principal operations
South West Water Limted* England
South West Water Finance Plc England

Waste management
Vindor Limited* England
Vindor Waste Limited England
Vindor Waste Exeter Limted England
Vindor Waste Management Lmited England
Vindor Electncal Recychng (Holdings) Limited England
Vindor EnviroScot Limited Scotland
vindor Glass Recycling Limited England
Vindor Parkwood Holdimgs Limited Bntish Virgin Islands t
Farkwood Group Limited England
Vindor Waste (Sheffield) Limited England
Vindor Resource Management Limtad England
Vindor Waste (Bnstol Holdings) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Bnstol) Linmted England
Vandor Waste Kent Limited England
Vindor Waste (Landfill Restoration) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Somerset) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Thames) Limited England
Vindor Waste (West Sussex) Linmited England

Other

Pemnsula Insurance Limited* Guernsey
Pemnsula Water Limited™ England

* Indicates the shares are held directly by Pennon Group Flc, the Company
1 Operations are carned out 1n England

The subsidhary undertakings are wholly-owned and all shares w1ssue are ordinary shares All compames above are consobdated n the
Group financial statements

The consohdated Group financal statements alse include Mamlla Limited, a company mncorporated in the Cayman Islands
The Company has 1nvested £100 0 millien n the preference shares of Mamilla Limited to benefit from the efficent deposit of surplus
funds up to September 2008

Joint ventures
All joint ventures and the subsidiary undertakings of Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limted and Vindor Laing (Greater
Manchester) Holdings Limted are incorporated and registered in England which 1s also ther country of operabon

Share capatal i1nssue Percentage held Actwity

Echo South West Limited 100,000 A ordinary shares 100% Customer contact management
100,000 B ordinary shares -

Shares 1n Echo South West Limited are held by South West Water Lumited The joint venture 1 Echo South West Limited ceased operation on
31 March 2008

takeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limted 1,000,000 A ordinary shares -
1,000,000 B ordinary shares 100%
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited Waste management
Lakeside Energy Limited Waste management

Shares 1n Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limted are held by Vindor Waste Management Limted

Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited 2 ordnary shares 50%
Vindor Laing {Greater Manchester) Limited Waste management

Shares 1n Vindor Lawng (Greater Manchester) Holdings Lirmited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited
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Y

3% OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m im £im £m
The future aggregate mmmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

Within one year 72 56 - -
Later than one year and less than five years 188 160 - -
After five years 917 768 - -
117 7 101 4 - -

The Group leases vanous offices, depots and workshops under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have vanous
terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts Property leases are negohated for an average term of 25 years and rentals are reviewed on
average at five yearly intervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m fm
Guarantees

Borrewing facibities of subsidhary undertakings - - 3443 3220

Contractors’ claims on capital schemes 23 - - -
Performance bonds 87.4 816 87 4 816

. Letters of credut 20 51 - -
Other 69 69 69 60
98 6 936 438 6 4105

Guarantees 1n respect of performance bonds are entered into 1n the normal course of business No hambty s expected to anse 1n respect
of the gquarantees

The guarantee 1n respect of letters of credit has been given by Vindor Waste Limited n support of the borrowings of the joint venture of
Vindor Waste Management Limited, Lakeside Energy from Waste Hotdings Limted In addvhion, Vindor Waste Management Limited has
gwen a commitment to supply 200,000 tonnes of waste per annum (or pay market prnice based compensation) to the energy from waste
plant of the joint venture The Directors consider that the committed waste volume will be available 1n the ordnary course of business

Other containgent habilihes relate to a possible obligation to pay further consideration 1n respect of a previously acquired business when
the outcome of planmng applications 15 known

41 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group Lompany
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m fm
Contracted but not provided 912 717 - -
Share of commitment contracted but not prownded by joint ventures 133 417 - -
104 5 113 4 - -
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Group companmes entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group

2008 2007
Em £m
Soles of goods and senaces
Echo Scuth West Limited 27 26
Purchase of goods and senices
Echo South West Linited 103 95
Year end balances
2008 2007
£m im
Recervables due from related parties
Echo South West limited 21 09
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 93 58
114 67
Payables due to related parties
Echo South West Limited 02 03

All amounts relate to tracing balances except £9 3 milhon of loans included within recewvables due for repayment 1n wnstalments
between 2009 and 203C Interest1s charged at 6% until 2009 then 15% thereafter

Company
The following transactions with subsithary undertakings occurred 1n the year

2008 2007

£m £m

Sales of goods and sences {management fees) 68 65
Purchase of goods and semaces (support services}) 05 as
Enterest recewable (loans) 158 123
[nterest payable {short-term funding} o8 06
Dwadends recewed 857 901

Sales of goods and services to subsidiary undertakings are at cost Purchases of goods and senaces from subsidiary undertakings are
under normal commercaial terms and conditions that would alse be available to unrelated third parhes

Year end balances

2008 2007
£m im

Recewables due from subsidhary undertokings
Loans 3269 2247
Trading balances 08 03

Interest on £104 8 mllon of the loans 1s charged at a fixed rate of 5 0% and on £66 2 mithon at a fixed rate of 6 0% (2007 £119 9
mllion, 6 0%) Interest on the balance of the loans 1s charged at Barclays Bank Plc base rate +1% (2007 Barclays Bank Ple base rate
+1%) The loans are repayable 1n ynstalments over the penod 2009 to 2013 Duning the year £0 6 milhon (2007 £0 2 mithon) was
prowvided n respect of loans to subsidianes not expected to be repaid
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

Payobies due to subsidiary undertakings
Loans

Tradhing balances

The loans from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and \nterest free without any terms for repayment
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Five year financial summary

Income statement
Revenue

Underlying aperating profit
Net finance costs
Share of profit/(loss) »n joint ventures

Underlying profit before tax and exceptional items
Non-underlying and exceptional items (before tax}
Taxabon

Profit for the year
Dwidends proposed

Underlying earmngs per share (basic)

From continuing operations

Earnings pev share

Non-underlying and excephonalitems (net of tax)
Deferred tax

Underlying earntngs per share

Declared dindend per share

Capital expenditure
Acquisihons
Property, plant and equipment

Balance sheet

Non-current assets

Net current, assets/(habihties)
Non-current habibites

Net assets

Number of employees (average for year)
Water and sewerage business

Waste management

Other businesses

Information 1n 2004 was reported under UK GAAP which may differ matenally from IFRS The main differences relate to the treatment of

IFRS
2008

2420

2421
(87 4)
02

154 9

(53)
(16 0)

133 6

691

382p
1.3p
(2 6p)

36 9p
19 81p

IFRS
2003

890
228 8

2,922 6
169.0
(2,451 3)

640.3

1,276
2,059
42

3,377

26 5p
0 6p
3 8p

30 9p
18 55p
IFRS
2007

(Restated)
im

7o
2451

27286
{56 7)
(2,044 7)

627 2

1,301
1,686
38

3,025

IFRS
2006
fm

99p
10 4p
53p

25 6p
17 2p

IfRS
2006

im

45 8
2497

25215
{612)
(1,885 1)

5812

1,299
1,388
35

2,722

IFRS
2003
fm

16 Op
17p
41p

21 8p

14 3p

IFRS
2005

£m

308
1810

22922
1931

{1,776 4)

7089

1,336
1,169
39

2,544

UK AAP
2004

4713

1388
(57 )
(03)

813
(90}
(108)

615

511

16 6p
24p
09p

19 9p

13 8p

UK GAAR
2004

198
170 0

2,191 3
759

(1,367 6)

8996

1,341
395
39

2,275

infrastructure assets, retrement benefits, goodwill and intangibles, deferred tax, dwidends payable and financial nstruments
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Shareholder information

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year end 31 March
Nineteenth Annual General Meebng 31 July 2008
2008 Final dwidend payable 1 October 2008
2008 Half yearly finanoal report announcement November 2008
2009 Intenm dwndend payabte Apnl 2009
2009 Prebminary results announcement May 2009
Twentieth Annual General Meeting July 2009
2009 Final dividend payable October 2009
SHAREHOLDERS® ANALYSIS AT 31 MARCH 2008 SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
Number of Percentage of Percentage of At 16 June 2008 the follewing interests in the
Range shareholders totat shareholders ordnary shases yssued share capital had bean notified pursuant to
1-100 2,325 10 32 002 the Financat Serace Authonty's Disclosure and
101 - 1,000 8,865 3937 126 Transparency Rules
1,001 -5,000 9,697 43 06 576 1 .
5,001 - 50,000 1,295 575 395 Amenpnse finanaal Inc 10 12%
50,001 - 100 000 85 038 173 Pictet Asset Management SA 7 34%
100,001 - HIGHEST 253 112 &1 28 AXA SA and 1ts Group companies 5 71%
Total 22,520 100 00 100 00 Legal & General Group plc 5 06%
Haldes Standard Life Investments Ltd 5 00%
Individuals 20,090 89 21 838
Compames 170 075 367
Trust compames (pension funds, etc} 2 001 000
Banks and nominees 2,258 10 03 8795
22,520 100 00 100 00

Further shareholder information may be found at  Www. pennon-group. co.uk
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Shareholder information

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Share dealing sennce

The low-cost share dealing senvice offered
by Stocktrade enables shareholders to
buy and sell shares wn the Company on

a low-cost basis and to make regular
nvestments in the Company Telephone
Stocktrade on 0845 601 0995 and quote
LOW C0107 Commission s O 5% (subject
to a mmmum charge of £15) to £10,000,
then 0 2% thereafter

Share qft sernice

Through Sharegift, an independent
chanty share donation scheme,
shareholders who only have a smalt
number of shares with a value that makes
1t uneconomical to sell them, can donate
such shares to chanty Donations can be
made by complebhon of a simple share
transfer form which 1s available from the
Company’s registrars, Equimt

Indwidual Savings Accounts

By holding their shares in the Company
1 an Indmidual Savings Account (ISA),
shareholders may gain tax advantages

Dwadend Re-nvestment Plan

The Company operates a Dividend
Re-investment Plan The Plan prowvides
shareholders with the opportumty to
wvest the whole of the cash dwdend
they recewve on their Pennon Group
shares to buy further shares 1n the
Company at favourable commssion rates
Full details of the Plan, including how to
Jon, will be sent out to shareholders on
23 August 2008

Online portfoho service

The online portfolio sennce provided by
Equimit gwves shareholders access to more
information on their investments Details
of the portfolio sennce are available from
Equiniti online at www shareview co uk

Electromc commumcations

At last year's Annual General Meeting,

a resolution was passed which allows

the Company to communicate wath its
shareholders by means of its website

As explaned 1n the documentation sent
out to shareholders 1n January, no action
was required by shareholders unless they
wished to continue to recewve copies of the
Annual Report and other shareholder
communications by post

Shareholders currently receming a

prninted copy of the Annual Report who
now wish to sign up to recewve all

future shareholder commumcations
electromcally, can do 50 wia the Shareview
senice provided by Equinmity, by gong to
www shareview co vk and seleching
‘e-mail’ as the preferred format for
shareholder commumcations

Pennon Group Plc Registered office Peminsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR

Reqistered 1n England No 2366640
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The Pennon Group website

The Pennon Group website at

www pennon-group co uk provides

news and details of the Company's
actwaties plus links toits business
websites The ‘Investorinformation”
sechon contawns up-to-date information
for shareholders including comprehensive
share pnce nformation, finangal results,
dwidend payment dates and amounts,
and Stock Exchange announcements

There s also a comprehenswve share
services sechon on the website which
includes snformation on buying, selling
and transfernng shares, and the achon
to be undertaken by shareholders in
the event of a change 1n personal
arcumstances, for example, a change
of address
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